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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

YA 452 R
518 2
For Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1-HLFE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
o —\E e
HK$ HK$ HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Revenue WA 1,836,798,361 1,307,639,358 964,927,119 704,937,348 621,089,610
EBITDA BHITE LB A
it 502,551,918 368,342,429 274,120,387 208,388,441 229,194,207
Profit before tax B AR T 450,080,481 330,153,644 244,608,182 184,407,790 210,596,799
Profit for the year FRHEM 384,504,964 278,136,291 203,496,217 149,308,398 174,777,762
Profit attributable to owners of ARREEAEL
the Company kil 361,105,819 279,223,779 200,702,539 148,663,969 174,415,159
Basic earnings per share (HK cents) G RREARZH (1l 36.7 285 21.0 19.9 23.8
As at 31 March
R=ZA=+-H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—E-NF —E-N\F —tF —Z—REF —1%F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT
Total assets BELE 2,346,983,842 1,982,980,721  1,199,253,190  1,155,563,031 467,666,980
Total liabilities Eft@%E 1,181,086,947 1,145,466,738 409,400,867 424285947 464,713,119
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(8fF)3E 1,165,896,895 837,513,983 789,852,323 731,277,084 2,953,861
Financial Metrics ﬂ?ﬁ%?a%‘;
EBITDA Margin'™ BRMEREHEA
& 21.4% 28.1% 28.4% 29.6% 36.9%
Net profit margin® FRAEe 20.9% 21.3% 21.1% 21.1% 28.1%
Current ratio® BN L& 1.25x 1.24x 2.49x 2.54x 0.85x
Quick ratio® PR 1.20x 1.21x 2.44x 2.50x 0.82x
Return on equity®! BAEHEO 33.0% 33.2% 25.8% 20.4% 5,916.9%
Return on average total assets® THEEERREO 17.8% 17.5% 17.3% 18.4% 36.7%
Dividend per share (HK cents) SRR E (BIL) 35.0 27.0 20.4 145 15.2
Notes: ks
ol EBITDA Margin equals earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 1. ﬁmﬁg&%ﬁﬁg\ ZIBFERFERNRFE « FHIA -
amortisation over total revenue for the financial year. FERBHEAADER) o
2. Net profit margin equals profit for the year divided by revenue for the same 2. TR F R ERF R AR AR A YA -
period.
3. Current ratio equals current assets divided by current liabilities as at the end 3. B RERMBEERNRBEERAREAE -

of the financial year.

2

Quick ratio equals current assets less inventories divided by current liabilities
as at end of the financial year.

Return on equity equals profit for the year divided by the ending balance of
total equity for the financial year.

Return on average total assets equals profit for the year divided by the
arithmetic mean of the beginning and ending balances of total assets for
the financial year.
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION

EIR N Fa AT
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2018¢ 1@ A ) T2 200 5418 F5
TR

¥

i RENDHN
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AWARDS AND RECOGNITION
82TH N S AT
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT
RS

Revenue

WA

Net Profit
e A C>

+38.3%

Dear shareholders,

Preventive and precision medicine continues to be the core to our
medical platform and we are determined to make a difference by
delivering excellent patient care and convening enthusiastic
individuals to improve healthcare quality.

Well positioned and focused in the Greater Bay Area, the Group is
committed to capturing the market of growing demand for reliable
and quality medical products and services that is not available in the
PRC via medical tourism. Riding on the convenience on the
infrastructure, we anticipate that our business generated from PRC
clients will continue to grow in a decent manner.

According to the Medical Claims Statistics 2016 prepared by the
Hong Kong Federation of Insurers, the total medical insurance claims
had already reached HK$13.56 billion in 2016, out of which HK$9.55
billion and HK$4.015 billion were inpatient and outpatient
respectively. Anticipating on the massive demand on specialty
medical services, in particular due to VHIS, our specialty clinics,
oncology and day procedures centre, and a diagnostic and imaging
centres in Hong Kong commenced operation since November 2018
to capture such market.

We will also proactively explore acquisition targets and market
players who share the same vision as we do — offering safe,
professional and effective services in health, beauty and happiness
to individuals. Targeting partnership opportunities with strong
presence in the PRC, we are exploring further collaboration in the
Greater Bay Area with the existing partners, in particular.

* According to independent research conducted by Frost & Sullivan in terms
of revenue in 2018 in Hong Kong.
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We proactively grasped opportunities arising from the market and
were able to achieve remarkable growth. The Group is committed to
generating sustainable and consistent returns for our shareholders.
The Board has recommended to declare a final cash dividend of 6.5
HK cents per Share and a final special dividend of 13.5 HK cents per
Share, an aggregate of final dividend of 20.0 HK cents per Share for
the year ended 31 March 2019. If approved at the forthcoming
Annual General Meeting, the total cash dividend for the entire
financial year ended 31 March 2019, including the interim cash
dividend of 15.0 HK cents per Share (interim cash dividend of 5.0 HK
cents and interim special dividend of 10.0 HK cents), would be an
aggregate of 35.0 HK cents per Share.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

| would like to express my deepest appreciation to the management
team and all fellow staff members for their extraordinary commitment,
cohesive teamwork, dedication and contribution. They are one of our
most important assets contributing to the Group’s success. On
behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express
my utmost gratitude to all of our shareholders, customers and
business partners for their unwavering support. We will continue to
leverage on our unparalleled position and deepen our impact as the
leading medical services providers in Hong Kong* and striving for
excellence. In turn we will create an investment opportunity that is
both fulfiling and financially solid for our stakeholders.

Tang Chi Fai

Chairman

26 June 2019

@ DR REBORN RrehEALTH

CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT
TIEmE

REBICETSHE  WABRBEEER - K
EEBNAREGEAFER—BNEE - TS
ERFREE T NF-ZAZ+—HULFEES
RRERIR € IR BB 6.5 1L R R AR RIRR B &
f%13.5781l - &£ AFRHREFHZ20.07(L - @
REEBRRBERE L EE B@E_T—NF
A=+ HUEEEVREFENRSREAE(E
FEREIR SR EER15.08 W (PHREKRES.0
A BB RIAR 2. 10.05810l)) & £ AF A& 35.0
AL -

IS

AABHEEKENERERMARINZER
A BTHEREE  FRMERRERZAOH
B M ER -—EAREEKINELERN K
EZEE AABRREFTSHULHBE RO
FIAERR  BEF REBBHNBESR - 1S
HBTERPIAES - WENRAERTE"

AEBERGEBANTES  UERAKRB -
HEH  BABRFHEESEREBPBR
Bl R EHE o

@ reVIVE Fv ITHEERRTY T Oj' )IA_J 1'1-? Jﬁ
CEEHD G _’H iR Wmlllklﬂs Al MEDIZAL
BEER
@ foreed @i LIMIH (4, dm TONBGUY ~&hovia SWISSINE coorrenee sy <
i VY, DENTAL CARE v iRl i _;.” s AU ERIML LB
* According to independent research conducted by Frost & Sullivan in terms * BEAEHEDFXATIR - NFEEEFENK

of revenue in 2018 in Hong Kong.

AFHEEIT BT

BEEBEERSEERAT 7
FEHRE 2018/19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE & Mo

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The Group is the leading non-hospital medical service provider in
Hong Kong*, achieving strong business growth while maintaining
competitive operating efficiencies. We have evolved to provide a full
spectrum of medical and healthcare services and related services to
create sustainable value to our stakeholders. We are also the largest
medical aesthetic service provider in Hong Kong*.

The Group will continue to focus its deployment of resources in IT,
services and brands to sustain and enhance its competitive
advantage as a leader in the market, and further expand its market
share in the primary healthcare market.

Anticipating the massive demand on specialty medical services due
to the launch of VHIS since April 2019, our specialty clinics, oncology
and day surgery centre, and a diagnostic and imaging centre located
at 9 Queen’s Road Central and Langham Place respectively, also
commenced operations in November 2018. In addition to the
advanced radiology services and aesthetic treatments, the
comprehensive range of surgical specialties care offer services
potentially including but not limited to cardiothoracic, ear, nose and
throat (ENT), general surgery, plastic surgery, neurosurgery,
orthopaedics and urology. Our advanced radiology services include
magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), computed tomography scan (CT
Scan), Positron Emission Tomography Computed Tomography (PET
CT), ultrasound and EOS medical imaging. Our oncology centre and
day surgery centre offer services potentially including but not limited
to chemotherapy, endoscopy, minor operations and traditional
Chinese medicine treatments.

Two Tencent Doctorwork clinics were established in Hong Kong in
November 2018 and the Artificial Intelligence (“Al”) equipment was
officially launched in May 2019. It is the intention of the parties to
further its cooperation in system development and to facilitate cross-
border consultation.

Occupying approximately a gross floor area of over 8,000 sg. ft. in
our Langham Place flagship, the Group has also officially launched
the vaccination centre in June 2019.

(*according to the independent research conducted by Frost and Sullivan in terms
of revenue in 2018)

8 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We are well-positioned to broaden the coverage of medical
disciplines. As at 31 March 2019, including our two flagships in Hong
Kong and seven clinics in the PRC, we operate 51 clinics and service
centres occupying an aggregate of approximately 277,000 sq. ft. of
floor area with 87 full-time and exclusive Registered Practitioners
across Hong Kong, the PRC and Macau. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s revenue and net profit increased significantly by
40.5% and 38.3% from the previous year to HK$1,836.8 million and
HK$384.5 million respectively. Sales Volume during the year
increased by 29.1% from HK$1,398.7 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 to HK$1,806.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2019.

The Group is committed to generating sustainable and consistent
returns for our Shareholders. The Board resolved to recommend a
cash dividend of 6.5 HK cents per Share and a special dividend of
13.5 HK cents per Share, i.e. a total of 20.0 HK cents per Share for
the year ended 31 March 2019, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting. If approved
at the annual general meeting, the total aggregate cash dividend for
the full financial year ended 31 March 2019, including the interim
cash dividend of 15.0 HK cents per Share (composed of interim cash
dividend of 5.0 HK cents and interim special dividend of 10.0 HK
cents), would be 35.0 HK cents per Share.

Business Analysis
Medical and aesthetic medical services continue to be the Group’s

growth driver. The table below sets forth our client demographics
during the year:

EEEEREI ST

BRMEBEDWAERABESRIRENREE
cHRZE—NFZAZ+—8  BERMESR
BRMREEERFBENERZIER © FfE
KESI KD RRGH L  FrhEEmEmES £4
277,000 F FR - FEHE - PERIKRPIEFSTH
REBFMELE - RIREHHE - XEEMKRA
K% % F o Bl &R & F 18 i040.5% K% 38.3% =
1,836.8B&BIL N384 BEETT - FNHER
MEBE - N\E=F=1+—HILFEM1,398.7
BEABLEMOI%EHE_ZT—LF=A
=+—HIEFEM1,806.4BEBTT °

AEEBRNRERGEENHFEMRENER - &
FEEBRRKBBE _T-NF=-A=1+—HLF
BHREN 6.5 MRS IS MFRAN13.5
BRI - BNE KSR/ 20.081 - 1
BEBRRRERERRBERS LHE - JTAE
B MRRRBEFAS LELE BE-_T—N
FZA=+—B UL EEMBFEENRS R EAHE
(BRETHRKREER15.08 I (AT HRL
B.5.078 Ml K BAR B B 10.0 B ILAEM)) &
RHERR35.0%81 -

E3 Sk

BEMRSEERGDAAKEERG N - T
REFIFARMNEFEA -

For the year ended 31 March
BE-A=+—HLFE

2018 2019 Change
T \F =ZE—NF &

Based on treatment delivered RO REEER
Number of Individual Customers BAZFEAR 80,566 99,524 23.5%

Number of New Customers HMEFPEH 50,652 57,516 13.6%

Number of Existing Customers BEERFHE 29,914 42,008 40.4%
Contribution to treatment delivered BEREEENTE

Number of New Customers FIRFEE 39% 36%

Number of Existing Customers REEF&E 61% 64%

Retention rate of our customers is 89%.

EFEHEXR8I% °

BEEBEERSEERAT 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EIRE St am oA

Our Professionals and Other Staff

We continued to be a reliable partner to the medical experts. As at
31 March 2019, we had 87 full time and exclusive Registered
Practitioners, 100 Medical Professionals, 332 relationship managers
and 456 Trained Therapists. The following table summarises our
Registered Practitioners as at 31 March 2019:

BMNERAEREMET

BRPEEERBRERNASERME RSN
FZA=+—H BMBeTRERERIME
100 EBEEEAE SREBEEPKLEUR
456 B EERIBIMREM - TRMANR - F
—NEFEZA=T—BHEMNEMELENE :

Number of
Registered
Type of Registered Practitioners Location Practitioners
=88 4 Al b B EMEE A
Registered medical practitioners on the General Register Hong Kong 22
EBRIE AR M Ea e 58
Registered medical practitioners on the Specialist Register
ERIE A B ERFHTE
Cardio-thoracic Surgery Hong Kong 1
O A M o
Clinical Microbiology & Infection Hong Kong 1
B PR A ) e R R 22 58
Clinical Oncology Hong Kong 1
% PR 2 R 7t )
Family Medicine Hong Kong 1
KEEE S 578
Gastroenterology & Hepatology Hong Kong 1
f5 B B et 578
General Surgery Hong Kong 2
HNEE EE
Geriatric Medicine Hong Kong 1
ZAE 58
Neurosurgery Hong Kong 2
BRI N Y
Orthopaedic & Traumatology Hong Kong )
B HE
Otorhinolaryngology Hong Kong 1
H &R &8
Paediatrics Hong Kong 1
2R 58
Plastic Surgery Hong Kong 2
BIZINEL 578
Psychiatry Hong Kong 1
KRt 3
Radiology Hong Kong 2
RS 57
Urology Hong Kong 1
WAPR )
Chinese medicine practitioners Hong Kong 5
&8 578
Chiropractors Hong Kong 15
5E 578
Dentists Hong Kong 9
T8 5
PRC Doctors PRC 10
P B A i B8 A B A i,
Macau Doctors Macau 3
B B EFT
87

As at 31 May 2019, we had 89 full time and exclusive Registered
Practitioners.

1 O Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Internal Control Protocols

Safety and risk management professionalism have always been our
core values. Our experienced and well-trained Registered
Practitioners perform and oversee all medical related operations, as
well as participating in our senior management. Both our Registered
Practitioners and supporting staff attend medical related trainings on
a regular and ongoing basis to update their knowledge and skill sets.
Before performing any procedure to a client, we require our
Registered Practitioners and Trained Therapists to explain the
procedures and associated risks involved and obtain a written
consent and acknowledgement in a designated form which is to be
signed by our clients. We apply certain medical standards even to
our non-medical services, such as recommending our clients to
consult doctors before receiving any of our services. Internal control
measures regarding selling practices and unutilised prepaid
packages are in place. We have implemented a series of internal
control measures, including a number of measures that refer to
applicable “best practice” guidelines issued by governmental bodies
(such as the Hong Kong Consumer Council and the Commerce and
Economic Development Bureau of Hong Kong), in order to help
prevent our staff from engaging in coercive selling practices, we
ensure we are:

° adopting a refund policy which includes a fourteen-day cooling
off period whereby our clients are allowed to request a full
refund within fourteen days of purchase of any prepaid
packages;

° adopting a policy that commission is not paid to our sales staff
for contracted sales which are subsequently refunded;

° establishing procedures for recording and handling complaints;

° having written terms and conditions with clients;

° sharing media reports of forced selling cases with our staff to
highlight the potential adverse consequences of such
practices.

During the Reporting Period, the refunds and settlement of the

material unfavourable feedback represents only 0.02% (FY2018:
0.07%) of the Group’s total revenue.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EIRE St am oA

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGIES

We contemplate and formulate our strategies for growth in a fast
moving healthcare market environment with rapid technological
advancements, studying the development of long-term trends on a
global scale. With medical efficacy as a foundation, we are
committed to offering the top notch consumer experiences.

Competitive Landscape
Hong Kong

Hong Kong has continually ranked second globally in the latest
World Competitiveness Yearbook (WCY) 2019 as published by the
International Institute for Management Development (IMD). The
Government is committed to enhancing the competitiveness and
vibrancy of the economy of Hong Kong. Analysed by the WCY’s four
competitiveness factors, Hong Kong maintained the top rank in
“Government efficiency”, and was ranked second in “Business
efficiency” and 10th in “Economic performance”. Benefiting from the
Government’s increased investment in areas such as infrastructure,
innovation and technology, as well as education, Hong Kong’s
ranking edged up to 22nd in “Infrastructure”.

The promulgation of the Outline Development Plan for the Greater
Bay Area on 18 February 2019 signified a new milestone in the
development of the Greater Bay Area. With the full support of the
Central Government, Hong Kong will proactively integrate into the
overall national development, thereby expanding its scope of
development and generating new impetus for growth. This will bring
new development opportunities to different sectors of the
community, especially our young people.

Based on the total healthcare expenditure research conducted by
Frost and Sullivan, the Hong Kong medical service market revenue
will increase to HK$178.2 billion in 2021. According to the Hong
Kong private health market report published by Bupa and conducted
by Asia Care Group, the out-of-pocket health expenditure in Hong
Kong will increase to HK$94 billion in 2024/25.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

VHIS

VHIS is a policy initiative introduced by the Food and Health Bureau
of Hong Kong (“FHB”) to regulate indemnity in individual hospital
insurance plans, where insurance companies and consumers may
participate voluntarily. The participating insurance companies
participating in VHIS are subject to the supervision and regulation of
the Insurance Authority under the Insurance Ordinance. Since April
2019, insurance companies registered as VHIS Providers offering
individual indemnity hospital insurance plans that are certified by FHB
are required to comply with the rules of the scheme (“Certified
Plans”) , including the product compliance rules and the code of
practice.

It is the objectives of the government to:

° Enhance the protection level of hospital insurance products

° Provide the public with an additional choice of using private
healthcare services through hospital insurance

° Relieve the pressure on the public healthcare system in the
long run

Compared to many other existing indemnity hospital insurance
products, Certified Plans under VHIS are more attractive in terms of
greater protection and transparency, with key features of the
Certified Plans being,

° Irrespective of change in the individual’s health condition after
policy inception, the renewal of policy is guaranteed up to the
age of 100

° There is a cooling-off period of 21 days whereby an individual
can cancel one’s policy and receive full refund of premium

° Premium transparency is offered with premium schedule that is
easily accessible on websites of insurance companies

° Unknown pre-existing conditions will be partially covered in the
2nd year (25%) and 3rd year (50%) after policy inception and
fully covered (100%) afterwards
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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° Treatment of congenital conditions which have been
manifested or diagnosed since the age of 8 will be covered

° Day case procedures such as endoscopy conducted in day
centres will be covered

° Prescribed diagnostic imaging tests such as Computed
Tomography (CT scan), Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MR
scan) and Positron Emission Tomography (PET scan)
conducted during hospital stay or in an outpatient setting will
be covered, subject to 30% coinsurance

° Prescribed non-surgical cancer treatments such as
radiotherapy, chemotherapy and targeted therapy will be
covered

° Psychiatric inpatient treatments in local hospitals will be
covered up to the limit of HK$30,000 per policy year

For taxpayers who purchase Certified Plans for themselves and/or
their specified relatives, the premiums paid for a VHIS Policy is
eligible for the tax deduction under the Inland Revenue Ordinance
(Cap.112). If a VHIS policy provides both Certified Plan coverage and
other insurance protection, only the premiums in relation to the
Certified Plan are eligible for the tax deduction.

The government encourages individuals to consider purchasing
Certified Plans under the VHIS and be covered when using private
healthcare services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The PRC

According to the International Handbook of Population Aging, the
PRC is estimated to have 329 million people aged 65 or older by
2050, including 120 million people aged 80 years or older. According
to the report on the work of the government delivered at the 13th
National People’s Congress of the People’s Republic of China on 5
March 2019, the PRC Government aims to continue to increase
basic medical insurance and serious disease insurance protection for
rural and non-working urban residents. The PRC Government
subsidies for resident medical insurance will be raised by an average
of RMB30 per person, half of which will be used for serious disease
insurance. It will lower and unify the deductible line for serious
disease insurance, raise the reimbursement rate from 50 to 60
percent, and further reduce the burden of medical care for people
with serious diseases and people living in poverty. Hong Kong is well
positioned to capture the growing medical and healthcare demand
of this 70 million people (as at the end of 2017) in the Greater Bay
Area.

We identified key areas that the PRC Government is actively
pursuing:

Strengthening the prevention and treatment of serious diseases

° The PRC Government will take action in cancer prevention and
treatment, and promote preventive screening, early diagnosis
and treatment, and search for breakthroughs in cancer
research.

Improvement in prevention and treatment of common chronic
illnesses

° Outpatient medicines for treating high blood pressure and
diabetes, etcetera, will be made reimbursable under the
medical insurance scheme.

Convenience in medical bill settlement

° To speedily implement and improve the policy on interprovincial
on-the-spot settlement of medical bills through basic medical
insurance accounts, by enabling patients to use their medical
insurance cards for medical treatment in any designated
hospitals and settle their bills straight away regardless of the
locality.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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According to the China Insurance Regulatory Commission, the total
overall gross premium income for China’s insurance market was
RMB3,658.1 billion in 2017, with health insurance premium income
accounting for just 12% (RMB438.946 billion) of the market — small-
scale when compared to life insurance (58.7%) and property
insurance (26.9%). Despite the aforesaid, health insurance is growing
at an increased pace; between 2013 and 2017, the health insurance
sector grew at 40.6% compared while the overall insurance market
average of 20.7%. EY and CPIC Allianz expect the future of health
insurance will be driven by data.

Integrated Multi-Discipline Strategy

The Group will continue its dedication to enhance its brand, service
and IT. It is the priority of the Group in improving patient care to
provide a high degree of patient satisfaction. Our brand shall build on
the ongoing positive feedbacks from clients. We will also continue to
seek new ways to raise productivity standards through increased
digitalisation, innovation and technology.

With reference to the big data gathered in our system, we anticipate
that there will be a growing demand for medical specialty services.
We look forward to striving for the best in each of the medical
disciplines. By establishing our footprints in the primary care clinics,
we are able to secure new clientele who are health conscious and
eventually require easy access to further medical and healthcare
needs which our eco-system can offer.

Differentiating from the strategy of aggressive expansion via
establishment of number of clinics, the Group opts to establish
clinics and centres in selective locations in a cautious manner. The
Group also enhances the ambience of our facilities and client
convenience through the deployment of medical Al. Simplified
preventive analysis of health data supported by enhanced diagnostic
equipment shall enhance the competitiveness and efficiency of the
Group in satisfying their specific needs.

We will consolidate the market by identifying potential acquisition
targets or via an organic expansion. We are exploring acquisition
targets as well as partnership opportunities with local medical players
in the PRC cautiously, including but not limited to reputable medical
service and healthcare service providers, suppliers and investors, to
fuel our sustainable growth in this market with immense potential.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

Our revenue increased by 40.5% from HK$1,307.6 million for the
year ended 31 March 2018 to HK$1,836.8 million for the year ended
31 March 2019 primarily attributable to the significant increase in the
revenue generated from medical services as a result of the increase
in the number of active clients and their spending during the
Reporting Period.

Medical

Medical represents all medical services (excluding aesthetic medical
services and any Beauty and Wellness Services) offered by the
Group. Our revenue from medical represents 28.5% of revenue
(2018: 22.6%) and increased significantly by 76.8% from HK$295.7
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to HK$522.8 million for the
year ended 31 March 2019, primarily attributable to the increase in
the variety of medical services that the Group is offering, including
but not limited to advanced radiology services, comprehensive range
of surgical specialties care offer services in cardiothoracic, ear, nose
and throat (ENT), gastroenterology & hepatology, general surgery,
plastic surgery, neurosurgery, orthopaedics and urology, and an
increase in the number of clients receiving medical services.

Aesthetic Medical Services

Aesthetic medical services represent medical aesthetics and dental
services offered by the Group. Our revenue from aesthetic medical
services represents 45.5% of revenue (2018: 43.5%) and increased
significantly by 46.8% from HK$569.1 million for the year ended 31
March 2018 to HK$835.2 million for the year ended 31 March 2019,
primarily attributable to the increase in the number of clients
obtaining medical aesthetic services, mainly the minimal invasive
services, during the Reporting Period.

Beauty and Wellness Services

Beauty and wellness services represents traditional beauty, haircare
and ancillary wellness services. Our revenue from beauty and
wellness services represents 21.8% of revenue (2018: 28.2%) and
increased slightly by 8.5% from HK$368.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 to HK$399.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2019, primarily attributable to the Group’s integrated multi-discipline
strategy to nurture and retain customers.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Skincare, healthcare and beauty products

Our revenue from the sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products increased by 5.9% from HK$74.6 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 to HK$79.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2019, and represents only 4.3% of our total revenue (2018: 5.7%).

Operating Segment Information

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and contribution to results by
business segments of the operations for the Reporting Period is set
out in note 4.

Other net income and gains

For the year ended 31 March 2019, our other net income and gains
were approximately HK$36.2 million, a decrease of approximately
HK$7.2 million or 16.7% when compared to the year ended 31
March 2018, primarily due to the unrealised and realised fair value
losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
HK$9.2 million.

Cost of inventories and consumables

Our cost of inventories and consumables representing 12.4% of
revenue (2018: 12.5%), increased by 39.1% from HK$163.4 million
for the year ended 31 March 2018 to HK$227.3 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019, primarily attributable to an increase in the
volume of medication and service consumables used, which was in
line with the significant increase in the volume of service procedures
performed.

Registered practitioner expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2019, we incurred Registered
Practitioner expenses of approximately HK$207.3 million,
representing 11.3% of revenue (2018: 8.4%) an increase of
approximately HK$96.9 million or 87.8% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2018, primarily attributable to an increase in the
number of full-time and exclusive Registered Practitioners from 64 as
at 31 March 2018 to 87 as at 31 March 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Employee benefit expenses and remuneration policy

For the year ended 31 March 2019, we incurred employee benefit
expenses of approximately HK$446.4 million, representing 24.3% of
revenue (2018: 26.1%), an increase of approximately HK$105.1
million or 30.8% when compared to the year ended 31 March 2018,
primarily due to an increase in our overall headcount from 1,265 as
at 31 March 2018 to 1,742 as at 31 March 2019 (excluding
Registered Practitioners), as well as the increments to employees’
salaries.

The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented employees by offering
them competitive remuneration packages. Their salaries and
bonuses were determined by reference to their duties, work
experience, performance and prevailing market practices. The Group
also participates in the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme in Hong
Kong, and provides employees with medical insurance coverage. A
share option scheme and a share award scheme are in place to
reward individual employees for their outstanding performance and
contribution to the success of the Group.

Certain share options have been granted to those grantees under
the category “employees and consultants”, please refer to page 51
of the 2017/2018 annual report of the Company. The Company
confirms that all grantees of share options under this category
comprises employees of the Group at the material time.

Marketing and advertising expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group incurred marketing
and advertising expenses of approximately HK$154.5 million,
representing 8.4% of the revenue (2018: 9.7%), an increase of
approximately HK$27.6 million or 21.7% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2018, primarily due to an increased level of
marketing and advertising activities in promotion of the Group and
our new line of businesses.

Rental and related expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group incurred rental and
related expenses of approximately HK$175.6 million, representing
9.6% of the revenue (2018: 10.0%), an increase of approximately
HK$44.6 million or 34.1% when compared to the year ended 31
March 2018, primarily due to the increase in the weighted g.f.a. of
approximately 32,600 square feets during the Reporting Period as
compared to 31 March 2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Credit card expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group incurred credit card
expenses of approximately HK$46.7 million, representing 2.5% of
the revenue (2018: 3.3%), an increase of approximately HK$4.1
million or 9.5% when compared to the year ended 31 March 2018.
Such increase is significantly lower than the increase in sales volume
primarily due to the increase in business generated from non-credit
card transactions.

Other expenses

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group incurred other
operating expenses of approximately HK$113.5 million, an increase
of approximately HK$43.0 million or 61.0% when compared to the
year ended 31 March 2018, primarily due to (i) the professional
expenses incurred as a result of obtaining relevant services from
professional advisers and parties in relation to the transactions
entered into by the Group; and (i) the office expenses incurred as the
scale of the business of the Group increased during the Reporting
Period.

Profit Before Tax

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group has profit before tax
of approximately HK$450.1 million, representing 24.5% of the
revenue which remained stable when compared to that of the year
ended 31 March 2018.

Income Tax Expense

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group incurred income tax
expense of approximately HK$65.6 million, an increase of
approximately HK$13.6 million or 26.1% when compared to the year
ended 31 March 2018, primarily due to the increase in profit before
tax.

Profit for the Year/Profit Margin

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group recorded profit of
approximately HK$384.5 million, representing an increase of
HK$106.4 million or 38.3% when compared to the year ended 31
March 2018, primarily due to our development of new businesses
and efficiently leverage on our integrated multi-discipline strategy.
Our profit margin remains stable at approximately 20.9%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Financial Resources

We continue to maintain a strong financial position with cash and
cash equivalents of HK$367.0 million and with investment-grade
financial instruments with high liquidity of HK$599.8 million as at 31
March 2019. Our working capital was HK$279.8 million. With our
steady cash inflow from operations, coupled with sufficient cash and
bank balances, we have adequate liquidity and financial resources to
meet the working capital requirements as well as to fund its
budgeted expansion plans in the next financial year.

During the Reporting Period, the majority of our cash and bank
balances were in Hong Kong dollar, and as we continue to expand
our operations in the PRC, there will be an increasing amount of our
assets and transactions denominated in Renminbi.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 17 June 2019, the Group entered into a sale and purchase
agreement pursuant to which the Group agreed to acquire 60% of
the issued share capital of Prime Inspire Limited which was
principally engaged in provision of marketing services. Further details
please refer to announcement of the Group dated 18 June 2018.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND COMMITMENTS
Capital Expenditure

Our capital expenditures during the year ended 31 March 2019 were
primarily related to set up of new clinics and services centres,
purchases of operation equipment, which mainly included medical,
dental and beauty devices, and expenditure in leasehold
improvements. We have financed our capital expenditures mainly
through cash flows generated from operating activities.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 March 2019, we do not have any capital commitments in
respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment.

EEEEREI ST

RBEEREXRER
BB ER

RMFBEFAINTBRR  —FE—NF=A
—+t—HENRERREEEYARI367.08EE T
TEBERSESNIRELR T A599858
BIL e RPN EEES279.8BEE L I8
EEESHNETRESRA  EZRZHANRS KR
T RMERANTHESRIBER -
ENEEESEREN T —VRFERMNELERE
RETE -

RBmEME - RANKIEDRE RRITERTIA
AILAHE - MARRAFEETBERER - &
PIAAREFTENEERR B KL -

HESEH

RZZE—AFENA+LtH AEETIEER
& B A ERE WS Prime Inspire Limited
#2317 AN 60% * Prime Inspire Limited £ & ¢
ERHTISHERY - EZFER2HAKEAR
BAE_ZT—N\FNA+NHHRAE -

EXXHRAR

EARZH
AARRBE-T-AFZA=+—HLFEY
AARHEBRRVHDHRBEEL - BEE
EREB(EBREBEE  THRESER) URE
LRENEEENL AN  AAREEEBE
EEBHBRSRBRAEARRHRMAS -
BEARERE

RZZE-NAF=A=1t—0 ARFLEEMFE
BAUWBYE - BE RRENEARAE

o

BEERBEERASEERAT 21
FEHRE 2018/19



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Use of Proceeds from IPO

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately HK$703.4
million, after deducting the underwriting fees and commission and
related expenses paid and payable by us in connection with the IPO.
We have applied, and will continue to apply the net proceeds from
the IPO in accordance with the proposed reallocation as approved
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 20 August
2018 as well as the applicable Listing Rules. As at 31 March 2019,
the remaining unutilised net proceeds balance of HK$12.4 million
would be used for upgrading and improving our information
technology systems.

INDEBTEDNESS
Interest-bearing Liabilities

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had outstanding interest-bearing
bank borrowings of HK$497.7 million and obligations under finance
leases of HK$46.8 million.

Contingent Liabilities and Guarantees

As at 31 March 2019, we had contingent liabilities not provided for in
our financial statements of HK$2.0 million in relation to a bank
guarantee given to a credit card institution for the use of certain
credit card equipment. Save as disclosed herein, the Group had no
significant contingent liabilities and guarantees as at 31 March 2019.

Charge of Assets

As at 31 March 2019, investment properties of HK$163.0 million and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of HK$492.6 million
were pledged for certain bank borrowings and the time deposits of
HK$2.0 million were pledged for banking facilities as security for
credit card instalments programme.

Also, motor vehicles and operation equipment of HK$1.4 million and
HK$52.9 million respectively were held under finance leases.

Gearing Ratio
Gearing ratio equals total debt divided by total equity. As at 31

March 2019, the Group had interest-bearing liabilities of HK$544.5
million and the gearing ratio is 46.7%.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Foreign Currency Risk

The Group undertakes certain operating transactions in foreign
currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency risk, mainly
pertaining to the risk of fluctuations in the Hong Kong dollar and U.S.
dollar against Renminbi.

The Group has not used any derivative contracts to hedge against its
exposure to currency risk. The management manages the currency
risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates
and will consider hedging against significant foreign exchange
exposure should such need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group has no significant interest rate risk. Nevertheless, whilst
the Group has loan facilities with floating interest rates, our surplus
cash is also partially invested into a portfolio of floating rate notes,
which effectively mitigates the interest rate risk.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF
SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT
VENTURES, AND FUTURE PLANS FOR
MATERIAL INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL
ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no significant
investments held by the Company during the Reporting Period, nor
were there any material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures during the Reporting Period. Save as
disclosed in this annual report, there is no plan authorised by the
Board for other material investments or additions of capital assets as
at the date of this annual report.

As at the date of this annual report, all profit guarantees for the
acquisition of New York Medical Group (details of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 23 September
2016) has been met. There are other transactions entered into by the
Group which a profit guarantee is given. However, the profit
guarantee period has not yet expired as at 31 March 2019 nor the
date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board acknowledges the vital importance of good governance
to the Group’s success and sustainability by providing a framework
for the Company to formulate its business strategies and policies,
and to enhance its transparency, accountability and shareholder
value.

The Board has committed to maintaining statutory and regulatory
standards and adhering to the principles of corporate governance
emphasising on transparency, independence, accountability,
responsibility and fairness.

The Company has adopted the principles as set out in the CG Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company has
complied with all code provisions set out in the CG Code during the
Reporting Period, save for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 as
disclosed below.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Specific enquiry has been made of all
the Directors, and the Directors have confirmed that they have
complied with the Model Code throughout the Reporting Period.

Senior management, executives and staff who, because of their
offices in the Company, are likely to possess inside information, have
also been requested to comply with the Model Code. No incident of
non-compliance with the Model Code by such employees was noted
by the Company during the Reporting Period.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

THE BOARD AND THE DIRECTORS
Board Composition

During the Reporting Period, the composition of the Board is as
follow:

Executive Directors

Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lee Gabriel (Chief Operating Officer)

Yeung Chin Wan (resigned on 20 August 2018)

Non-Executive Directors

Luk Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer) (re-designated from
executive director to non-executive director on 20 August 2018)

Dr. Wang David Guowei (elected on 20 August 2018)

Independent Non-executive Directors
(“INEDs, each an “INED”)

Ma Ching Nam

Lam Chi Hang Josekin

Look Andrew

Throughout the Reporting Period, the Board has complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules to have three independent non-
executive Directors who represent more than one-third of the Board
and with one of whom possesses appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.

The Board has received from each INED a written annual
confirmation that of his independence satisfied with the guidelines
set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules, and the nomination
committee of the Board (the “Nomination Committee”) has assessed
the independence of each INED and the Company considers that
each of their independence is in compliance with the Listing Rules
during the Reporting Period as at the date of this annual report. Each
INED will inform the Company in writing as soon as practicable if
there is any change of circumstances with may affect his
independence.

To the best knowledge of the Company, the Directors do not have
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationships with
each other.

After annual assessment by the Nomination Committee, the Board
considers the current structure, size and composition of the Board is
performing a balanced and independent monitoring function on
management practices to complement the Company’s corporate
strategies. The Directors and their biographical details as at the date of
this annual report are set out on pages 68 to 74 of this annual report.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual.

During the Reporting Period, the roles of the Chairman of the Board
(the “Chairman”) and the chief executive officer of the Company (the
“CEO”) have been performed by Mr. Tang Chi Fai (“Mr. Tang”).
Although the dual roles of the Chairman and the CEO constitute a
deviation from the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the Board
believes that having Mr. Tang acting as both the Chairman and the
CEO provides a strong and consistent leadership to the Company
and allows the Company to have more effective planning and
management. Further, in view of Mr. Tang’s extensive experience in
the industry, personal profile and role in the Group and the historical
development of the Group as mentioned in the Prospectus under the
section headed “Our History, Reorganisation and Corporate
Structure” and publications of the Company from time to time, the
Board considers that it is appropriate and beneficial to the business
prospects of the Group that Mr. Tang continues to act as both the
Chairman and the CEO. The Board will keep regularly reviewing the
operations of the Company under Mr. Tang’s leadership, and
considers that the balance of power and authority has been
maintaining amongst each of the Board members and the
management team of the Group (the “Management”), when the roles
and responsibilities of the Chairman and the CEO are being divided
in writing and carried out as below:

The role of the Chairman is focusing on determination of overall
strategies, direction and goal of the Group. The Chairman is also
responsible for leading the Board to effective management of the
Company by, among others, ensuring good corporate governance
practices and procedures, encouraging the Directors to make full
and active contribution to the affairs of the Board, developing a
culture of openness and debate among the Directors so that Board
decisions could fairly reflect consensus, drawing up and approving
Board meetings agenda, and chairing Board meetings.

The CEO, within the powers delegated by the Board from time to
time, is responsible for day-to-day management of the Company and
to implement strategies and major policies decided by the Board
with the support of other executive Director and the Management.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy to comply with
the code provision on board diversity. Under such policy, the
Nomination Committee is delegated to review, assess and
recommend any appointment, re-election or any succession plan of
any directors to the Board from time to time after considering a
number of factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, or professional experience, to allow for
the Company’s business model and specific needs.

Roles and Responsibility of the Board

The executive Board is responsible for setting up the Company’s
corporate strategies, monitoring its implementation and reviewing
operational and financial performance of the Group by making
decisions on major aspects of the Company’s business operations
and other matters, including but not limited to approving and
monitoring key policies, material transactions, business plans, annual
budgets, risk management and internal control systems, annual and
interim results, major capital expenditure and appointment of
Directors.

The non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has diversified industry expertise and professional
knowledge, and provides advisory, adequate check and balances for
effective and constructive contribution to the executive Directors to
safeguard the interests of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole.

Delegation to Management

Day-to-day operational management and administration functions of
the Group and implementation of the corporate strategies of the
Group are delegated to the Management led by the executive
Directors.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for the performance of functions of
corporate governance. During the Reporting Period, the Board has
performed the functions as set out in code provision D.3.1 of the CG
Code.
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Appointment, Re-election, Rotation and Removal of
Directors

The Company has established formal, considered and transparent
procedures for appointment, re-election, rotation, and removal of the
Directors. The Nomination Committee is responsible for considering
the suitability of an individual to act as a Director and making
recommendations to the Board on appointment or re-election of
Directors, succession planning of Directors and assessing the
independence of the INEDs as set out below under sub-section
headed “NOMINATION COMMITTEE”.

Save and except Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin, all other Directors
entered into a service contract or letter of appointment with our
Company for an initial term of three (3) years while Mr. Lam Chi Hang
Josekin entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for an
initial term of two years, which shall be renewed as determined by
the Board or the shareholders. Their term of office each is the period
up to his retirement by rotation or retirement, but eligible for re-
election at annual general meetings of the Company in accordance
with the Articles of Association.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, the Company may by
ordinary resolution at general meetings of the Company elect any
person to be a Director. The Directors shall have power from time to
time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director either to fill
a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. Any Director so
appointed shall hold office only until the first general meeting after his
appointment, and shall then be eligible for re-election at such general
meeting.

At each annual general meeting of the Company, not less than one-
third of the Directors (including those appointed for a specific term)
shall retire from office by rotation provided that each Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at
least once every three years.
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Induction and Continuing Professional Development

of Directors

The Company encourages all Directors to participate in continuous
professional development to further enhance and refresh their
knowledge and skills to ensure their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. The Company received from the
Directors the following records of the training attended during the
Reporting Period on the latest amendments to the Listing Rules and

any other regulatory requirements:
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Lee Gabriel EER v v
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Supply of and Access to Information

Yearly schedule of regular Board meetings and draft agendas of
each regular meeting are made available to the Directors with
sufficient times and at least 14 or 3 days respectively in advance to
encourage the Directors’ involvement. All Directors have full and
timely access to the Management for any information to enable them
to make informed decisions at the Board meetings. The Company
Secretary of the Company ensures that the regulatory Board
procedures are followed.

Members of the Management are usually invited to attend the Board
meetings to promote an effective communication within the Group.
Each Director is authorized to hire external consultants or experts for
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses to
discharge the Director’s responsibilities. The Directors did not
request for separate independent professional advice during the
Reporting Period.

ATTENDANCE RECORDS OF DIRECTORS
AND COMMITTEE MEMBERS

The Directors actively participated in meetings and a summary of the
attendance records of each Director during the Reporting Period are
as follows:
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Meeting attendance/eligible to attend

BRLER REREE
Audit Nomination Remuneration General

Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting

=g BEREEE REEZEE SMEES BRAE
Executive Directors HITEE
Tang Chi Fai e 11/11 N/AZ~iE A 2/2 N/A 8 1/1
Lee Gabriel TER 11/11 N/A 3 N/A7iE A N/ATiE A 1/1
Yeung Chin Wan® BREEe 4/4 N/ATNE A N/ATNEFA N/ATEFA 11
Non-executive directors FEHTES
Luk Kun Shing Ben BEFHFE® 8/11 N/A N A N/A N A N/A N3 B 1/1
Dr. Wang Dana Guowel® ~ FE{E @+ 5/7 N/AZiE B N/ATiE A N/ATE A N/ATiE A
INEDs BYFHTES
Ma Ching Nam BER 8/11 1/2 N/ATEF 1/2 11
Lam Chi Hang Josekin ME1T 9/11 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Look Andrew BER 11/11 2/2 2/2 2/2 1/1
Notes: ® re-designated from executive director to non-executive director on MizE : © RZT-N\FNAZT+HANTESHEAIED

20 August 2018
™ elected on 20 August 2018
o resigned on 20 August 2018
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The Board established three Board committees on 19 February
2016, namely the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”) and the
Nomination Committee and all of which are chaired by an INED or
the Chairman to oversee their respective functions set out below,
and to report to the Board on their decisions or recommendations by
circulating the minutes of the committee meetings to all Board
members. Each committee or committee member is authorized to
hire outside consultants or experts for independent professional
advice at the Company’s expenses to discharge their responsibilities.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established by the Board with its written
terms of reference in compliance with code provision C.3.3 of the
CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit Committee are set out in
the written terms of reference which include reviewing and
supervising the Group’s financial reporting process, risk management
and internal control systems, and providing advices and comments
to the Board. During the Review Period and as at the date of this
annual report, the Audit Committee consists of Mr. Look Andrew as
its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
as its members, all of whom are INEDs. The audit committee of the
Company has reviewed the consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 March 2019. The audit committee of the Company
has also reviewed the accounting principles and practices adopted
by the Company and discussed auditing, internal control and
financial reporting matters.

During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee held two meetings
with the Management, the external auditor of the Company and an
external professional engaged by the Company to review the interim
results and report for 2018/2019 and annual results and reports for
2019 and the accounting principles and practices adopted by the
Group and to consider significant issues on the financial reporting
and compliance procedures, internal control and risk management
systems, effectiveness of the Company’s internal audit functions, the
scope of work and appointment of external auditor, connected
transactions and arrangements of the Company for employees to
raise concerns about possible improprieties.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision B.1.2 of
the CG Code adopting a model of making recommendation to the
Board on the remuneration packages of individual Directors and
senior management. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are set out in the written terms of reference which include
regular monitoring of the remuneration of all the Directors and senior
management to ensure that levels of their remuneration and
compensation are appropriate.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Remuneration Committee consists of Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
as its chairman, and Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew as its
members, all of whom are INEDs.

During the Reporting Period, the Remuneration Committee held one
meeting for considering and recommending to the Board the
remuneration and other benefits paid by the Company to the
Directors and senior management.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established by the Board with its
written terms of reference in compliance with code provision A.5.2 of
the CG Code. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are
set out in the written terms of reference which include selecting and
recommending candidates for directorship, review of the structure,
size and composition of the Board and assessment of the
independence of INEDs.

During the Reporting Period and as at the date of this annual report,
the Nomination Committee consists of Mr. Tang as its chairman,
executive Director, and Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin and Mr. Look
Andrew as its members, both of whom are INEDs.

The Nomination Committee may invite nominations of candidates
from Board members for its consideration. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated
by Board members. The factors in assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate for director include, inter alia, reputation for
integrity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience
that are relevant to the Company’s business and corporate strategy,
willingness to devote adequate time to discharge duties as Board
member, diversity of the Board, and such other perspectives
appropriate to the Company’s business. The Nomination Committee
shall make recommendations for the Board’s consideration and
approval.
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During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee held one
meeting and reviewed the structure, size and composition of the
Board and made recommendation to the Board on re-appointment
of Directors with reference to the board diversity policy adopted by
the Company and assessed the independence of INEDs.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary, Mr. Siu Chun Pong Raymond fulfills the
requirement under Rule 3.28 of the Listing Rules and were
responsible for advisory to the Board on corporate governance
matters during their respective term of appointment of the Reporting
Period. Mr. Siu had taken no less than 15 hours of professional
training during the year ended 31 March 2019.

REMUNERATION OF EXTERNAL AUDITOR

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the remuneration paid to the
external auditor of the Group in respect of the annual audit for the
year ended 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$2,438,000. In addition, HK$568,000 was charged for non-audit
services for certain subsidiaries of the Group. Save as disclosed
above, there was no remuneration paid or payable to the external
auditor of the Company for other non-audit services during the year
ended 31 March 2019.

The Board and the Audit Committee satisfied KPMG, Certified Public
Accountants, of their findings, independence, objectivity and
effectiveness in the annual audit and their audit fees. KPMG, Certified
Public Accountants, are proposed for re-appointment as the
Company’s external auditor at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2019 to give true and fair presentation of the financial position of the
Company in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and for timely financial disclosures under the
Listing Rules and any other regulatory requirements.

The Directors are not aware of material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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The statements as to the auditor’s responsibility of financial reporting
is set out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 75 to 83 of
this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness. The risk management and internal control systems are
designed and being implemented to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve the business objectives of the Group,
and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.

The Management and the executive Directors would identify any
risks associated with the businesses of the Group by considering
both internal and external factors and events from time to time which
include but not limit to political, economic, technology, environmental,
social and human resources. Two approaches are used for risk
identification and evaluation, which are (1) to identify the root causes
of risks, that is, identify the undesirable events or things that could go
wrong and then identify the potential impacts of each factor and event
on the businesses of the Group; and (2) to identify all the essential
functions that the Group are performing or businesses objectives
that the Group are achieving and then identify all the possible modes
by which such functions might fail to perform. Five strategies are
adopted by the Company to manage risks, including (1) to accept
the risk, (2) to avoid the risk, (3) to transfer the risk, (4) to mitigate the
risk, or (5) to exploit the risk.

The Company has engaged an external professional firm to further
its internal audit function and to conduct an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company in respect of the Group’s financial, operational,
compliance controls and risk management for the Reporting Period
and discussed its findings with the Audit Committee and then
reported to the Board. The Board is not aware of any areas of
concern that would have a material impact on the financial position
or businesses of the Group and considers that the risk management
and internal control systems of the Company are generally adequate
and effective and that the Company could maintain the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programs and
budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit and financial
reporting functions during the Reporting Period.
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The Company has been implementing a policy within the Group, to
ensure that all unpublished inside information of the Group shall be
kept confidential until such information is published on the websites
of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited at
www.hkexnews.hk in accordance with requirements of the Listing
Rules or other applicable laws and regulations.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles of Association, any one or more
shareholders holding not less than 10% of the paid up capital of the
Company may deposit at the Company’s principal place of business
in Hong Kong as set out below a written requisition which specifies
the transaction of any business at such meeting and is signed by the
requisitionists to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Board. However, there are no provisions allowing
shareholders to put forward new resolution at a general meeting
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands or the Articles of
Association. Shareholders who wish to move a resolution may
request the Company to convene an extraordinary general meeting
following the aforesaid procedures.

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles of Association, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless recommended by
the Directors for election, be eligible for election as a Director at any
general meeting unless a notice signed by a member (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to propose
such person for election and also a notice signed by the person to
be proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have been lodged
at the head office or at the registered office of the Company provided
that the minimum length of the period, during which such notice(s)
are given, shall be at least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are
submitted after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment of such notice(s)
shall commence on the day after the dispatch of the notice of the
general meeting appointed for such election and end no later than
seven (7) days prior to the date of such general meeting.

Procedures for shareholders to require an extraordinary general
meeting or propose a person for election as a Director are detailed in
the Memorandum and Articles of Association published on the
websites of the Company and Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing
Limited at www.hkexnews.hk.
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The Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar serves the
shareholders with respect to all share registration matters. Specific
enquiries of shareholders and other stakeholders to the Board could
be sent in writing to the Company Secretary of the Company by mail
to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong set out
below:

Union Medical Healthcare Limited

Suites 7-9, L21,

Langham Place Office Tower,
8 Argyle Street,

Mong Kok, Hong Kong.

Shareholders’ rights are further protected when separate resolutions
are proposed at shareholders’ meetings on each substantially
separate issue, including but not limited to election or re-election of
individual director at annual general meeting. All resolutions proposed
at shareholders’ meetings are put to vote by poll pursuant to the
Listing Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION POLICY

In February 2016, the Company adopted a shareholders’
communication policy. Under the policy, the Company
communicates with its shareholders and investors through various
means. Timely publication of interim and annual results
announcements on the latest development of the Company and
press release on the Company’s website and Hong Kong Exchanges
and Clearing Limited’s website at www.hkexnews.hk could keep the
shareholders updated of the Company’s financial position and latest
development. Shareholders are highly recommended to pay attention
to these public information. Annual general meetings could provide
an effective forum for the shareholders to share their views with the
Board. Shareholders are welcome to attend the forthcoming annual
general meeting. The Directors and the external auditor of the
Company would be available at the forthcoming annual general
meeting to answer shareholders’ questions about the annual results
for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the business of the Group.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no amendments in the Memorandum and Articles of
Association during the Reporting Period.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Board is pleased to present their report and audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company include (1) medical services
(excluding aesthetic medical services and any Beauty and Wellness
Services); (2) aesthetic medical services, comprising medical
aesthetics and dental services; (3) beauty and wellness services,
comprising traditional beauty, haircare and ancillary wellness
services; (4) sale of skincare, healthcare and beauty products.

The principal activities of its subsidiaries during the Reporting Period
are set out in note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year ended 31 March
2019 by businesses including geographical segment information is
set out in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements. The
geographical location of customers is determined based on the
location where our services or goods are provided or delivered.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the Group’s business and an indication of likely future
development in the Group’s business are set out in the sections
headed “CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT” and “MANAGEMENT
DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS” on pages 6 to 7 and 8 to 23 of this
annual report respectively. Certain financial key performance
indicators which complement and supplement our financial
disclosures are set out on page 2 of this annual report.
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Key Risks and Uncertainties

The following highlights some of the key risks that affect our
business:

Reputation Risk

We rely significantly on our brand image and reputation. Any failure
to maintain and enhance, or any damage to, our brand image or
reputation could materially and adversely affect the level of market
recognition of, and confidence on our services, and in turn our
business, results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Talent Risk

If we are unable to attract and retain skilled Registered Practitioners
and other competent staff, our business, results of operations,
financial condition and prospects may be materially and adversely
affected.

Customer Risk

Our service focuses on improving our clients’ healthy condition and
physical appearance, and clients have varying expectations of the
magnitude of improvement that may result from our services. If we
fail to properly manage a client’s expectations of the results from our
services, a client may in turn be dissatisfied with the results of our
service, and a disappointed client may, among others, request
refunds, complain to the media and/or the Hong Kong Consumer
Council and file legal claims against us. Such actions from a client
may have a material adverse effect on our reputation, business, and
results of operations, financial condition and prospects.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group considers the importance of environmental affairs and
believes that business development and environment affairs are
highly related. The Group has implemented certain environmental
protection measures to save energy and reduce the consumption of
resources. These policies were supported by our staff and were
implemented effectively.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

As a listed company engages business in Hong Kong, the Group is
subject to various laws and regulations, including, among others,
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
Business Registration Ordinance (Chapter 310 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Inland Revenue Ordinance (Chapter 112 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). The Listing Rules is also applicable to the
Company. Being an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability, it is subject to the Companies Law,
Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the
Cayman Islands.

Our Group has put in place internal controls to ensure compliance of
the same. In addition, as the Group also engages business in more
than one jurisdictions, compliance procedures are in place to ensure
adherence to applicable laws, rules and regulations in those
jurisdictions. Any changes in the applicable laws, rules and
regulations are brought to the attention of relevant employees and
relevant operation units in the Company and its subsidiaries from
time to time.

To the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief on
the date of this annual report, the Company has complied in all
material respects with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the business and operation of the Company.

Relationship with Key Stakeholders

The Group fully understands that staff members, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development. We
are committed to establishing a close relationship with our staff,
enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and providing high-quality
services to our customers so as to ensure the Group’s sustainable
development.
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Staff

Our staff members are regarded as one of the most important assets
of the Group. The Group has been endeavouring to provide our staff
with a fair and harmonious workplace. We offer a competitive
remuneration package and great opportunities for career
advancement based on employees’ performance. The Group intends
to grant share options to outstanding employees to recognise and
reward the employees who have contributed to the Group’s
development. The Group also provides our staff with regular trainings
to keep them abreast of the latest development of the Company and
our industry, and medical related knowledge and skill sets.

Customers

Professionalism and safety have always been our core values. We
are committed to providing the best customer experience to our
customers. Meanwhile, we have a client phone survey system in
order to further our active solicitation of client feedback.

Suppliers

Reliable and quality suppliers are of equal importance in facilitating
us to provide services with high standards of safety and
professionalism. When selecting suppliers, we consider, among
other factors, the suppliers’ reputation, safety record, track record of
performance, quality of goods supplied, price competitiveness,
punctuality of delivery, relationship with our Group, completeness of
certification and credentials provided, service quality and product
offerings. We regularly review and assess our suppliers’ performance
and their qualifications to ensure the quality of our suppliers and that
such suppliers have obtained the applicable licenses (if any), and
update our approved supplier list accordingly.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set
out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 84 to 90 of this
annual report.

Operating Segment Information
The Group is principally engaged in the provision of medical,

aesthetic medical, beauty and wellness services and sale of skincare,
healthcare and beauty products in Hong Kong, Macau and the PRC.
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Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 2 of the
annual report.

The Board recommends the declaration of a final dividend of 6.5 HK
cents per Share and a special dividend of 13.5 HK cents per Share
for the year ended 31 March 2019. The proposed final dividend, if
approved by the shareholders at the AGM, will be paid on or around
6 September 2019 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on 28 August 2019. Details of
the dividend for the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out in note
28 to the consolidated financial statements.

Dividend Policy

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”).
The Board would consider, inter alia, the following factors before
declaring or recommending dividend to the shareholders:

1. financial results of the Company;

2. shareholders’ interests;

3. general business conditions, strategies and future expansion
needs of the Company;

4.  the Company’s capital requirements;

5. the payment of cash dividends to the Company from its
subsidiaries;

6. possible effects on liquidity and financial position of the
Company; and

7. the amount of profit that can be distributed under applicable
accounting standards and other factors that the Board may
deem relevant and appropriate.

Any dividend declared by the Company shall be conducted in
accordance with the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the
Memorandum and Articles of the Company and other applicable
laws and regulations, and shall not affect the normal operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy, as appropriate, which will
include an assessment of the effectiveness of the Dividend Policy
and approve any amendments thereto if necessary.
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Company cares for the community and is willing to take up
corporate social responsibilities to create a more inclusive society.
Not only encouraging volunteer works and giving, the Company also
recognises our staff as an important asset and concern about the
employees related matters such as benefits and support.

Besides, the Company appreciates the importance of environmental
protection and spares no effort in promoting the protection of the
environment. The Company has been commended and given the
public recognition that demonstrates good corporate citizenship as
“Caring Company” from The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

World Green Organisation (“WGO”) — Green Office
Awards Labelling Scheme

The Company has actively promoted the electronical operation and
sales activities recently. Awarded as WGQO'’s “Green Office” Label,
the United Nations Sustainable Development Goals’s “Better World
Company” Label, and the core supporting organisation to Junior
Chamber International (JCl) Hong Kong, the Company has
successfully fulfilled the 150 feasible green criteria from the WGO
which are grouped into the following 9 categories: Energy savings,
Water savings, Waste reduction, Paper/Printing reduction, Green
Procurement, IT use and disposal, Transportation, Education and
awareness, and Green Innovation.
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“Good Employer Charter”

The Company attaches great importance to talents and recognizes
that human resources are one of the important assets of the
Company. Participating in the “Good Employer Charter”, the
Company aims to promote a staff-oriented culture, hoping to
motivate staff morale, enhancing their centripetal force towards the
Group, recognizing their contribution to the group, and laying a solid
foundation for the company’s development.

Special project with Hong Kong University of
Science and Technology

The Company sponsored the Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology and organised a course to enhance patients’ experience,
collecting opinion to optimise the treatment process for patients, also
providing students with the opportunity to train their business
decision-making skills in real society.
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“Love Animals Days” by SPCA Hong Kong

The Company fully supports the “Love Animals Day” organised by
the SPCA Hong Kong. It is supported by the colleagues and
customers of the Company. In addition to donations, many
colleagues put on costumes or accessories printed with animal prints
to support Hong Kong has become an animal friendly city.

Actively Involved in Volunteer Work

The Company is committed to fostering and cultivating relationship
with the community and is sensitive to the community’s culture and
needs. We encourage employees to participate in community
services. We invite employees and their families to join the
community and voluntary services together such as the “Lok Sin
Tong Buddy Mid-Autumn Festival Elderly Visit Activity”, and donation
to the Po Leung Kuk to help those in need in the community.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Reporting Period are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
reserves during the Reporting Period are set out in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders under the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands amounted to HK$39,198,246 (2018:
HK$198,582,067).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group made charitable
donations amounting to HK$3,273,956 (2018: HK$4,777,050).

INDEBTEDNESS

The Group’s indebtedness as at 31 March 2019 is set out on page
22 of this annual report.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME AND SHARE
AWARD SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme and a share award
scheme for the purposes of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of the Group.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME fE R REST 2l

As disclosed in the Prospectus, the Company adopted a share HOBRERAEE AR —RE_A
option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19 February 2016 THHEEBAARERE —RENEERERF
by way of a written resolution of the then sole shareholder of the MEERTRECT S ([EEPRAERTE ) - mEBBIEETEIR
Company and the Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for 10 T HEEHTFR(BEEEMB) B8R AER
years from the Listing Date (both dates inclusive). e

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s share TEREENAREHEALRQNRIRIEFEIRETS
options, which were granted under the Share Option Scheme, during TER L B B R
the Reporting Period:

Closing price
of share
Granted Exercised Expired Cancelled Lapsed Forfeited immediately Exercise
Name or As at during during the during the during the during the during the As Date of before the price of share
category of 1 April  the Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 March grantof  date of grant Exercise period options
participant 2018 Period Period Period Period Period Period 2019 share options  HKS per shares of share options  HK$ per share
REERE
REARR BRED
SEAN RIB-NE REEHH  REEEE REE REE RE MEE R-R-RE BRE W 4|
AHARA mA-A hBd REGR  BEAER  BEAEE  SOMAAY OEAEME  ZA=t-B RUBH BhER BRENGES SRER
Directors
B2
Lee Gabriel 7,350,000 - 380,000) - - - - 6,970,000 26/09/16 262 01/0117-31/12/26 303
X (Note 1)
(RzE1)
735,000 - - - - - - 735,000 18/09/17 255 01/01/27-17/09/27 303
- 735,000 - - - - - 735,000 0211018 471 03/01/28-01/10/28 489
(Note 8)
(Btste)
Yeung Chin Wan 80,000 - 40,000 - - - (40,000) - 26/09/16 262 01/0117-31/12/20 303
(Resigned on
20 August 2018)
REB(R-F-N\§
NAZTREf)
INED
BuksnEs
Ma Ching Nam - 300,000 - - - - - 300,000 21/08/18 549 02/01/19-20/08/28 6.00
St Note 2)
(o)
Employees and
consultants
EERER
In aggregate 392,500 - 122,500) - - - (40,000) 230,000 26/09/16 262 01/0117-31/12/20 303
A
1,000,000 - 250,000) - - - - 750,000 180917 255 01/01/18-31/12/21 303
855,000 - (165,000) 2 " = (70,000) 620,000 18/09/17 2.55 01/01/18-31/12/21 350
300,000 - (100,000) - - - - 200,000 05/1217 37 01/04/18-04112/21 400
- 100,000 - - - - (100,000) - 11/04/18 364 02/0119-3112/22 364
(Note 3)
(i)
- 100,000 - - - - (100,000) - 11/04/18 364 02/0119-31/12/22 400
1que 3
(k)
- 60,000 20,000 - - - (40,000) - 17/04/18 374 02/01/19-31/12/21 400
(the 4
(Btst4)
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Closing price
of share
Granted Exercised Expired Cancelled Lapsed Forfeited immediately Exercise
Name or Asat during during the during the during the during the during the As Date of before the price of share
category of 1 April the Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting Reporting 31 March grantof  date of grant Exercise period options
participant 2018 Period Period Period Period Period Period 2019 share options  HKS per shares of share options  HKS per share
REERH
REARR BIREN
SEAN RZB-NE REEEE REEER REE A& 34 REE  W-F-AF BhE G i&%E
AEDERH mA-8 agbe AEGR  BERER  DEAEE  SOEAAY HEAEME  ZA=t-B RHEH BRET BRENGES BRERL
- 100,000 - - - - - 100,000 24/05/18 59 03/07/18-23/05/28 592
(Note 5)
(Bt3ts)
- 200,000 - - - - - 200,000 24/05/18 592 02/01/19-23/05/28 6.60
(Note 5)
(Kiits)
- 300,000 - - - - - 300,000 24/05/18 592 02/01/20-23/05/28 790
(Note §)
(Kits)
- 400,000 - - - - - 400,000 24/05/18 59 04/01/21-23/05/28 950
(Note §)
(Hts)
- 100,000 - - - - - 100,000 10007/18 522 02/01/19-31/12/23 6.60
(Note 6)
(Fte)
- 500,000 - - - - - 500,000 21/08/18 549 02/01/19-20/08/28 6.00
(Note 2)
(2)
- 100,000 - - - - - 100,000 07/09/18 507 02/01/19-06/09/28 6.00
(Note 7)
(7)
- 230,000 (12,500 - - - - 217,500 0211018 4n 02/01/19-01/10/28 500
(Note 9)
(Hist9)
- 610,000 - - - - - 610,000 02710118 4n 02/01/19-01/10/28 6.00
(No@e 9
(K9
S 30,000 - - - - - 30,000 28/11/18 528 02/01119-27/11/28 6.00
[No@e 10)
(H10
- 130,000 - - - - - 130,000 281118 528 02/01/20-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 10)
(HEH10)
s 230,000 - - - - - 230,000 281118 528 04/01/21-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 10)
(Hz£10)
- 430,000 - - S - - 430,000 28/11/18 528 03/01/22-21/11/28 6.00
[No@e 10)
(HEH10)
- 400,000 - - - - - 400,000 28/1118 528 02/01/23-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 10)
(Hit10)
& 300,000 - - - ~ - 300,000 281118 528 02/01/24-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 10)
(Kiz£10)
- 100,000 - - = = - 100,000 211118 528 02/01/25-27/11/28 6.00
(Note 10)
(Hiz10)
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Notes:

1. The total of 7,350,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in ten equal
tranches from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026.

2. The total of 800,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four tranches from 2
January 2019 to 20 August 2028.

3. The total of 200,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2022.

4. The total of 60,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in three equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2021.

(55 The total of 1,000,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four tranches
from 3 July 2018 to 23 May 2028.

6. The total of 100,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in five equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2023.

7. The total of 100,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 6 September 2028.

8. The total of 735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in one tranche from 3
January 2028 to 1 October 2028.

9. The total of 840,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof
to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in four equal tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 1 October 2028.

10.  The total of 1,620,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder
thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable in seven tranches
from 2 January 2019 to 27 November 2028.

Purpose

The Share Option Scheme is to provide an incentive or reward for
the Grantees (as defined below) for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group.
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Eligible Persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-time
or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or officers
(including executive, non-executive and independent non-executive
Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and any suppliers,
clients, consultants, agents and advisers who, in the sole opinion of the
Board, has contributed or will contribute to the development, growth or
benefit of the Group (collectively, the “Eligible Participants” or “Grantees”)
and whom the Board may in its absolute discretion select.

Maximum Number of shares

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed 10% of the
issued share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date, which is
98,000,000 shares, being 9.99% of the issued share capital of the
Company as at the date of this annual report. The limit may be renewed
at any time provided that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total
number of shares in issue as at the date of the shareholders’ approval.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option Scheme,
the maximum limit on the number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes of our
Comypany must not in aggregate exceed such number of shares as shall
represent 30% of the shares in issue from time to time. No options may
be granted under any schemes of our Company or subsidiaries if such
grant will result in this 30% limit being exceeded.

Maximum Entitlement of Each Eligible Participant

Subject to the requirements under the Listing Rules relating to the grant
of share options to the Directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholders, unless approved by the shareholders at general meeting
in the manner prescribed in the Listing Rules, the maximum entitlerment
of each Eligible Participant is that the total number of shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of the outstanding options granted and to
be granted to such Grantee (including both exercised, cancelled and
outstanding options) under the Share Option Scheme and other
scheme(s) of the Group in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of
the issued share capital of the Company at the date of grant.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EREWE

BEBRAL

RIEBIRIETE - AERALBERERARFHEL
B AR 2 EAEBAFBES  BEES -
HITABREEAB(BRERITES  FHNTE
ERBUFPTER)  UREFS2HAARE
RAEENER - KERENHFEDERSGEEL
BRI EAHER BF - @A REARE
B[ AERSRE|XNTARAD  URE
FeRBHEBMIFEEENAL -

RERHBE

RIR B RO A1 81 7] BE R O BB RO AT e e LA
B8 ETNMEBEBARRRN LA HD EHITRA
#10% -+ RN98,000,000 A& A% 17 - BIAAZAN 4 3 B Hi
EBITIRAE9.99% o [RER A BERF B3 - HEXIR
BAABLEBRRILEE D BITRMNDEED
10% °

TmBREASREAEMARRE  BRIERE
Pt at B R AR BME R E AR BI 2 R B M RTT
LT A 1 RTT B A AR 1T (R T A BE B TTHOAX
BB LR AATSEATRDIETROD
30% ° fm X BB A E B AE 48 L 30% FREE
AR AR AR AN B P B X B (Efa 51 818 A1)
FEARHE -

BERERSHEENEHELR

EEMARTES TETBABXRFTERFEER
R ETMRAARENRRET - BRIERERIRE
A EmRAURENFTRIE - TRIGHREE
RS2 EENARE LR ARBIEERER S LA E
B Ear S A E R+ @ B HEmARARE &
BT RENEARITEERE(BESTE 25
SHREARITERERE) BT mMBITRE T %
THRDBETEBEARARNFHBHNE %
TTREA1% ©

BEERBEERASEERAT 49
FEHRE 2018/19



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

E=EWRE

Option Period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme during a period notified or to
be notified by the Board.

Minimum Period for which an Option must be held
before it is Exercised

The period within which an option may be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its absolute discretion,
provided that such period is consistent with any other terms and
condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on Acceptance of the Option

A consideration of HK$1 is payable on or before the last day for
acceptance of the option granted under the Share Option Scheme
set out in the offer document from time to time.

Basis of Determining the Subscription Price

The subscription price for shares under the Share Option Scheme
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it must
be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the offer day; and
(i) the average of the closing prices of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the five Business Days
immediately preceding the offer date; and (i) the nominal value of a
share.

The Remaining Life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both dates inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.

50 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

BIRERE
BREREZTSRAIGETAMNNBEARE
BT B IRR 2 RE AR D 1TE »

BRERTENEFSENREHR

BRERERBRES SN TENPNHEESSE S
REBET  EXIEA LB SR EME
AL BRR B fRAF — 2 o

BB RENNR

ZAXF T B AREBRE IR L AR
BENRRRBE B AT NRE1BT -

BERBENEE

BRAEIMIBRNNRBESHESS2RE
BEE HAZLRUTRENRSE  ()KH

REBLHABHEBIAERERERMBOKHIE :
K (i) B M EEEX B AT A ER S BER A
FRBERMBHFHEHE  Ki) KOEE -

BB R BRI BRI

BRIEAEL AT AR L - FESHEERT - BB AT &l
BLETRAMEEMASR+BFER(BEER
MHE) B TFERER -



Share options granted other than those under Share
Option Scheme

In addition to the share options granted in accordance with the
Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Group granted share options by specific mandate to GCP Properties
Limited (“GCP”), which entitle GCP to subscribe for 4,349,000
shares in the Company at an exercise price of HK$5.53 per share
with a contractual life of three years, as part of the consideration to
acquire an unlisted equity investment. The acquisition was completed
on 20 August 2018. The share options vested immediately following
the completion of the acquisition of the unlisted equity investment.

As at 31 March 2019, all of the share options granted to GCP are
outstanding and the remaining contractual life is 2.39 years.

Share Award Scheme

The Company also adopted a share award scheme (the “Share
Award Scheme”) on 27 June 2016 with a summary of the Share
Award Scheme rules published in the announcement dated 29 June
2016. On 30 September 2016, the Company entered into a deed of
variation to the trust deed of the Share Award Scheme (the “Deed of
Variation”) to make certain changes to the said trust deed, to the
effect that as from 30 September 2016, all core connected persons
(as defined in the Listing Rules) of the Company be excluded from
participating in the Share Award Scheme. Under the Share Award
Scheme, the Group’s employees, selected by the Board are entitled
to participate.

The objectives of the Share Award Scheme are (i) to recognize the
contributions by certain employees and to provide them with
incentives in order to retain them for the continual operation and
development of the Group; and (i) to attract suitable personnel for
further development of the Group.

The Share Award Scheme is subject to the administration of the
Board and the independent trustee in accordance with the Share
Award Scheme rules and the trust deed of the Share Award
Scheme. The Share Award Scheme is valid and effective from the
date of adoption for 10 years or such date of early termination as
determined by the Board, provided that such termination shall not
affect any subsisting right of any eligible persons selected for
participation in the Share Award Scheme.
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The Board shall not make any further award of awarded shares
which will result in the nominal value of the shares awarded by the
Board under the Share Award Scheme exceeding 10% of the issued
share capital of the Company from time to time. The maximum
number of shares which may be awarded to a selected employee
under the Share Award Scheme shall not exceed 1% of the issued

share capital of the Company from time to time.

The following table discloses movements in the Company’s shares
awarded (“Awarded Shares”) under the Share Award Scheme during

the Reporting Period:

EFEETEE—SROBEROMBEEEER
Az {0 BB AT 813X th O B BB B AN 1 B AN B
EBRITRAN10% © RBEB D REF B EEER
TREBRM RN ZABE §TBBARERE
BERITIRAR 1% °

FREBNRS BRAR DIRER O RRH 8%
el (s ([ R ) e

Vesting date
As at Date of grant  of Awarded Granted Vested  Forfeited Lapsed As at

Name or category 1 April  of Awarded Shares during the during the during during 31 March
of participant 2018 Shares (Note 1) period period the period the period 2019

RZE-N\§ ZBRD RBROEE RZE-h§
SEABEZRER mA—-H REBEH BH(ME) Hegn HaRBE  HREE Bk =ZA=t-B
Employees
=]
In aggregate 159,000 - 02-01-19 - - (159,000) - -
st
In aggregate 79,000 - 02-01-20 - - - - 79,000
st
Notes: Miak
1. Upon satisfaction of the relevant vesting criteria and conditions, the 1. FEEREBEARGMERE  REIRDENREE

Awarded Shares shall be transferred and released to the grantees on
relevant vesting date.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Reporting Period were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tang Chi Fai (Chairman and CEQO)

Mr. Lee Gabriel (Chief Operating Officer)

Mr. Yeung Chin Wan (resigned on 20 August 2018)
Non-Executive Directors

Luk Kun Shing Ben (Chief Information Officer) (re-designated from

executive director to non-executive director on 20 August 2018)
Dr. Wang David Guowei (elected on 20 August 2018)
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Ching Nam
Mr. Lam Chi Hang Josekin
Mr. Look Andrew

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, Mr. Lee
Gabriel, Mr. Ma Ching Nam and Mr. Look Andrew will retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

The Company has arranged appropriate liabilities insurance to
indemnify the Directors against any liabilities and costs arising from
the business of the Group.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits of
the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses,
damages and expenses which they or any of them shall or may incur
or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty, or supposed duty in relation
thereto.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out in the section headed “BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS
OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT” on pages 68 to 74
of this annual report.

CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there has been no change in
information required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of
the Listing Rules.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. After review by the
Nomination Committee, the Company considered all of the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the
date of this annual report.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BAKHTES

HBtmkE
MATTSEE
PEREAE

RIBEBERAMREAG  TREE  FEW
TERERELEBRERERRBFAS LRI
ARNAERLMEERET -

BEFNRE

AABELZHEENETRRABEEEAAE
BRI B EMEEMKA -

REBAGEREAN  SRESARARANEE
MABEESBE  ZFALTHEMNZFALRR
TEREXNBTREREMEL - BENIERNL
MESMARKKENAARR  BF - WE -
B - BERFAX - ATERRLHLZEMNEE -

EEREREEENEEFE

AEBEENEREEENEEFBHRNANFR
FERETAR[EERERERENMEFIE & -

BAFRAWEIN  BEENEFARE ETR
BIIZ513.51B(1) 158 T 5 -

BUMERE

ARRCRESBIFATESRIE LHRAE
BABEBY MIFL N EEERE - KIREBEE
SRR ARBERA RAFHREH =85
VIATESYRBIAL -

BEERBEERASEERAT 53
FEHRE 2018/19



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
E=EWRE

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The remuneration paid to and/or entitled by each of the Directors
and the five highest paid individuals for the year ended 31 March
2019 is set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments and
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS OR
LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract or a letter of appointment
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial part
of the Company’s business was entered into or existed during the
Reporting Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No Director or his connected entity had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries was a party during the Reporting Period and
required to be disclosed under the Listing Rules.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, no transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s business in
which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or a controlling
shareholder of the Company was a party, and in which a Director
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the
end of the Reporting Period or at any time during the Reporting
Period.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, save for the competing businesses as
disclosed below, none of the Directors had any interest in a business
other than the Group, which competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group, and required
to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Tang was interested in a
company which is not included in the Group (the “Relevant
Company”).
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Name of the
Relevant Company Nature of business Board of Directors Size of business
HEARER ERHE Bxg ERHRE
Healthy Concept (HK) Limited Supply of skincare and Mr. Tang Revenue in 2018: less than
(“Healthy Concept”) (note 1) beauty products/ HK$15.4 million
Operation of call centre Net profit in 2018: less than
(note 2) HK$12.9 million (note 3)
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Notes:

1. Healthy Concept is a company incorporated under the laws of Hong Kong
with limited liability on 26 May 2006, and is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang.

2. Healthy Concept operates its business in Hong Kong. Its target customers
in respect of the supply of skincare and beauty products are primarily
aesthetic medical or traditional beauty service providers. Separately, it also
operates a call centre which targets individual customers. The personnel of
the call centre contact individual customers and refer them to the providers
of body screening services, beauty products and beauty services,
respectively, for referral income. However, Healthy Concept does not
provide any aesthetic medical or traditional beauty services, nor body
screening services.

3. The figures are determined by reference to the audited financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2018 of the respective Relevant Company.

The Group offers a broad range of services and products, including
medical services, aesthetic medical services, beauty and wellness
services, skincare, healthcare and beauty products, primarily of
private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB, Suissebeaute and
re:HEALTH. The Group does not focus on mass market retailing of
products and substantially all of skincare, healthcare and beauty
products are sold to the clients of the Group’s services.

The Directors are of the view that business activities are clearly
delineated from that of the Relevant Company, since the Group does
not focus on the supply and distribution of medical consumables,
devices and equipment, or skincare, healthcare and beauty
products. Instead, the Group only focuses on (i) applying medical
consumables, devices and equipment during the course of provision
of service; and (i) selling skincare, healthcare and beauty products to
the clients of the Group’s services. In contrast, the Relevant
Company focuses on the supply and distribution of such goods to
aesthetic medical service providers and traditional beauty service
providers in Hong Kong. Furthermore, the Relevant Company does
not supply and distribute any skincare, healthcare and beauty
products of the Group’s private-label brands, PRODERMA LAB,
Suissebeaute and re:HEALTH.

Based on the above, the Directors are of the view that the
businesses conducted by the Relevant Company do not form part
of, and are not in line with the core business of the Group, and as
such do not compete and are unlikely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the Group’s business.
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Deed of Non-competition

As disclosed in the Prospectus, pursuant to the non-competition
undertakings set out in the deed of non-competition dated 19
February 2016, each of Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding
Limited (“Union Medical Care”), our controlling shareholders, have
undertaken to the Company (for itself and on behalf of its
subsidiaries) that, amongst other things, each of them is not or will
not, and will procure each of their respective close associates, to be
interested, involved or engaged in or concerned with, directly or
indirectly, any business which is in any respect in competition with or
similar to or is likely to be in competition with the business of the
Group during the period commencing from the Listing Date and
ending on the occurrence of the earliest of (i) the day on which its
shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange or other recognised
stock exchange; (i) the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical
Care cease to be controlling shareholder of the Company; and (iii)
the day on which Mr. Tang and/or Union Medical Care beneficially
own or are interested in all the issued ordinary shares of the
Company.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
implementation of the deed of non-competition and are of the view
that the controlling shareholders have complied with its undertakings
given under the deed of non-competition for the year ended 31
March 2019. As at 31 March 2019, no new business opportunity has
been notified by the controlling shareholders.

Independence from the controlling shareholders

The Board believes that the Group is capable of carrying on its
business independent of, and does not place undue reliance on Mr.
Tang and/or Union Medical Care or their respective close associates,
taking into consideration the factors of financial independence,
operational independence and management independence when the
facts and reasons as disclosed in the Prospectus applied to the
Group during the Reporting Period.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2019, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executives in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong, the
“SFO”)), which (a) were required to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions which they are taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO) or (b) as recorded
in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO or (c) otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers were as follows:

Interests in shares and underlying shares or in an

EERFETHAESRKRMD - HER
PREZNEZERKXE

RZFB-NEF=ZA=1+—H EFRTETHA
BRARBHEEMAREE (EELEEED
FENMBFFRIPEGRMN((EHFRAEEG ] F
XVED) BB - MERAR D R ERERE T A (o) IR
B RHERGIEXVEE 7 RE 8N BMAMEA
NE| LB Rz s R R (BIRREE 7 M
BRIz BRGXKEERRBER < Mok
BIHOBLRARAREES KB KRIE
352 FRETHFENBETMAK(C) LHHTAES
EITRF R ZNRETRARITHNE AR E R

PRI R K

KRBT

RGO RAEBRO RS2 BB LB

associated corporation of the Company ESE
Approximate
Number of percentage of
underlying the total issued
Number of shares held share capital of
Name of Director/ shares under equity the Company
Chief Executive Capacity interested derivatives (Note 1)
RRAET4E ERRNEERIT
BEE IE BEER IATHEEZ R A B R
THABKE 51 2R EE HERGHE B (MEE1)
Tang Chi Fai Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 727,834,230 (L) 73.93%
B interest in a controlled corporation (Note 2)
BEREAA - FLBRERMPNZET (FigEE2)
EE R
Lee Gabriel Beneficial owner, interest of spouse and 3,251,000 (L) 8,440,000 1.19%
FER interest in a controlled corporation (Note 3) (Note 4)
EnEAA BRSNS GEx) (Pt5E4)
EE RS
Luk Kun Shing Ben Beneficial owner 2,487,500 (L) - 0.25%
BERBR ERBAA
Lam Chi Hang Josekin Beneficial owner 27,000(L) - 0.003%
MATT BEaEAA
Ma Ching Nam Beneficial owner = 300,000 0.03%
AR ExBEAA (Note 5)
(F5E5)
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denotes long position.

Total numbers of issued shares as at 31 March 2019 was 984,519,948.

Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care Holding Limited (“Union Medical Care”)
are the controlling shareholders of the Company. Union Medical Care is
entirely owned by Mr. Tang. Out of 727,834,230 shares that Mr. Tang was
interested in, (i) 2,654,000 shares were held by Ms. Yau Ming Li, the spouse
of Mr. Tang, and (i) 721,231,230 shares were held by Union Medical Care
and Mr. Tang was therefore deemed to be interested in such 721,231,230
shares under Part XV of SFO.

Out of 3,251,000 shares that Mr. Lee was interested in, (i) 80,000 shares
were held by Ms. Fan Yui Sze, the spouse of Mr. Lee, and (i) 989,000
shares were held by Nice Empire Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr.
Lee, and Mr. Lee was therefore deemed to be interested in such 80,000
shares and 989,000 shares under Part XV of the SFO.

8,440,000 share options include (i) 1,825,000 share options, each of which
entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable
from 1 January 2017 to 31 December 2026, (ii) 5,145,000 share options,
each of which entitles the holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share in
seven equal tranches from 2 January 2020 to 31 December 2026, (iii)
735,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder thereof to
subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 1 January 2027 to 17
September 2027, and (iv) 735,000 share options, each of which entities the
holder thereof to subscribe for one (1) share, shall be exercisable from 3
January 2028 to 1 October 2028.

300,000 share options, each of which entitles the holder to subscribe for
one (1) shares, shall be exercisable in two tranches from 2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028.
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Interest in shares and underlying shares of

A2 B AR B A B B9 IR 40 % AE BB IR 4 Y

associated corporation(s) of the Company =
Approximate
percentage of
Number of Number of  the total issued
shares underlying share capital
Name of Name of interested in shares held of the
Director/Chief associated the associated under equity associated
Executive corporation Capacity corporation derivatives corporation
DRAFTETR  (HEEEZEEZD
Rigs L EES FAENEE BRITRAH
EE TETRAERS BB EEER 5% EENROHAE ROEE BARDL
Tang Chi Fai Union Medical Care Beneficial owner 20 - 100%
e Holding Limited ~ E#m#BA (Note 1) (BiH&E1)
Note: M EE -
(L)  denotes long position. L  IEEFE-
1. The 2 shares in which Mr. Tang was interested in were ordinary shares of 1lc B 5 A B B HE 2 9% 2 AR AR 19 & Union Medlical Care

Union Medical Care.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, so far as is known
to any Directors or chief executives of the Company, none of the
Directors or chief executives of the Company had any interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which (a) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which
they were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or (b) were required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be
entered in the register referred to therein or (c) were required,
pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEFWRE

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDER’S INTERESTS FERRRRORBERD N ERR
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND RE
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2019, other than interests disclosed above in respect NRZE-NF=A=1t—"H8 BAARESFKF
of the Directors and chief executives of the Company, the following BABAER EXBEAREZR - AN ATRAK
persons had or were deemed or taken to have interests or short N AR S AR RR () R B 1R 15 B 5 N H B &
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which EXVEBE2 MIN G BTIRBE ZERIORE
would fall to be disclosed under the provision of Divisions 2 and 3 of a8k AR AR IR 75 55 K B & 161 28 336 15 1R
Part XV of the SFO as recorded in the register kept by the Company F2EDZMAS AR T 5%k A B BEITIRA
pursuant to section 336 of the SFO or who was, directly or indirectly, hEE R AR -

interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company.

Interests in shares and underlying shares of the R QT[R40 R EE RS ER
Company

Approximate
percentage of the
total issued share

capital of the

Number of Company
Name of shareholders Capacity shares interested (Note 1)
R NEEE
2RITREN
‘EEREREN BHAED
BREE HE 514 RO E e
Union Medical Care (Note 2) Beneficial owner 721,231,230 (L) 73.34%
Union Medical Care (F##£2) ExEAA
Yau Ming Li (Note 3) Interest of spouse 727,834,230 (L) 73.93%
ERBAF] (B 5E3) [
OrbiMed Advisors Il Limited (note 4) Interest in controlled corporations 63,806,686(L) 6.49%
OrbiMed Advisors Ill Limited (Fifst4) S IEHDEE#ELS
OrbiMed Asia GP lll, L.P. (note 4) Interest in a controlled corporation 63,806,686(L) 6.49%
OrbiMed Asia GP Ill, L.P. (Ffz£4) R EE R
OrbiMed Asia Partners Ill, L.P. Beneficial owner 63,806,686(L) 6.49%
OrbiMed Asia Partners Il L.P. En#EEA
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L) Denotes as long position.
S) Denotes as short position.

1. Total number of issued shares as at 31 March 2019 was 984,519,948.

o Mr. Tang and Union Medical Care are the controlling shareholders of the
Company. Union Medical Care is wholly-owned by Mr. Tang.

3. Ms. Yau is the spouse of Mr. Tang, and Ms. Yau was therefore deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company in which Mr. Tang was
interested under Part XV of the SFO.

4. According to the information in the disclosure of interests forms of OrbiMed
Advisors lll Limited (“Orbi A 1lI”), OrbiMed Asia GP llI, L.P. (“Orbi A GP”),
Orbi A lll holds 100% indirect interest in Orbi A Ill; and Orbi A GP holds 2%
direct interest in OrbiMed Asia Partners I, L.P. Orbi A Il and Orbi A GP
were therefore deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company
which are owned by OrbiMed Asia Partners lll, L.P. under Part XV of the
SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, the Directors have
not been notified by any person (other than the Directors or chief
executives of the Company) who had interests or short position in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save and except the Share Option Scheme and the Share Award
Scheme, at no time during the Reporting Period was the Company
or any of its subsidiaries or a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2019, the Group employed approximately 1,829
(2018: 1,329) permanent employees in Hong Kong, Macau and the
PRC.
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The Group is aware of the importance of human resources and is
dedicated to retaining competent and talented directors and
employees by offering them competitive remuneration packages,
their salaries and bonuses were determined by reference to their
duties, work experience, performance and prevailing market
practices. The Group also participates in the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF”) scheme in Hong Kong, and provides employees with
medical insurance coverage. No forfeited contribution is available to
reduce the contribution payable in the future years. The MPF
contributions charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss
represent the contributions payable to the funds by the Group. A
Share Option Scheme and a share award scheme are in place to
reward individual employees for their outstanding performance and
contribution to the success of the Group.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of material related party transactions of the Group undertaken
in the normal course of business are set out in note 34 to the
consolidated financial statements. None of which is required to be
disclosed under Rule 14A of the Listing Rules.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the Reporting Period, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s
listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association or the laws of Cayman Islands which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
annual report, there is sufficient public float of the Company’s
securities as required under the Listing Rules.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of
revenue or sales attributable to the Group’s five largest customers
represented less than 30% of the Group’s total revenue. The
aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five
largest suppliers represented less than 30% of the Group’s total
purchases.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors,
their respective close associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any direct/indirect interest in these major
suppliers or customers during the year ended 31 March 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The text of the corporate governance report is set out on pages 24
to 36 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is in the process of preparing its environmental, social
and governance report for the year ended 31 March 2019 and will
publish it on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website in due course.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2019 have
been audited by KPMG, Certified Public Accountants, who will retire
and, being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment at
the forthcoming AGM. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG
as the auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
AGM.

On behalf of the Board
Tang Chi Fai
Chairman

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT

INVESTOR CALENDAR

28 November 2018
—F-N\FT—AZ=+NH
28 December 2018
—E-NF+ZA=+NR
26 June 2019
—E-AFRAZTARA
15 August 2019 (4:30 p.m.)

—E-NAFENATRB(TFF4E309)

21 August 2019
—ZT-AENRAZ+—H
28 August 2019

—ZE-AENARZTAR

6 September 2019

“E-hFAAKAE
INVESTOR RELATIONS ACTIVITIES

We are highly supportive to investor relations activities. In order to
facilitate a two-way communication between the Company,
shareholders and the investment community, through platforms
including domestic and international non-deal roadshows, investor
meetings, annual general meeting, company meetings,
teleconferences and emails, we made frequent contact with
shareholders, analysts, fund managers and potential investors.

During the Reporting Period, our management attended over 140
one-on-one and Group meetings and actively participated in investor
conferences and non-deal roadshows in Hong Kong, Shenzhen,
Shanghai, Guangzhou and Beijing meeting with over 250 investors.

REEHR®

2018/19 interim results announcement

BN NFPHEERE

Payment of interim dividend and special dividend

AN AR HARR B R Rl AR B

2018/19 annual results announcement

ZE-NNEFEEEERE

Record Date and Time (for determination of
shareholders who are entitled to attend and
vote at annual general meeting)

L8k BB N R (AREE & B8R
BRRBAFAREUNE LFREZBRRHHN

Annual General Meeting

BRERBFRE

Record Date (for determination of
shareholders who qualify for
the final dividend and special dividend)

FC8E B HA (LARETE & B A IWERCR BAR B
FrRIE 2 R & 17)

Payment of final dividend and special dividend
in form of cash
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Major investor conferences that we participated in 2018/19 are set BN )\ —NE2NNTFTEREELSE

out below: AT -

Year Month Event

F4 =kvi) =4

2018 June Industrial Securities Greater China Market Interim Strategy Forum 2019
—E-N\F A FEFESF2019F AP EMISH KBS

2018 October China Galaxy Securities Investment Conference

—E-N\F +A RAFEFREENT G

2019 February TF Securities Investment Conference

—E-NEF s REFEFRIE g
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SHARE INFORMATION

Company Name
YNSIEATH]
Listing

isi)

Stock Code

AR 1 5%

Listing Date

L HEf

Board lot

BFEEEN

Issued share capital as at 31 March 2019

TE-NFZA=+TBRMEBITEA
INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Union Medical Healthcare Limited — Corporate Communications
and Investor Relations Department

Tel: (852) 3975 4798

Email: ir@umhgp.com

SHAREHOLDERS SERVICE AND ENQUIRIES

For enquiries about your shareholding including change of name or
address, transfer of shares, loss of share certificates or dividend
cheques, registrations and requests for annual or interim report
copies, please contact the Company’s branch share registrar and
transfer office:

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2862 8555

Fax: (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

Email: hkinfo@computershare.com.hk

Website: www.computershare.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS REPORT
REBEBERRSE

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
BEAEREESEEERARA
The Main Board of

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BEBBMERIMAERARER
2138
2138
11 March 2016
—E-R"F=A+—H
1,000 shares
1,000 A& A% 17
984,519,948 shares
984,519,948 B& A% 15

REEBEIR

BEEERBESEAERAR — DEEMARKE
EHRERED

E &5 1 (852) 3975 4798

EH : ir@umhgp.com

RERBRBREH

AW RTRE(BESARMEE - RS
B AR ENR LR RERRER AL
IR ) MEH  AREARFRGBRERE
PR :

BEBFRRIFAFELEARA
%5’%5’%@%)%7(@%183%
AFFRN17I81712-17165R4H

FaE 1 (852) 2862 8555

{EE& : (852) 2865 0990/2529 6087

B H : hkinfo@computershare.com.hk
#94E : www.computershare.com
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EEZMNEREEAEBHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

TANG Chi Fai, aged 40, is the Chairman of the Board, the CEO, our
executive Director and chairman of the Nomination Committee. He is
a controlling shareholder of the Company and he founded our Group
on 23 November 2005. He is responsible for the overall management
and strategic planning and development of our Group. Mr. Tang is
also a director of various subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Tang has more than 17 years of experience in management and
the aesthetic medical and medical healthcare industries. Mr. Tang
has diversified experiences ranging from the initial establishment and
business development of medical aesthetic clinics and beauty
centres, the development of marketing strategies and maintenance
of sales channels.

From September 1998 to May 2001, Mr. Tang attended the
University of Hong Kong where he was enrolled in the bachelor of
medicine and the bachelor of surgery programmes before deciding
to pursue a different career path. From September 2001 to February
2005, Mr. Tang enrolled in the bachelor of business administration in
accounting and finance at the University of Hong Kong and worked
on a part-time basis before deciding to switch to full-time
employment. Mr. Tang obtained Certificate IV in Training and
Assessment from Northern Melbourne Institute of Technical and
Further Education in September 2009 and the executive master of
business administration degree from the University of Hull in January
2014. Mr. Tang is an Elizabeth Wordsworth Fellow at St. Hugh’s
College, University of Oxford.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEI\/IENT

LEE Gabriel, aged 40, is the chief operating officer and our
executive Director. He is responsible for the management of day-to-
day operations for our Group.

Mr. Lee has over 17 years of experience in business management.
Prior to joining our Group in April 2014, from July 2001 to April 2014,
Mr. Lee worked at Cathay Pacific Airways Limited (BIZ=fiZz= AR A
A]) (“Cathay Pacific”), an international airline listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 293). During his employment
with Cathay Pacific, Mr. Lee was seconded to Air China Cargo
Company Limited (7 REBMZEAMRAF) in Beiing, a state-
owned airline enterprise in the PRC, from March 2011 to July 2011
where he served as the assistant president of its commercial (sales
and marketing) division. From July 2007 to July 2009, he was
seconded to Hong Kong Dragon Airlines Ltd. in Shanghai, the PRC,
where he served as a manager of marketing & sales in Eastern
China.

Mr. Lee graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a bachelor
of business administration degree in accounting and finance in July
2001. In March 2007, Mr. Lee attended the SWIRE Management
Programme organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in
Singapore. Mr. Lee also attended the SWIRE Accounting and
Control Programme and SWIRE Advanced Management Programme
organised by INSEAD Graduate Business School in Fontainebleau,
France from October to November 2010 and from May to June
2013, respectively.
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EENSREEANBBE

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

LUK Kun Shing Ben, aged 40, has more than 7 years of experience
in the aesthetic medical industry, and over 15 years of experience in
the information technology industry. Prior to joining our Group in
March 2010, from January 2011 to February 2014, Mr. Luk served
as a software engineer at Google (Hong Kong) Limited, a subsidiary
of Google Inc., specialising in internet-related services and products.
From December 2003 to December 2010, he was a software
engineer at Google Inc., in Mountain View, California, the United
States and involved in the implementation of Google Maps.

Mr. Luk graduated from Cornell University with a bachelor of science
degree in computer science in August 2000 and Stanford University
with a master of science degree in computer science in June 2003.
Mr. Luk was appointed as the Engineering Site Lead at Google
Beijing. The Board believes that his role in Google Beijing will allow
him to be in touch with the state-of-the-art technology and Mr. Luk
will continue to advise the Company to enhance its IT systems and
access to the latest IT resources.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

WANG David Guowei, aged 57, has over 20 years of experience in
the medical industry. Dr. Wang is the senior managing director of
Asia at OrbiMed Advisors LLC, an investment fund with a focus on
healthcare industry, where he has worked from August 2011. Dr.
Wang was a director of Response Biomedical Corp. (Stock Code:
RBM), a company listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange, from
October 2011 to May 2015. From April 2006 to July 2011, he served
as managing director at WI Harper Group, responsible for investment
activities in life sciences and healthcare areas. From March 2010 to
July 2012, he served on the board of directors of Edan instruments,
Inc. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock
code: 300206), a provider of advanced electronic medical
equipments where he also served on both the audit committee and
strategic committee. From October 2012 to May 2019, he served on
the board of directors of Suzhou Medical System Technology Co.,
Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock
code: 603990).

Dr. Wang is now serving on the board of directors of Amoy
Diagnostics Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300685), and serving on the boards of
directors of AK Medical Holdings Limited (a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1789).

Dr. Wang received his doctorate in developmental biology from
California Institute of Technology in June 1995. He received his
bachelor degree in medicine from Beijing Medical University (1t 7 &
FLKE2) (currently known as Peking University Health Science Centre
(AERARZEEED) in July 1986.
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EENSREEANBBE

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

MA Ching Nam, aged 66, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Ma is also a member of
each of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee. Mr. Ma
has been practising law for over 36 years. He was admitted as a solicitor
in England and Wales, Hong Kong, Australia and Singapore. He
currently serves as senior partner of Hastings & Co, Solicitors &
Notaries, a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr. Ma is also a Notary Public, China
Appointed Attesting Officer and Civil Celebrant. He was the president of
the Hong Kong Society of Notaries from 2007 to 2013.

Mr. Ma currently serves as directors of Tai Sang Bank Limited,
Heptacontinental Group of companies, Ma Kam Ming Company
Limited, Ma Kam Ming Charitable Foundation and Ma’s Enterprises
Company Limited. He is also an independent non-executive director
of Time Watch Investments Limited which was listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 2033). Mr. Ma has also
been a director and Vice Chairman of Po Leung Kuk since 2009 and
2014 respectively.

Mr. Ma is also a member of the Hospital Governing Committee of
Grantham Hospital in Hong Kong, a member of the Standing
Committee on Language Education and Research (SCOLAR) in
Hong Kong, and a council member of Hong Kong St. John
Ambulance. He has been appointed as a member of Political and
Consultative Conference in Hunan Province, PRC. He was also the
past Chairman of St. Paul’s Co-educational College Alumni
Association. Mr. Ma graduated from the University of Hull with a
bachelor of science degree in economics with honours in 1977.
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

LAM Chi Hang Josekin (#kAI1T), aged 39, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 14 September 2017. Mr.
Lam is also a member of each of the Audit Committee and the
Nomination Committee, as well as the chairman of the Remuneration
Committee.

Mr. Lam has extensive knowledge and over 18 years of experience
in business consultancy and financial industry. Prior to setting up and
running his own business consultancy and real estate brokerage
firms in 2009 and 2014 respectively, Mr. Lam was a consultant at
Bain & Co, Inc , a management consulting Company. Mr. Lam was
the acting chief executive officer of Sanook.com, a subsidiary of
Tencent Holdings Limited (“Tencent”), a Company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 700). Prior to joining the
Group, Mr. Lam last held the position as a director of strategy
department of Tencent. Mr. Lam graduated from Tufts University
with a Bachelor of Arts degree in Quantitative Economics and
International Relations in May 2001 and the University of Chicago
Booth School of Business with a Master of Business Administration
in June 2007.

EZNEREREABBE
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BIOGRAPHY OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSREEANBBE

LOOK Andrew, aged 55, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director on 19 February 2016. Mr. Look is also a member
of each of the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, as well as the chairman of the Audit Committee.

Mr. Look holds a bachelor of commerce degree from the University
of Toronto and has over 26 years’ experience in the equity
investment analysis of Hong Kong and China stock markets. From
2000 to 2008, Mr. Look served in Union Bank of Switzerland (“UBS”)
as the head of Hong Kong research, strategy and product. He was
rated as the best Hong Kong strategist and best analyst by the
Asiamoney magazine, a leading monthly financial and capital markets
publication for corporate and finance readers and investors, in 2001,
2002, 2003, 2005, 2006 and 2007. Mr. Look is currently the Chief
Investment Officer of the asset management business of Tou Rong
Chang Fu Group Limited (Stock code: 850), a company listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange. Mr. Look is also currently an
independent non-executive director of Hung Fook Tong Group
Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1446), Citic Resources Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1205) and Ka Shui International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 822), all of which are listed on the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive director of
TCL Communication Technology Holdings Limited (a company
delisted on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange on 30 September 2016)
from September 2010 to September 2016, an independent non-
executive director of Man Sang Jewellery Holdings Limited (Stock
Code: 1466, a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange)
from September 2014 to December 2016 and an independent non-
executive director of Cowell e Holdings Inc (Stock Code: 1415, a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange) from April 2017
to December 2018.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
Union Medical Healthcare Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Union
Medical Healthcare Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 84 to 222, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2019,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2019 and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in
the Cayman lIslands, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition: Provision of services

BREgENEE

MRENEAESRERMNERAE - RREAN
SRR BREANBARRERNER - BLF
HRARMETBBSAMBREAMDARERR
EITREN - RATSHELETREHEFNE
B o

WA - RERE

Refer to notes 5 and 25 to the consolidated financial statements and
the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BREEFSE

E2 M5B REN S R250 RIS
BB -

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RSB MAEEZEE

Revenue mainly comprises income from the provision of medical,
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services.
WATFZEERHER X28K EJTRBERBOLA -

Revenue is recognised when the related services are provided to
customers.

WAR BB AR T 2 PR iR

Most of the Group’s services are sold on a prepaid basis. Payments
received for prepaid packages are initially recorded as deferred
revenue in the consolidated statement of financial position at the
time of receipt. The service period for a prepaid package is
generally one year.

ERENRBYRBITRAMNEELE - BERHBRNERFKIER
WER N E RS M BSARRRARERLTERA - BNERHRE
H—Ma—F-

Prepaid packages are non-refundable and customers may not
utilise all of their contracted rights within the service period. Such
unutilised services are referred to as “breakage”. An expected
amount of breakage is estimated by management based on
historical experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to
the pattern of services provided to customers.
BNERTAREREFEREPAAIE N ERAE S L%
A o ERERGE BRI PRI R A& [ RE AR - FARRGE B H04E
NeHREEERBBELCRMAT ERETEPHNRBEXL
LBl TR AU o

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the contractual service
period is fully recognised in profit or loss.

RE KRR EMRIRET R ATIER AT RHER
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue from the provision of services during the
year included the following:
BAWEARF A EFARBRARER - 81
WATNEIR -

° assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of key internal
controls over revenue recognition;

o  FHMEHWAMBHEZEANIZERARS
B &8 FR R

° inspecting, on a sample basis, sales
contracts and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the recognition of
revenue with reference to the terms set out
in the sales contracts and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;

o ZEHESHAMENBERERITEEL
MRE  MEEREESOLFEERERE
HWABRH S RE

° inspecting, on a sample basis, cash receipts
from customers during the year and
comparing such receipts with relevant details
in sales contracts entered into during the
year;

s MMEEBRFARBEFTPHRSKIT - L
ZEWKEF RN LNHEES N BERBET
TBEVELLE

° comparing, on a sample basis, customers’
signed acceptance of services provided with
the customers’ utilisation records;

o HHEKLLEE P YT IR 4 AR 75 0 55 B A Bl
B AR
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The Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

B Az BIRD R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NAEEZEE

We identified recognition of revenue from the provision of services
as a key audit matter because (1) revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and therefore there is an
inherent risk of manipulation of the timing of recognition of revenue
by management to meet specific targets; and (2) the estimation of
the utilisation pattern of services is inherently subjective and
requires significant judgement and estimation which increase the
risk of error or potential management bias.

HPISRBSBAERTE RRARETEE - DENKAZE E5E
BRRBEEEZ— A —REEARREEREBRERAHEIRR
REVERSTE R - RQREEBRANMEFAE EAEEL
NFEEETERAE LA SN THRIEEERERRLN
[Z\Bgz o

recalculating, on a sample basis, the revenue
recognised for services provided during the
year with reference to the terms as set out in
the sales contracts;
2EHEANMEANGT  HEEEFA
PR AR TS O RERR UL A

analysing the Group’s historical data for
utilisation of prepaid packages and the
current year’s revenue recognised for
services provided to determine an
expectation of the breakage amount for the
current year; comparing our expectation with
the actual figures recorded by the Group
and investigating unusual items or trends
and assessing whether or not there was an
indication of management bias;

AN EEERENEZRCERABANBE
BB RN FEMRHERBERAOUA - A
BEARFEREANENSENTERER ;
BEMMERERLRE BEREZENER
HFELER  WHAERFEE ABD KT
HELSAEEERANIR

assessing, on a sample basis, whether
residual deferred revenue had been
recognised in profit or loss at the end of the
contractual service period; and

R FIERE WA R B R A KBRS HA
RKRBRAER &

inspecting underlying documentation for
journal entries relating to revenue and
deferred revenue which were considered to
meet specified risk-based criteria.
EBRWARRLEWAE B EFE T TRER
R A BR A SR R AR RE SO -
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Accounting for business and other acquisitions

EBRRAEMBBEENETEE

Refer to notes 19 and 31 to the consolidated financial statements
and the accounting policies in note 3.1.

The Key Audit Matter
BREETSE

BLEGAPERERMF19 231 ARS8
K o

How the matter was addressed in our audit
RN EST A EEZEE

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group completed
several business and other acquisitions for an aggregate
consideration of HK$178 million.
BE_Z-NAF=A=+—HUILFERN  EXETKERE178
BEETHETERRHEMKESEE -

Goodwill arising from these acquisitions amounted to HK$21
million, which represented the excess of the consideration paid
over the Group’s share of the fair value of the identifiable net
assets, including the intangible assets of customer lists amounting
to HK$4 million, of the acquired businesses.
HAzEWBEEERNPEBENAEAL DEENRER
o EEEMEEBEBARMNINEEFEN LA TTE(BEERA
BB EEIRBBT)NES

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities acquired in
these transactions were assessed by the directors based on
independent valuations prepared by a firm of external valuers which
required the exercise of significant judgement and estimation,
particularly in relation to the forecast of future performance of the
entities acquired.
ZERXSHPEBAIAMNEERBEN AT EBESRBINEGE
ETAR BB (HEEITAE - EF BETERAE RMEE - L
HEFMEBERBNARRKERANE -
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Our audit procedures to assess the accounting for
business acquisitions included the following:
BHMNBARTFRETEERRBEENSIRE
B BEMTEE:

inspecting the sale and purchase
agreements and evaluating management’s
accounting treatment for the acquisitions
(including segregation of amounts from the
consideration payable related to transactions
other than the business acquisitions) with
reference to the terms set out in the sale and
purchase agreements and the requirements
of the prevailing accounting standards;
EREENSE W2EEEHRMEANK
HEBRITEFERNRETHERBH K
BEENGRIE (BEGEERWIEAIN
MR S5EENENKESESH)
obtaining and inspecting the valuation
assessments prepared by the external
valuers engaged by the directors and on
which the directors’ assessment of the fair
values of the assets and liabilities acquired
was based and assessing whether or not
there was indication of management bias;
S0 & 5 R 2 B PR SMNIE (L B D AR B Y
BEE  EFENZFEENE HE
CEEREERBENQATE  LERES
ERERETR

assessing the external valuers’ qualifications,
experience and expertise in the assets being
valued and considering their objectivity and
independence;

AHEINE M EME B - KBR KB TR
BEMNME TERAETHERETMT
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The Key Audit Matter
BREESBE

B Az BIRD R

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BB NAEEZEE

We identified the accounting for business and other acquisitions as
a key audit matter because of the significant impact the acquisitions
have on the consolidated financial statements and because
assessing the fair values of the assets and liabilities acquired and
conducting the goodwill impairment assessments can be inherently
subjective and requires significant judgement and estimation which
increase the risk of error or potential management bias.

BB EBREMKBEENSHRET A —RHERETER
DEKEEEEGEMBBRENEATERARCBEERAR
NFENFEAREERENFEAE L AT LFTR2ETE
RAE R fbEt - SR MTHRIEEEREREORR -

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, discussing with the external
valuers, without the presence of
management, the valuation methodologies
adopted in assessing the fair values of the
assets and liabilities acquired, including
intangible assets, and challenging the
assumptions and critical judgements which
impacted their valuation by comparing these
assumptions and critical judgements with
market data, our past experience of similar
transactions and the Group’s business plan
supporting the acquisitions;
EHRMOABEEEROHE T - EIMNE
HEMSR(EERETNESHNERT)E
EREE(BREEVEE) RABQAFET
mMAEMRANGEREZ - BREETER
B8 R AR K B A B BR 77 35 B8 - AP
EREUXRSGTENBRELERE E5E2
RWIE SRR EB T EETHLL - BRZ
e E Y EV Nl

with the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists, assessing the valuation
methodologies adopted by the external
valuers with reference to industry standards
and the requirements of the prevailing
accounting standards;
EHRMOABEEEROHE T - 2E1T
FRERBITGAT LN T » fTEIMNE
HERERETTE

evaluating management’s assessment of the
estimated useful life of customer lists with
reference to future operating plans and our
knowledge of the related industry; and
BERRKETERBERMEEAITE
TR THEBEEHETP,BEMGA
RERBE - &

assessing the disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements in respect of the
acquisitions and management’s goodwill
impairment assessments with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards.

2ERTETEBNBRE  ThEEEHB
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hEIHRER
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Information other than the consolidated financial
statements and auditor’s report thereon

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information included in the annual
report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

80 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

REMBHRERRREALBARE UIINE
B

EEFHHMER
A2 EE L
MZBRED R o

wEEBRETERE
i\-i—v

BE - Kb
BRI AR RAM

BAHGAMBERROBILTREELMES
BAMTAEZFEMESBEREALANEES

%ﬁ o
BEBRMESEAMBRERNB - BHANEER
BEEMES  HUBRET EEHMEERSS

BN BREARMEETBETMTHNGB
AEFEEAEBREUFFEERERBLAIT
Do

ERERAERTOHITHE  IREFIRB/EMBES
FHEEAERRL  ZMAFTERELZEFE - £E

A BPRBERARE -
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Responsibilities of the directors for the consolidated
financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

B BEN RS

EERGREUBRREARENER

EEAARRBEASMASHEMN(ELYH
B E LR RBBCR TR 6955 2R i th
BEEMPEMERAMBERE  YHERRBEELR
BYBHRENBRE N FERR R ERME
MEXBERPEFAFHAREFAS -

oo,

EREREVBHRERE  EFARTE E5E
SEEEMEE N YHEERBR T HERFEL
LEMNFER URERFEKLEHSTER
BRIEZAER BEEEBRIELLE 25
BHOERNBERTR

B ZEEMHEERITEE
HBREMNEE -

BEEENM R

REMRETREMBRRAENER

BAWER  RUGRAMBRREBERBES I FE
RRAGFERMEBHMMERERRLERG S 2
RE AHABRBRRMABEROZBERS - RMA
EMEBBARRE o BRI RAWRE A
REEMAE - R TIRAARSHAR - HiE
MEMATAERAREREE -

BERFZHKFOHRE  ETHERBRRB(E
BBEIERDETHNES  EX-BARBERRL
TRTERS AL IR - BEARIRA T LA R BRGF S #E AR 5l
£ MREEBHEMEFERERATETE
AR A TSR (E R KRR B R PR L BV A
RTE - BB RARVERRR PRI AT ARIEE K -

BEERBEERASEERAT 81
FEHRE 2018/19



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AR S

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

82

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law of regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wong Sau Ling.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

26 June 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A B L
ANy = ,E\J/Iﬁ_

For the year ended 31 March 2019 =2 —Z— W =-A=+—HItFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 7T3R)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-N\EF
Notes HK$ HK$
B sE BT BT
REVENUE KA ) 1,836,798,361 1,307,639,358
Other net income and gains Hi A RIS F 58 6 36,190,688 43,427,750
Cost of inventories and consumables GTERFEMAA (227,286,741)  (163,402,642)
Registered practitioner expenses B AR (207,277,549) (110,382,274)
Employee benefit expenses B BN (446,391,375)  (341,276,031)
Marketing and advertising expenses THEHEENMESHAX (154,538,138)  (126,932,303)
Rental and related expenses He kB (175,578,191)  (130,929,094)
Credit card expenses EAFAX (46,723,372) (42,662,867)
Depreciation e (48,987,080) (34,559,879)
Charitable donations BERE (3,273,956) (4,777,050)
Finance costs B TS ARAN 7 (2,743,135) (563,988)
Other expenses HARI (113,481,088)  (70,499,245)
Share of profits less losses of joint ventures 515 & & 1b 2% TR E 18 3,372,057 5,071,909
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BREE A F 8 450,080,481 330,153,644
Income tax Frigit 11 (65,575,517) (52,017,353
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRBER 384,504,964 278,136,291
Attributable to: AN B IR -
Equity shareholders of the Company ARE) IR 361,105,819 279,223,799
Non-controlling interests FEfE RS 23,399,145 (1,087,508)
384,504,964 278,136,291
HK cents HK cents
AL AL
EARNINGS PER SHARE BREAER 12
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY RARERRRES
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
Basic HAR 36.7 28.5
Diluted BE 36.6 28.5

The notes on pages 91 to 222 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the profit for the year are set out in note
28(b).

F 1B F 222 B MM B AL SO TRE A — 2B
Do FERTANA B B AE RS A% 51 2 A% B (8 )i
2 FEIBEFKTE 28(b) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME
H A 2 [ W e 5%

=

w3

For the year ended 31 March 2019 a:l:— =

I:I\/

—NEZA=t—HLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T51R)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FEREF 384,504,964 278,136,291
Other comprehensive income for the year 4 A E 4h 2 U 25
ltem that may be reclassified HIgREHHHE
subsequently to profit or loss: BmMIER -
Exchange differences on translation of & & 38 5N B /A &)
financial statements of subsidiaries B TR R A IE H R -
outside Hong Kong, net of HK$nil tax HBRZTATTIE 497,941 (847,809)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZ2HKBHEEE
FOR THE YEAR 385,002,905 277,288,482
Attributable to: AT S IEERN -
Equity shareholders of the Company KAFIERBR 361,603,760 278,375,990
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR 23,399,145 (1,087,508)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME HSRZ2HEWHELE
FOR THE YEAR 385,002,905 277,288,482

The notes on pages 91 to 222 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR

At 31 March 2019 R=ZZE—NF=A=+—H

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& 7T3R)

2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-N\EF
Notes HK$ HK$
Bt aE BTt BIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M - WEKEE 13 294,686,071 100,637,862
Investment properties WEME 13 232,000,000 190,400,000
Goodwill S 14 99,099,208 95,223,189
Intangible assets B AE 15 89,493,118 86,861,454
Interest in joint ventures REEDLENER 16 37,051,803 44,694,000
Rental and other deposits HeREMEE 19 35,847,456 45,204,459
Prepayments SELNE S 19 104,513,425 8,175,787
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBENEHEE
profit or loss 20 37,356,812 -
Deferred tax assets EIEF T = 26(b) 12,239,612 2,311,349
Total non-current assets ERHEERE 942,287,505 573,508,100
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Inventories Ve 17 52,080,763 31,444,495
Trade receivables =00 E ] 18 104,668,285 68,670,393
Prepayments, deposits and other FERETE - e REMEWEIE
receivables 19 198,690,058 86,269,710
Deferred costs RIERL AR 5 80,455,099 33,904,930
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBENERERE
profit or loss 20 599,830,857 495,829,752
Pledged time deposits [REE TN EVER=N 21 2,001,612 2,000,740
Time deposits with original maturity over R EIEA H #2838 =& A 89 BitE
3 months 21 - 395,871,516
Cash and cash equivalents RWERREEEY 21 366,969,663 295,481,085
Total current assets MEEEHRE 1,404,696,337 1,409,472,621
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Trade payables B S RNFIE 22 21,879,324 9,438,467
Other payables and accruals HAth eI IB R ERTE A 23 144,054,378 96,786,957
Bank borrowings HRITIER 24 497,713,680 558,853,516
Obligations under finance leases A T EAIE 27 5,882,739 1,709,865
Deferred revenue RIEW A 25 420,461,620 452,391,483
Current tax payable FERTBNERRE IR 26(a) 34,936,345 17,905,194
Total current liabilities MBI AEETE 1,124,928,086  1,137,085,482
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFHE 279,768,251 272,387,139
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERABRE
LIABILITIES 1,222,055,756 845,895,239
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSIT

AN
el

ON

PRSAR LR

At 31 March2019 R—Z—hF=A=+—H
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& T57)

2019 2018
—E-NE —E-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
B 5T BT BT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE 26(b) 6,159,759 4,274,629
Obligations under finance leases BETREAE 27 40,889,102 416,627
Provision for reinstatement costs EERAEE 23 9,110,000 3,690,000
Total non-current liabilities IR aEeE 56,158,861 8,381,256
NET ASSETS BEFHE 1,165,896,895 837,513,983
CAPITAL AND RESERVES R #iE
Share capital & A 28(c) 9,845 9,834
Reserves i 1,041,988,419 820,838,871
Total equity attributable to equity RATERRRELES AR
shareholders of the Company 1,041,998,264 820,848,705
Non-controlling interests FEIER RS 123,898,631 16,665,278
TOTAL EQUITY ERsE 1,165,896,895 837,513,983

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 26 R-E—AFENA-+ A NAEEESIELRE

June 2019. FBE o
Tang Chi Fai Lee Gabriel
BEE ZER
Director Director
E=3 BEF

The notes on pages 91 to 222 form part of these financial

91 £ 56 222 B ROPI FERE A L T BE 75 3R R A0 — &P
statements. o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

/\\/ \

== N\ 7
T / ~ lnl:l/n i%

For the year ended 31 March 2019 # % —
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (1A% 7'E§//T )

—“NE=ZA=t—RALFE

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

RATRERRER
Shares held
for Share
Award  Share-based Non-
Share Share Scheme compensation Merger ~ Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve reserve profits Total interests equity
(note 28(d)i) (note 28(d)(v)) (note 28(c)ivl)  (note 28(c)  (note 28(c)il)
RRARE Py
HERERE b33
Bx R BB MeRE  RMEE  EXGE  REEA &% FeRER  EREE
(HiEEo8(d)) (KETas(e)) (Kiakos(a)v)) (KFEas(e)i) (Hisk28(a)ii)
Notes HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
(i3 BT BT BT BT AT B B B B B
Balance at 1 April 2017 +ERA- RS 0808 705,085,389 (80,698,123 2,776,101 19,608 39349 150628024  T778460,156 11,392,167 789,852,323
Chenges in euty for 2018: ? ‘\EE’W&H 8
Proft for the year Efgh - - - - - - 219003799 219203799 (1,087,508 278,136,291
Other comprehensive income Efy 2wk - - - - - [B7809 - [B7809) - (847,809)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRemkieE - - - - - (847809 279223799 278375990 (1,087,508) 277,288482
Issuance of shares Bk 28l % 945238 - - - - - 94564 - 945064
Acquistion of subsidiaries BEKBAR - - - - - - - - 918,161 918,161
Disposal o parta interests in subsiclaries ~~ HEHBATHHER - - - - - - - - 54048 5440458
Recognition of equity-setfed share-based ~ EFZMERLE LR BER
compensation: Share award and M% PUECIE
share option 2,30 e e e 3,723,916 - - - 3723916 - 3723916
Vesting of shares under Share Award BERREEH SR
Scheme 29 o e 416,069 (416,069) - - - - - -
Divicends declared! EERRE 20) e - - - - - (49,136,621) (249,136,621) - (249,136,621
At31 March 2018 and 1 Apri 2018 RZE-NEZA=1-Rk
“5-)\¥mA-A 0834 715110627 (80282054  6,083%48 19,608 (808460) 180,715,202 820,848,705 16,665,278 837,513,983
Changes i equiy for 2019: ZE-NENEREY:
Profit for the year Fgd - - - - - - 361,105,819 361,105,819 23,309,145 384,504,064
Other comprehensive income b2 EhE - - - - - 497,04 - 497,94 - 497,94
Total comprehensive income for the year FREANGEE - - - - - 497941 361,105819 361,603,760 23,399,145 385,002,905
Issuance of shares L) 28()l) 1 4,891,689 - (1,370,425 - - - 38205 - 3,521,275
Acquistion o subsicares fEHELR - - - - - - - - 043087 29413037
Disposal of partial interests insubsioiaries £ EHBATBHER - - - - - - 11486425 11486425 885750 20,144004
Disposal of subsiciaries that resuited in HEEH LA B AT
|oss of control - - - - - - - - 12138131 12,138,131
Recogniion of equity-settled share-based BT NERLENRHBER
compensation: Share avard and g : B RERERE
share option 29,30 - - - 6315327 - - - 6315327 - 6315327
Recogniion of share-based payment for SR FEEREROHED T
shares n subsidiares granted to RAEZARD AERAR
non-controling interests - - - 1,389,570 - - - 1389570 4836809 6,226,379
Recognifon of equity-settled share-based S E/7{ENE S FHRAR?
payment fr share option issued as BhREoERERIN
part of e consideration to acquire %ﬁi EHRG BRI
an unlisted equity investment 30 - - - 6,958,000 - - - 6,958,000 - 6,958,000
Forfiture of shares under Share Award RERD LB 2HERA
Scheme 9 - = - (407,081) - - 407,081 - - -
Disposal of shares held for Share Award HeERRD BB 2EEY
Scheme & o) - - 80,282,054 - - - 39,803,808 120,085,862 - 120,085,362
Dividends paid fo non-controling inerests &R PR RERDRE - - - - - - - - B34y (3211349
Contibutions from non-controling FERERTE
interests - - - - - - - 32,000,000 32,000,000
Divicends declared RENUE 20) - - - - - - (290,210,660) (290,210,660) - (290,210,660
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NF=f=1-A 9845 720,002,316 - 18,969,339 19,608 (310,519) 303,307,675 1,041,998,264 123,898,631 1,165,896,895

The notes on pages 91 to 222 form part of these financial

statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
[ ] J =

MERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2019 B E —T—WFE=A=+—HILtFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (L& TR )

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
Notes HK$ HKS$
B3 BT BT
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RETED
Profit before tax B B Vi A 450,080,481 330,153,644
Adjustments for: -
Interest on bank borrowings and RITER LB E
overdrafts 7 2,712,119 532,795
Finance charges on obligations under MERERERERSY
finance leases 7 31,016 31,193
Bank interest income RITHBUA 6 (626,279) (3,590,543)
Interest income from listed debt EEBRERFRERD
investments and certificate of B A
deposits 6 (11,390,581) (5,007,194)
Dividend income from unlisted FEMRERESH
investment funds M EUA 6 (5,013,624) (4,222,796)
Depreciation e 8 48,987,080 34,559,879
Impairment loss of goodwill P E R EEE 6 7,279,594 -
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESE 8 12,758,082 3,064,918
Share of profits less losses of DMEEECE RN REBE
joint ventures (3,372,057) (5,071,909)
Equity-settled share-based payment EREE ARMD BERE >
expenses RRRF X 8 12,541,706 3,723,916
Gain on disposal of partial interests HEMB AR D ESA S
in subsidiaries - (4,645,803)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHB QB R 6 (2,149,749) -
(Gain)/loss on disposals and write-off of ~ H & RMIEME  BiE R RE
property, plant and equipment iy (W), B 8 (4,098,377) 3,929,950
Unrealised and realised losses/(gains) EAFEFABZNEREE
on financial assets at fair value WAER KRB EIE
through profit or loss, net BB (W) F58 6 9,207,775 (1,373,671)
Fair value gain on investment BEMERN D TFE W
properties 6 (1,417,000) (10,235,597)
Foreign exchange differences HNE Z=EE 1,769,615 11,410,942
517,299,801 353,259,724
Increase in inventories FEEm (20,179,611) (9,875,181)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 W TR IBIE i1 (38,745,229) (2,884,548)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and TBRNFHIE - ke REMEK
other receivables WIFIE A (170,535,681) (31,061,577)
Increase in deferred costs EIERK ANIE N (46,550,169) (28,542,965)
Increase in trade payables B 5 S FIE S N 12,512,754 1,034,959
Increase in other payables and accruals H e B M ERHE R
yil| 46,525,208 2,221,904
(Decrease)/increase in deferred revenue  EFEUA CF4),/HE N (4,209,142) 86,361,806
Cash generated from operations KEEENRS 296,117,931 370,514,122
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid ENEBMNER (55,185,832) (44,566,531)
Tax paid outside Hong Kong ENBEBIRINGIA (2,481,301) (2,175,664)
Net cash generated from KRBTSR & )F5E
operating activities 238,450,798 328,771,927
BEE ] A F]
samemssTiI o



CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

= IAN
I /j—\ Eﬁ L:ﬁ //|b = %
For the year ended 31 March 2019 & Z= —

—NEFEZA=+—RLFE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars) (LA;&T 5//? )

2019 2018
—E-hF — N\
Notes HK$ HKS$
M & BT BT
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Bank interest received EUERTTH B 626,279 3,590,543
Purchases of financial assets at fair value ~ B & %E’A$TE:.H\T§@E’]
through profit or loss CHMEE (436,824,650)  (506,899,753)
Purchases of intangible assets BERLEE (11,270,001) -
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests & |3ﬁ BARE O ERH
in subsidiaries Fﬁ%ﬂ - 10,088,261
Proceeds from disposals of financial ﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁifﬁ ST AERR
assets at fair value through profit or loss & RVEE 2 FriS 508 292,557,824 501,119,360
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEYE  BERKR {% 50
plant and equipment FT{3 3R 40,429,079 =
Interest income from listed debt AR ERERENT S
investments and certificate of deposits WA 11,390,581 5,007,194
Dividend income from a joint venture HEDTEMNRBWA 1,280,000 -
Dividend income from unlisted FELEMREESH
investment funds iz B A 5,013,624 4,222,796
Acquisition of businesses, net Wb 275558 31 4,453,846 (78,822,315)
Acquisition of joint ventures WA EDE (4,765,746) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, net HEMB A RFE (152,354) -
Loan to a joint venture BERTEEDRHE - (14,500,000)
Decrease/(increase) in time deposits with  [REEIH BB =1E A &
original maturity over 3 months and EHHT NI E BTER
pledged time deposits w(3EAn) 396,529,778 (237,159,886)
Purchases of property, plant and ﬁ%“ﬂ%% BB REE
equipment (276,212,743) (51,651,783)
Purchases of investment properties BEKREYE (40,183,000) (180,164,408)
Net cash used in investing activities WEEES TR S S8 (17,127,483) (545,169,986)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES MEED
Interest paid on bank borrowings and EATIRITERRBE LS
overdrafts 21(b) (2,712,119) (632,795)
Capital element of finance lease rentals paid 2 &R ER S HEREH 21(b) (1,354,651) (2,685,332)
Interest element of finance lease rentals paid 2 g & ER S HIF 2 H 21(b) (31,016) (31,193)
Proceeds from new bank borrowings S RITE B RIE 21(b) 100,180,223 560,841,888
Proceeds from sale and leaseback SRR T H T B %R
arrangement 21(b) 46,000,000 -
Proceeds from disposals of shares held HEMRD EEEEISEN
for Share Award Scheme R DB R 1B R IB 120,085,862 -
Proceeds from disposal of partial interests  HEME R a3 D = E
in subsidiaries FriS#Aa 20,144,004 =
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITERK 21(b) (161,320,059) (3,471,510)
Dividend paid SRR 28(b) (290,210,660) (239,933,207)
Dividend paid to non-controliing interests &/ % B T 3E 12 R 25 (3,211,348) =
Issuance of shares BT 3,521,275 221,850
Contributions from non-controlling interests ~ FEFEARE ST & 20,000,000 -
Net cash (used in)/generated from REES (FTA),/ F1s
financing activities & %58 (148,908,489) 314,409,701
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND RERBASEEYRMER
CASH EQUIVALENTS 72,414,826 93,011,642
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April WA—HBR&KBEEFEY 295,481,085 200,644,165
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates SN [ & & sh g S/ £ (926,248) 1,825,278
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ZA=t-HWRER
AT 31 MARCH HEZEY 21 366,969,663 295,481,085

The notes on pages 91 to 222 form part of these financial

statements.
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2.1

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company with limited liability
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O.
Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The
principal place of business of the Company is located at Suites
7-9, L21 Langham Place Office Tower, 8 Argyle Street, Mong
Kok, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the
“Group”) is principally engaged in the provision of medical,
aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services, the sale
of skincare, healthcare and beauty products, and investment
holding.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”), which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements
also comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Listing Rules”).

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that
are first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 2.3 provides information
on any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting
periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

2.2

2.3

92

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2019 comprise the Group and the Group’s interest in
joint ventures.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial
statements is the historical cost basis except as otherwise
stated in the accounting policies.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and
reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and various other factors that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the application of
HKFRSs that have significant effect on the consolidated
financial statements and major sources of estimation
uncertainty are discussed in note 3.2.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The HKICPA has issued a number of new HKFRSs and
amendments to HKFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. The Group has early adopted
HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers, since the
year ended 31 March 2017. The Group has not applied any
new standard or interpretation that is not yet effective for the
current accounting period, except for the amendments to
HKFRS 9, Prepayment features with negative compensation
which have been adopted at the same time as HKFRS 9.

The impact of these developments (except for HKFRS 15) to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements are discussed
as follows:

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation

HKFRS 9 replaces HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
recognition and measurement. It sets out the
requirements for recognising and measuring financial
assets, financial liabilities and some contracts to buy or
sell non-financial items.

Further details of the changes to the previous accounting
policies and the transition approach are set out below.

a.

Classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities

HKFRS 9 contains three principal classification and
measurement categories for financial assets:
amortised cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and fair value
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”). These supersede
HKAS 39’s categories of held-to-maturity
investments, loans and receivables, available-for-
sale financial assets and financial assets measured
at FVTPL. The classification of financial assets
under HKFRS 9 is based on the business model
under which the financial asset is managed and its
contractual cash flow characteristics. Under
HKFRS 9, derivatives embedded in contracts
where the host is a financial asset in the scope of
the standard are not separated from the host.
Instead, the hybrid instrument as a whole is
assessed for classification.

o The classification for debt instruments is
determined based on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual cash flow characteristics of
the assets. A debt instrument will be
measured at amortised cost if the instrument
is held for the collection of contractual cash
flows which represent solely payments of
principal and interest. Otherwise, the debt
instruments are classified as FVTPL and any
changes in fair value will be recognised in
profit or loss. Interest income from the debt
instrument is calculated using the effective
interest method.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

94

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

Classification and measurement of financial
assets and financial liabilities (Continued)

° For equity instruments (except for those
accounted for as subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates, if any), the classification is
FVTPL regardless of the entity’s business
model. The only exception is if the equity
instrument is not held for trading and the
entity irrevocably elects to designate that
instrument as FVOCI. If an equity instrument
is designated as FCOCI then only dividend
income on that instrument will be recognised
in profit or loss. Gains or losses on that
instrument will be recognised in other
comprehensive income without recycling
through profit or loss.

° The measurement categories for all financial
liabilities remain the same, except for financial
guarantee contracts.

The Group applied HKFRS 9 retrospectively to
items that existed at 1 April 2018 in accordance
with the transition requirements. On 1 April 2018,
the Group assessed its financial assets based on
business models and classified its financial
instruments into the appropriate HKFRS 9
categories. All financial assets and financial liabilities
of the Group had the same carrying amounts and
measurement in accordance with HKAS 39 and
HKFRS 9 on 1 April 2018, which was the date of
initial application of HKFRS 9. Thus, there is no
change in the measurement categories and
carrying amounts for all financial assets and
financial liabilities of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(i)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments, including
the amendments to HKFRS 9, Prepayment
features with negative compensation
(Continued)

b.

Credit losses

HKFRS 9 replaces the “incurred loss” model in
HKAS 39 with the “expected credit loss” (“ECL”)
model. The ECL model requires an ongoing
measurement of credit risk associated with a
financial asset and therefore recognises ECLs
earlier than under the “incurred loss” accounting
model in HKAS 39.

The Group applies the new ECL model to financial
assets measured at amortised cost, including
pledged time deposits, cash and cash equivalents,
bank deposits with original maturities over 3
months and trade and other receivables. Financial
assets measured at fair value are not subject to the
ECL assessment. The Group has assessed that
the adoption of the new ECL model does not have
material impact on the Group’s consolidated
financial statements as at 1 April 2018.

For further details on the Group’s accounting policy
for accounting for credit losses, see note 3.1
section “Credit loss and impairment of financial
assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

2.3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1

96

(Continued)

(ii) HK(IFRIC) 22, Foreign currency transactions
and advance consideration

This interpretation provides guidance on determining “the
date of the transaction” for the purpose of determining
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) arising
from a transaction in which an entity receives or pays
advance consideration in a foreign currency.

The interpretation clarifies that “the date of the
transaction” is the date on initial recognition of the non-
monetary asset or liability arising from the payment or
receipt of advance consideration. If there are multiple
payments or receipts in advance of recognising the
related item, the date of the transaction for each payment
or receipt should be determined in this way.

The adoption of HK(IFRIC) 22 does not have any material
impact on the financial position and the financial result of
the Group.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. The Group
controls an entity when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only substantive
rights (held by the Group and other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that control
commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and any unrealised
profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in
full in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
(Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a subsidiary
not attributable directly or indirectly to the Company, and in
respect of which the Group has not agreed any additional
terms with the holders of those interests which would result in
the Group as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect
of those interests that meets the definition of a financial liability.
For each business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the
subsidiary’s net identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position within equity, separately from
equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company.
Non-controlling interests in the results of the Group are
presented on the face of the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income as an allocation of the total profit
or loss and total comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity shareholders of the
Company.

Changes in the Group’s interests in a subsidiary that do not
result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions, whereby adjustments are made to the amounts
of controlling and non-controlling interests within consolidated
equity to reflect the change in relative interests, but no
adjustments are made to goodwill and no gain or loss is
recognised.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, it is accounted
for as a disposal of the entire interest in that subsidiary, with a
resulting gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. Any
interest retained in that former subsidiary at the date when
control is lost is recognised at fair value and this amount is
regarded as the fair value on initial recognition of a financial
asset or where appropriate, the cost on initial recognition of an
investment in an associate or joint venture.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an investment
in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.1

98

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Joint ventures

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group or
Company and other parties contractually agree to share control
of the arrangement, and have rights to the net assets of the
arrangement.

Interest in joint ventures is accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements under the equity method, unless it is
classified as held for sale (or included in a disposal group that
is classified as held for sale). Under the equity method, the
investment is initially recorded at cost, adjusted for any excess
of the Group’s share of the acquisition-date fair values of the
investee’s identifiable net assets over the cost of the
investment (if any). Thereafter, the investment is adjusted for
the post acquisition change in the Group’s share of the
investee’s net assets and any impairment loss relating to the
investment. Any acquisition-date excess over cost, the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition, post-tax results of the investees
and any impairment losses for the year are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, whereas the Group’s
share of the post-acquisition post-tax items of the investees’
other comprehensive income is recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

When the Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in the
joint ventures, the Group’s interest is reduced to nil and
recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the
extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive
obligations or made payments on behalf of the investee. For
this purpose, the Group’s interest is the carrying amount of the
investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group’s
net interest in the joint ventures.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Joint ventures (Continued)

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions
between the Group and its joint venture are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the investee, except where
unrealised losses provide evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred, in which case they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

If an investment in a joint venture becomes an investment in an
associate, retained interest is not remeasured. Instead, the
investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method.

In all other cases when the Group ceases to have joint control
over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a disposal of the
entire interest in that investee, with a resulting gain or loss
being recognised in profit or loss. Any interest retained in that
former investee at the date when joint control is lost is
recognised at fair value and this amount is regarded as the fair
value on initial recognition of a financial asset.

In the Company’s consolidated statement of financial position,
interest in joint ventures is stated at cost less impairment
losses, unless classified as held for sale (or included in a
disposal group that is classified as held for sale).

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred (except those
segregated from business combinations) is measured at the
acquisition date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition
date fair values of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities
assumed by the Group to the sellers of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of
the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

10

A5 R P 5E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and
designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date.

If the business acquisition is achieved in stages, the previously
held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair
value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is
recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial
instrument and within the scope of HKFRS 9 is measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured and subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group’s previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities assumed.
If the sum of this consideration and other items is lower than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on bargain
purchase.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Business acquisitions and goodwill (Continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill at the end of each financial year. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business acquisition
is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group’s
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that
are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to
which the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount, an impairment loss is
recognised. An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the
operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the disposal.
Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances is measured
based on the relative value of the operation disposed of and
the portion of the cash-generating unit retained.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

10

A5 R P 5E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds

The Group’s policies for investments in debt securities and
unlisted equity securities and unlisted funds, other than
investments in subsidiaries and joint ventures, are set out
below.

Investments in debt securities and unlisted equity securities
and unlisted funds are recognised/derecognised on the date
the Group commits to purchase/sell the investment. The
investments are initially stated at fair value plus directly
attributable transaction costs, except for those investments
measured at FVTPL for which transaction costs are recognised
directly in profit or loss. These investments are subsequently
accounted for as follows, depending on their classifications.

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

Investments other than equity investments

Non-equity investments held by the Group are classified
into one of the following measurement categories:

— amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

—  FVOCI (recycling), if the contractual cash flows of the
investment comprise solely payments of principal and
interest and the investment is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both the
collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of expected credit losses, interest
income (calculated using the effective interest
method) and foreign exchange gains and losses.
When the investment is derecognised, the amount
accumulated in other comprehensive income is
recycled from equity to profit or loss.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

3.1 EREFBERME @)

REBERAZBSURFLTES
MEAMBIRE

AEBYEBESRELTRAEEUR
ELHES (HNBATREEARMRE
BN OB BB -

REBEFRFLTEEHNRENAEE
EwBE  HEZREE IHR R
R RENIEAFENEREERSK
RE2F) R AFEARSE (BAFER
AB#H) S ENRERIN  ZFREZRS
RABEZENBHEANRER - 2 SHEBRR
BESBIEATIIEAR

A BZE-N\FHA-HEERANK
®

RREA R EIMIRE

REBARA ZFERARE D BRI
TERIEHERZ—:

— B WARERERFER
B &HRSR(ERERAE KT
B - REZFBRAKE
BRAZEE -

- RAFVEAHEMEEYKE(E
AB@)  WIREZEHRER
EREAERMEMFK LA
FRERENBENASRKEDA
MBREREHENEBRR -
RPEZEHREMEE P
WHER - EFRHREEEE - 78
WA (RERMNREFE) RE
e R BERENEDAMER -
ERIIERZERER  RNEAM
EHEBERRFZEEAES
AR -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Investments other than equity investments (Continued)

—  FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.

Equity investments

An investment in unlisted fund is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an irrevocable election to designate the
investment at FVOCI (non-recycling) such that
subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income. Such elections are made on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but may only be made if
the investment meets the definition of equity from the
issuer’s perspective. Where such an election is made,
the amount accumulated in other comprehensive income
remains in the fair value reserve (non-recycling) until the
investment is disposed of. At the time of disposal, the
amount accumulated in the fair value reserve (non-
recycling) is transferred to retained profits. It is not
recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an equity
investment, irrespective of whether classified as at FVTPL
or FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

10

Other investments in debt and equity securities
and unlisted funds (Continued)

(B)

Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
included debt securities held for trading and financial
assets designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit or loss. Financial assets were classified as
held for trading if they are acquired for the purpose of
sale in the near term.

Financial assets designated upon initial recognition as at
fair value through profit or loss were designated at the
date of initial recognition and only if the criteria in HKAS
39 were satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period the fair value was
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. Dividend income from unlisted
funds and equity securities and interest income from debt
securities calculated using the effective interest method
were recognised in profit or loss in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3.1 section “Revenue
recognition”. Foreign exchange gains and losses arising
from debt securities were also recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost
of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its
purchase price and any directly attributable costs of bringing the
asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in the period
in which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition
criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is
capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as a
replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off
the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual
rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 25%

Furniture and fixtures 25%
Operation equipment 10-20%
Office equipment 20%
Computers 20%
Motor vehicles 20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a
reasonable basis among the parts and each part is depreciated
separately. Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation
method are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at
each financial year end.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7

3.1

10

KRR FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(Continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset is
derecognised is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings which are
owned or held under a leasehold interest to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property that is being
constructed or developed for future use as investment
property.

Investment properties are stated at fair value, unless they are
still in the course of construction or development at the end of
the reporting period and their fair value cannot be reliably
measured at that time. Any gain or loss arising from a change
in fair value or from the retirement or disposal of an investment
property is recognised in profit or loss. Rental income from
investment properties is accounted for as described in note 3.1
section “Revenue recognition”.

When the Group holds a property interest under an operating
lease to earn rental income and/or for capital appreciation, the
interest is classified and accounted for as an investment
property on a property-by-property basis. Any such property
interest which has been classified as an investment property is
accounted for as if it were held under a finance lease, and the
same accounting policies are applied to that interest as are
applied to other investment properties leased under finance
leases. Lease payments are accounted for as described in
note 3.1 section “Leased assets”.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business acquisition is the fair value at the date of acquisition.
The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
subsequently amortised over useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their useful lives are
assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that the useful life of
an intangible asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances continue to
support the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If
they do not, the change in the useful life assessment from
indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date
of change and in accordance with the policy for amortisation of
intangible assets with finite lives as set out below.

The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Customer lists 10 to 33%
Licence 10 to 33%
Club memberships and school debentures Indefinite

Trademark 10 to 33%

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end. For an intangible asset with an
indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated
annually, whether or not there is any indication of impairment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

10

Leased assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of
transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group determines that
the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return for a payment or a
series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an
evaluation of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of
a lease.

i)

(ii)

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which
transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under
finance leases. Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are
classified as operating leases.

Assets acquired under finance leases

Where the Group acquires the use of assets under finance
leases, the amounts representing the fair value of the
leased asset, or, if lower, the present value of the minimum
lease payments, of such assets are recognised as
property, plant and equipment and the corresponding
liabilities, net of finance charges, are recorded as
obligations under finance leases. Depreciation is provided
at rates which write off the cost or valuation of the assets
over the term of the relevant lease or, where it is likely the
Group will obtain ownership of the asset, the life of the
asset. Impairment losses are accounted for in accordance
with the accounting policies (as set out in note 3.1 section
“Impairment of non-financial assets”). Finance charges
implicit in the lease payments are charged to profit or loss
over the period of the leases so as to produce an
approximately constant periodic rate of charge on the
remaining balance of the obligations for each accounting
period. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Leased assets (Continued)

(iii)

Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under
operating leases, payments made under the leases are
charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease term, except
where an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the leased asset.
Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
made. Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in
the accounting period in which they are incurred.

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018

The Group recognises a loss allowance for expected
credit loss (“ECLs”) on the financial assets measured at
amortised cost, including pledged time deposits, cash
and cash equivalents, bank deposits with original
maturities over 3 months and trade and other
receivables.

Financial assets measured at fair value are not subject to
the ECL assessment.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

11

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses.
Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
expected cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the
cash flows due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive).

The expected cash shortfalls are discounted using the
following discount rates where the effect of discounting is
material:

— trade and other receivables: effective interest rate
determined at initial recognition or an
approximation thereof;

— variable-rate financial assets: current effective
interest rate; and

— lease receivables: discount rate used in the
measurement of the lease receivable.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs
is the maximum contractual period over which the Group
is exposed to credit risk.

In measuring ECLs, the Group takes into account
reasonable and supportable information that is available
without undue cost or effort. This includes information
about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(A) Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Measurement of ECLs (Continued)

ECLs are measured on either of the following bases:

— 12-month ECLs: these are losses that are expected
to result from possible default events within the 12
months after the reporting date; and

— lifetime ECLs: these are losses that are expected to
result from all possible default events over the
expected lives of the items to which the ECL model
applies.

Loss allowances for trade receivables and lease
receivables are always measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs. ECLs on these financial assets are
estimated using a provision matrix based on the Group’s
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that
are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at
the reporting date.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk of the
financial instrument since initial recognition, in which case
the loss allowance is measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

11

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the financial instrument assessed at the
reporting date with that assessed at the date of initial
recognition. In making this reassessment, the Group
considers that a default event occurs when (i) the
borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the
Group in full, without recourse by the Group to actions
such as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the financial
asset is 90 days past due. The Group considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable
and supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

—  failure to make payments of principal or interest on
their contractually due dates;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
financial instrument’s external or internal credit
rating (if available);

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor; and

—  existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Significant increases in credit risk (Continued)

Depending on the nature of the financial instruments, the
assessment of a significant increase in credit risk is
performed on either an individual basis or a collective
basis. When the assessment is performed on a collective
basis, the financial instruments are grouped based on
shared credit risk characteristics, such as past due
status and credit risk ratings.

ECLs are remeasured at each reporting date to reflect
changes in the financial instrument’s credit risk since
initial recognition. Any change in the ECL amount is
recognised as an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss.
The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss for all
financial instruments with a corresponding adjustment to
their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

Basis of calculation of interest income

Interest income recognised in accordance with the
accounting policies set out in note 3.1 section “Revenue
recognition” is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is
calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the gross
carrying amount less loss allowance) of the financial
asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether a
financial asset is credit-impaired. A financial asset is
credit-impaired when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

11

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(A)

Policy applicable from 1 April 2018 (Continued)

Basis of calculation of interest income (Continued)

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
the following observable events:

— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
into bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation;

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor; or

— the disappearance of an active market for a
security because of financial difficulties of the
issuer.

Write-off policy

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset or lease
receivable is written off (either partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This
is generally the case when the Group determines that the
debtor does not have assets or sources of income that
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the
amounts subject to the write-off.

Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in
profit or loss in the period in which the recovery occurs.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018

Prior to 1 April 2018, an “incurred loss” model was used
to measure impairment losses on financial assets not
classified as at FVTPL (e.g. trade and other receivables).
Under the “incurred loss” model, an impairment loss was
recognised only when there was objective evidence of
impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment included:
— significant financial difficulties of the debtor;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or
delinquency in interest or principal payments;

— it becoming probable that the debtor will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; and

— significant changes in the technological, market,
economic or legal environment that have an
adverse effect on the debtor.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7

KRR FE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (Continued)

If any such evidence existed, an impairment loss was
determined and recognised as follows:

—  For trade and other receivables and other financial
assets carried at amortised cost, impairment loss
was measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows, discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate,
where the effect of discounting was material.

This assessment was made collectively where
these financial assets shared similar risk
characteristics, such as similar past due status,
and had not been individually assessed as
impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets
which were assessed for impairment collectively
were based on historical loss experience for assets
with credit risk characteristics similar to the
collective group.

If in a subsequent period the amount of an
impairment loss decreased and the decrease could
be linked objectively to an event occurring after the
impairment loss was recognised, the impairment
loss was reversed through profit or loss. A reversal
of an impairment loss was only recognised to the
extent that it did not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been
determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Credit loss and impairment of financial assets
(Continued)

(B) Policy applicable prior to 1 April 2018 (Continued)

When the recovery of a trade debtor or other financial
assets carried at amortised cost was considered doubtful
but not remote, associated impairment losses were
recorded using an allowance account. When the Group
was satisfied that recovery was remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable was written off against the
gross carrying amount of those assets directly.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously charged to
the allowance account were reversed against the
allowance account. Other changes in the allowance
account and subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off directly were recognised in profit or
loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating unit
to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of
an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to profit or
loss in the period in which it arises in those expense categories
consistent with the function of the impaired asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

11

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is
estimated. A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change
in the estimates used to determine the recoverable amount of
that asset, but not to an amount higher than the carrying
amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an
impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed.
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised
amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the first-in, first-out basis. Net
realisable value is based on estimated selling prices less any
estimated costs to be incurred to completion and disposal.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation. When the effect of
discounting is material, the amount recognised for a provision is
the present value at the end of each reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in profit or loss.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow of economic benefits is remote. Possible
obligations, whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future events
are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless the probability
of outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before
payment of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses as set out in
the accounting policies as set out in note 3.1 section “Credit
loss and impairment of financial assets”.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short
maturity of generally within three months when acquired, less
bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group’s cash management.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

3.1

12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value
and are subsequently stated at amortised cost unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they
are stated at cost.

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are measured initially at fair value
less transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Interest expense is recognised in
accordance with the Group’s accounting policy as set out in
note 3.1 section “Borrowing costs”.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a
debt instrument. A financial guarantee contract is recognised
initially as a liability at its fair value, adjusted for transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the
guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contract at the higher of: (i)
the amount of the best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the present obligation at the end of each reporting
period; and (i) the amount initially recognised less, when
appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Employee benefits
Retirement benefit scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to participate
in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an
independently administered fund. The Group’s employer
contributions vest fully with the employees when contributed
into the MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer
voluntary contributions, which are refunded to the Group when
the employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) and Macau are
required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of its payroll costs
to the central pension schemes. The contributions are charged
to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the central pension schemes.

Share-based payment
Share option scheme

The fair value of share options granted to employees is
recognised as an employee cost with a corresponding increase
in share-based compensation reserve within equity. The fair
value is measured at grant date using the binomial lattice
model, taking into account the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted. Where the employees have to
meet vesting conditions before becoming unconditionally
entitled to the options, the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting period, taking into account
the probability that the options will vest.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

A5 R P 5E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payment (Continued)
Share Option Scheme (Continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share options that is
expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to the
cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year of the revision, unless
the original employee expenses qualify for recognition as an
asset, with a corresponding adjustment to the share-based
compensation reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect the actual
number of options that vest (with a corresponding adjustment
to the share-based compensation reserve) except where
forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting conditions that
relate to the market price of the Company’s shares. The equity
amount is recognised in the share-based compensation
reserve until either the option is exercised (when it is included
in the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued)
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
profits).

Share Award Scheme

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan (the “Share Award Scheme”), under which
the Group receives services from employees as consideration
for equity instruments (shares) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the shares is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the
shares granted:

— including any market performance conditions;

— excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions; and

—  excluding the impact of any non-vesting conditions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payment (Continued)
Share Award Scheme (Continued)

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions
about the number of shares that are expected to vest. The
total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are
to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of shares that are expected to vest
based on the non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in profit or
loss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.

Under the Share Award Scheme, employees (excluding core
connected persons as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Group are entitled to the shares for which are held in trust by
Bank of Communications Trustee Limited (the “Trustee”) for
the benefit of the employees. The Trustee may be instructed to
buy shares from the market using the funds held by the
Trustee. Details of outstanding shares can be referred to note
29.

Share awards given by the Group’s subsidiaries

Shares in subsidiaries of the Group are awarded to certain
registered practitioners in respect of their future services for the
Group. The fair value of such shares is recognised as
registered practitioner expenses with a corresponding increase
in either the share-based payment reserve or non-controlling
interests within equity, depending on such shares awarded are
attributable to the Group or the non-controlling shareholders of
the subsidiaries.

The fair value of such share awards is spread over the
expected vesting period, which is consistent with the expected
service period of these registered practitioners. The expected
service period is reviewed annually and the expense charged
to profit or loss is adjusted prospectively from the date of
change of the expected service period.

A H5 R P 5

3.1 EREFBERME @)

U RER 2@
W40 SR Bt & ()

ERRENEBE BB BE - TRt M3F
IS REB IR - MRAXARNERRARE
BRI RB AR

RERERR  ARERBIETIHEB 5K
HERTE TR R B < B (0 BB Fr{EfhaT -
WHEREERBETRRGAELEZZE (D
B) WHESELAAEAE -

REBRDRZBE  AEEER (TEEL
MARAMMAETNROEEAL) EREER
BIRTERARAR(XFEAD REEF
SAEETATBEORD - XFEATIRE
BRNERXFEAMBESKMBBERD -
B Z FHIB AT 2B 29

REE MR A RMEH 2 R0 R

AEEHRBRRNKRNEHE TEME
ARBAREERHEREREBTHRE - %F
R A FERRR/TMBE LR - BUE
VAR A7 70 R B A5 R M e Sl SR PR R 2 4R TR
g2 BFEHERERRN AAREEEESL
B B8 X B FEAE AR BRR FE S OB AD T SE o

AR BB A HERTARR B 8 -
ZEHEBYRZSEME LWBERRS
HMEFT - TRHARTS B IR | - WAt AR
BB ERAMRBHE B EESR

/-

EERBEERASEERAT
FEHRE 2018/19 1 23



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1

12

A5 R P 5E

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax
relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised
outside profit or loss, either in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of each reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of each of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

° when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business acquisition and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

3.1 EREFBERME @)

PR

PR BRI SRR IE - BRI A
SMERHIAB BRMAEHRNE M2 EIK
SRR AR IRRIASNER -

BMEEERBE  NREZEAKERZ
ERERDEERRITHZREREAR - R
BRERSHURCERIER LEERD
BME(RTE)  REAAERBE REDK
NTFHBEERNEEE

BREMERAEEEIANSREAREE
REENHEEREREMEREHRE
B RMNMA TR ZRARER -

EEMIAR BB A BRI G i 258
R ETBRERS :

s EEHRBREBEIHEE-BIIFRHK
BORXSTIRRABENEENKA
BEMEL AR SHATTZEER
it Mk FE RO MBS 1R ¢ R

o  HENWMBLRNKRERHOHERY
EREEME  ERZENRLOEE
AILATER] - BRFEREENARK
KAlge A e M o



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

° when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
acquisition and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will
be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end
of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of
each reporting period and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of each reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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3.1

12

KRR FE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition

Income is classified by the Group as revenue when it arises
from the sale of goods, the provision of services or the use by
others of the Group’s assets under leases in the ordinary
course of the Group’s business.

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or service
is transferred to the customer, or the lessee has the right to
use the asset, at the amount of promised consideration to
which the Group is expected to be entitled, excluding those
amounts collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after deduction of
any trade discounts.

Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@  Most of the services are sold on a prepaid basis. The
service period of a prepaid package is generally one
year.

Generally there are multiple components within the
package, the deferred revenue of each component is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods and
services promised under the contract on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis.

Deferred revenue is recognised when the customer pays
non-refundable consideration before the Group recognises
the related revenue, such deferred revenue is regarded as
contract liability in accordance with HKFRS 15.

Revenue from the rendering of services is recognised
when the services have been rendered to customers.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

(@)

(Continued)

The Group’s customers may not utilise all of their
contracted rights within the service period. Such
unutilised services are referred to as breakage. An
expected breakage amount is determined by historical
experience and is recognised as revenue in proportion to
the pattern of services utilised by the customers.

Any residual deferred revenue at the end of the service
period, after the effect of previously recognised expected
breakage amount, is fully recognised in profit or loss.

Services which are not sold on a prepaid basis is
recognised in full when the services have been rendered
to customers.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the
customer takes possession of and accepts the products.

Commission income and marketing service income are
recognised when the relevant services are rendered.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.
Lease incentives granted are recognised in profit or loss
as an integral part of the aggregate net lease payments
receivable.

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method by applying the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of
the financial instrument or a shorter period, when
appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B FS R M R

3.1

12

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at the end
of each reporting period. Differences arising on settlement or
translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

The functional currencies of certain subsidiaries outside Hong
Kong are currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the
end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency of the
Company at the exchange rates prevailing at the end of the
reporting period and their statements of profit or loss are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the average exchange
rates for the year.

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the component of
other comprehensive income relating to that particular foreign
operation is recognised in profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of an operation outside
Hong Kong and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of that operation and translated
at the closing rate.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Deferred costs

The incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer,
which represent sales commissions and bonuses paid or
payable to the staff or third party agents, are capitalised as
deferred costs in the consolidated statement of financial
position. Such costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which the deferred revenue to which they relate is
recognised as revenue.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of
those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing costs
ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing
costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iy  is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7

KRR FE

3.1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

13

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Related parties (Continued)

(o) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the same
group.

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity).

(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity.

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group.

(vi)  the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a).

(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group of which it is
a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influenced
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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3.1

3.2

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of each segment item
reported in the financial statements, are identified from the
financial information provided regularly to the Group’s most
senior executive management for the purposes of allocating
resources to, and assessing the performance of, the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not aggregated for
financial reporting purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature of production
processes, the type or class of customers, the methods used
to distribute the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating segments
which are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

Estimation uncertainty

Notes 29 and 30 contain information about the assumptions
and their risk factors relating to fair value of share award and
share options granted. Other key assumptions concering the
future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

3.1

3.2
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

13

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (Continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Business acquisitions

For the business acquisitions undertaken by the Group, the Group
first segregates the amount related to transactions other than
business acquisition and then allocates the costs of the acquisition
to the assets acquired and the liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair value on the date of acquisition. This process is
commonly referred to as the purchase price allocation. As part of
the purchase price allocation, the Group is required to determine
the fair value of any identifiable intangible assets acquired. The
determination of the fair value of the intangible assets acquired
involves certain judgement and estimates. These judgements can
include, but are not limited to, the cash flows that the intangible
assets is expected to generate in the future.

The fair values of the identifiable intangible assets were determined
by the Group with inputs from the independent appraisers using
mainly the discounted cash flow method of the income approach.
Future cash flows are predominantly based on the historical
pricing and expense levels, taking into consideration the relevant
market size and growth factors, and involves making a number of
assumptions including growth rates and royalty rates. The
resulting cash flows are then discounted at a rate reflecting
specific risks related to the relevant operation.

A change in the amount allocated to identifiable intangible
assets would have an offsetting effect on the amount of
goodwill recognised from the acquisition and would change
the amount of amortisation expense recognised related to
those identifiable intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of assets

The Group performs annual impairment test on goodwill and
intangible assets with indefinite useful lives, and also performs
impairment assessment on the carrying amounts of other assets
when indication of impairment is identified to determine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment. Management assesses
the differences between the carrying amount and recoverable
amount and makes provision for impairment loss. Any change in
the assumptions adopted in calculating the recoverable amount
would increase or decrease the provision for impairment loss and
affect the Group’s financial position.

Loss allowance for trade receivables and lease receivables is
assessed and estimated by management based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and assessment of both current
and forecast general economic conditions at the reporting
date. Any increase or decrease in such estimation of credit loss
allowance would affect the Group’s profit or loss in future
years.

In the comparative period, provision for impairment of trade
receivables was assessed and made based on the
management’s regular review of ageing analysis and evaluation
of collectability. A considerable level of judgement was
exercised by management when assessing the credit
worthiness and past collection history of each individual
customer. Any increase or decrease in such provision would
affect the Group’s profit or loss in future years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

3.2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.2 ERSFHE MA@

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Revenue

Revenue recognition on provision of services is dependent on
the estimation of the utilisation pattern of each type of services.
Based on the Group’s historical experience, the Group makes
estimates of an expected amount of breakage. Actual utilisation
may be higher or lower than those estimated at the end of
each reporting period, which would affect the revenue and
profit recognised in future years.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets are
depreciated and amortised on a straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of these assets and their residual values, if any. The
depreciation and amortisation expenses for future years are
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

During the year, the Group has changed the structure of its
internal reporting in a manner to cope with the recent
developments and expansions in order to facilitate the most
senior executives to make decisions about resources to be
allocated and performance assessment. Accordingly, the
composition of the Group’s reportable segments has been
changed and the corresponding information for the prior period
has been restated. Accordingly, the Group has two reporting
segments as follows:

(@) Medical; and

(b) Aesthetic medical, beauty and wellness and sale of
skincare, healthcare and beauty products.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s
management monitors the results attributable to each
reportable segment on the following bases:

Segment assets include all tangible, intangible assets and
current assets with the exception of investment properties,
interest in joint ventures and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Segment liabilities include trade
payables, other payables and accruals, provision for
reinstatement costs, deferred revenue, current tax payable and
deferred tax liabilities.

The segment revenue of the Group is based on the type of
services provided to the customers. Revenue and expenses
are allocated to the reportable segments with reference to
sales generated by those segments and the expenses incurred
by those segments or which otherwise arise from the
depreciation or amortisation of assets attributable to those
segments.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit/loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit/loss
before tax. The adjusted profit/loss before tax is measured
consistently with the Group’s profit before tax except that bank
interest income, unrealised and realised gains/(losses) on
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, net, rental
income from investment properties, fair value gain on
investment properties, dividend income from unlisted
investment funds, interest income from listed debt investments
and certificate of deposits and head office and other corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

4.

B H5 R M 7

RETRER @)

DERE - BERAEE

A D BRI L DB BRI E R =
AEENERERNATEEERER
NS

DH nul

7 &6 é?E?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ/ﬂﬁﬂ/ﬁ?u\&m
BEE BREVE SELEIER
BRATEF AERE E’Jiﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ?’ﬂ\"“*
BEREEHEMNFIE  EMEMNRER
JEETER « EEMARE  IRTEWA - BN
RVERR I8 MORAE T IR B (E o

REBE WA BB T5 AL %E\)EE’JHE%&
BEAEE  EEE2RZE D HMIEH
HEMEEANF EJ?EE?EAEZ%%*B}EE
BEFEIEEMEENRA  SRAR
R D EEAREDE

EEETER ﬁ*ﬂzkﬁli%%%ﬁﬁiéﬁu
EHBEBERSERRRTIERRTE -
EBR IR AR IR AT = o 2B A /Eﬁa(ﬂﬂw“
ﬁ*ﬁ[ﬁfﬁ/‘fﬁﬁfiﬁﬂl S BBERTE) TGS - &
FAEBRBANEF BB A E BB A
HREB—BZ A= HRTH B
H HERAFEAABSZNEREEY
ﬂi“‘ziﬁﬁaﬁfﬁwﬁ?&/(@ﬂ%)5%%5 CgE
WMERSWA - WEMELTFEUWE - IE
IR EESHBRBWA - EHEBHERE
REREOFEWARGREE LMD
ERI YT AZER -

EERBEERASEERAT
FEHRE 2018/19 1 35



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

4, RBEHIER (@)

P E S

Aesthetic medical, beauty
and wellness and sale of
skincare, healthcare and

-EBEEREE@®)

Medical beauty products Total
iERE.
EFAREEREUARHEER
BRRE RERERER @it
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-hE —Z-)\& ZB-hfE —“E-\f ZE-NFE —T)\%
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Revenue: KA
Sales to external customersand ~ MSMIEFHERSHUA 522,841,849 295663310 1,313,956,512 1,011,976,048 1,836,798,361 1,307,639,358
segment revenue
Segment result THEE 57,188,124 31,170,255 414,637,249 325,394,430 471,825,378 356,564,685
Bank interest income FAFSKA 626279 3,590,543
Interest income from listed debt ~ EHEHRE KB 11,300,581 5,007,194
investments and certificate of FIBUA
deposits
Dividend income from FLIMREESNRIMA 5013624 4,222,796
unlisted investment funds
Unredlised and realised (losses) KA TFE ;%A}Eﬁa’]iﬂ’ﬁé (9,207,775) 1,373,671
gains on financial assets at fair E’]* R R E 2T
value through profit or loss, net B)/ M&M%E
Fair value gain on investment &ﬁ%%&”ﬁﬁﬂﬁlﬁ?& 1,417,000 10,235,507
properties
Rental income from investment BREMERSRA 7,073,525 770,417
properties
Share of profits less losses of NMERENERTIER 3,372,057 5,071,909
joint ventures
Others Hith (41,430,183)  (56,683,168)
Consolidated profit before tax RABRANER 450,080,481 330,153,644
Depreciation and amortisation for 4 47 & [ B34 25,360,486 5478333 ~ 36,384,676  32,146464 61,745,162 37,624,797
the year
Impairment loss of goodwil EERERE - - 7,279,594 - 7,279,594 S

13
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(Continued)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

4.

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

REFIER (@)

A H5 R P 5

DHEE  BEEREE@

Aesthetic medical, beauty and
wellness and sale of skincare,

Medical healthcare and beauty products Total
ZERE ZARBERBUR
BERE HEEE RERZAER @t
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
“E-pfE E-\&  ZE-hE T )\f ZB-pF ZEN\E
HK$ HKS HK$ HKS HK$ HKS
B BT B BT B BT
Reportable segment assets ARELIHEE 561,868,745 164,784,497 ~ 878,875,625 1,087,272,472 1,440,744,370 1,252,056,969
Investment properties RENE 232,000,000 190,400,000
Interest in joint ventures REECENER 37,051,803 44,694,000
Financial assets at fair value through AT E ABZERSRE
nendl asses i vee toug BATEHAERNEBEE 6B 405800752
profit or loss
Consolidated total assets GLEELR 2,346,983,842  1,982,980,721
Additions t - t t REETHOTE
ddions ononcurentsegnent - FAFIAATATAE punre poioap 160109065 51056787 8T48TM 54167608
assets during the year
Reportable segment liabilities AREIFER 82,800,068 116,733,723 ~ 553,801,358 467,753,007 636,601,426 584,486,730
Bank borrowings RITER 497,713,680 558,853,516
Obligations under finance leases BEHEAE 46,771,841 2,126,492
Consolidated total liabilties GRakeR 1,181,086,947  1,145,466,738
ERABIEREEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(Continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (Continued)

The following table sets out information about the geographical
location of (i) the Group’s revenue from external customers and
(i) the Group’s investment properties, other property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill and interest in joint
ventures and non-current portion of prepayments (“specified
non-current assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were provided or the
goods delivered. The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on (i) the physical location of the asset,
in the case of investment properties and property, plant and
equipment, (i) the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill, and (iii)
the location of operations, in the case of interest in joint ventures
and non-current portion of prepayments.

4.

REFIER (@)

DEEE  BEEREE@

TR BEBATERNBEMENER -
() SR B 2K 85 SR P U e (i) R 5= 1 Y
REWME W% BELRE BYLEE
BERRAEREMNED N RBENFIESN
FERBEIEY((HERRDEE] - TP
WM EERAIRHREXARTERD
VE - FEFRDEENMBUEER)E
ENBERUE GIREMENRDE  BFE

REME)  (EESEAENELLE
(REBELEEREBEMS) i) ELLE (3
RELEXRNEREUANBMNFIAENIERD
MAME)

Information about geographical areas ERENER
Revenue from Specified
external customers non-current assets
REIMBEF BB A BEFRBEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET—)\F —E-NEF —E-)N\F
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Hong Kong T 1,719,200,704 1,203,554,848 821,533,844 474,918,305
Macau P 39,272,276 39,846,571 1,278,001 1,736,980
The PRC i 78,325,381 64,237,939 34,031,780 30,674,405
1,836,798,361 1,307,639,358 856,843,625 507,329,690
Information about major customers EHEXTEEFMNER

Since no revenue derived from sales to a single customer of
the Group has individually accounted for over 10% of the
Group’s total revenue during each of the reporting periods
presented, no information about major customers in
accordance with HKFRS 8, Operating Segments, is presented.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

5. REVENUE 5. KA

Revenue represents the value of services rendered and the net
invoiced value of goods sold, excluding value added tax or
other sales taxes and is after deduction of trade discounts. An
analysis of revenue and deferred balance is as follows:

WARREERRY  XBBFEURER
EEERENEENDCELHERNERF
BT RIEEWRREMHED - LM

EAEZIH) o WA KR 4 R0 47 40

2019 2018
—E-AF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Revenue A
Medical services BEERS 522,841,849 295,663,310
Aesthetic medical services ZERERK 835,193,379 569,066,965
Beauty and wellness services EAMERRG 399,751,560 368,358,711
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products ~ #E - RERERE SR 79,011,573 74,550,372

1,836,798,361 1,307,639,358

All of the above revenue is recognised in accordance with
HKFRS 15.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue recognised
from unutilised prepaid packages after the effect of previously
recognised expected breakage amount, amounted to
HK$155,945,288 (2018: HK$105,528,501).

Deferred balances
The following table provides information about deferred

liabilities from contracts with customers and related deferred
costs.

LRt ERATIRER BV IS5 HREELE
1555 1R ©

REE-_ZE-—NF=A=+—RBILEE"
KA REREHRINTERKRFE B EF
NEE HEFERBENEEMBERDY
W A %155,945,2888 (= F — )\ F
105,528,501 7T °

TR EEF A HAEIE A & R
R A GRS -

2019 2018
—E—-hEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Deferred revenue (note 25) FEIEWA (H5E25)
Deferred costs TEIERL AN

(420,461,620)  (452,391,483)
80,455,099 33,904,930

The deferred costs primarily related to the incremental costs of
obtaining a contract with a customer, which represent sales
commissions and bonus paid or payable to the staff and third
party agents, are recognised as deferred costs in the
consolidated statement of financial position. Such costs are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the deferred
revenue to which they relate is recognised as revenue.

TRERBEF AOIMIBKABBNELT
KA EENENEIRE=TK
EEHEME REA) R e M BRI RE
RBIEIERR A © B BB AN K B bt A BE HO 4R
FEW AR R WA B AR A I s N HERR

EERBEERASEERAT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

14

REVENUE (continued)
Deferred balances (Continued)

All of the capitalised deferred costs are expected to be
recognised in profit or loss within one year.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the amount of such
incremental costs charged to profit or loss was
HK$228,846,359 (2018: HK$217,016,027) and there was no
impairment loss in relation to the costs capitalised.

L'ONC )
EIE L ek (E)

IEEENMEMBELERABRER —FR

REE_ZT-—NF=ZA=+—HULEFE R
EaBHNEEEZEENEANEEA
228,846,359 8 (= Z — \4F : 217,016,027
BIT) - B MEEE A AR R E RS -

OTHER NET INCOME AND GAINS B ARWKE FEEE
2019 2018
—E—hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Bank interest income RITFBUA 626,279 3,590,543
Interest income from listed debt FTEBRERTREN
investments and certificate of deposits FlLEWA 11,390,581 5,007,194
Dividend income from unlisted investment  JE FHEEE S HAR EUA
funds 5,013,624 4,222,796
Unrealised and realised (losses)/gains BAVEFABTHNESREEDN
on financial assets at fair value REW LD ER (FHE), W
through profit or loss, net FEE (9,207,775) 1,373,671
Fair value gain on investment properties "EMEN N FERKE 1,417,000 10,235,597
Rental income from investment properties &% & A 7,073,525 770,417
Impairment loss of goodwill REEREEE (7,279,594) -
Marketing service income IS ERE WA 15,653,698 14,502,083
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note) B A m) Ay Ues (5D 2,149,749 =
Others Hip 9,353,601 3,725,449
36,190,688 43,427,750

Note: During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group disposed of two
non-wholly-owned subsidiaries, which are principally engaged in
provision of beauty and wellness services, at a cash consideration of
HK$102. The net liabilities of these two subsidiaries immediately
before the disposal was HK$24,276,261, while the goodwill
attributable to the operations of these two subsidiaries was
HK$9,988,483.

The total net cash outflow in respect of this disposal was
HK$152,354.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

FINANCE COSTS 7. BB
2019 2018
—E-NF —N\F
HK$ HK$
BTt BT
Interest on bank borrowings and overdrafts #2717 7k & i X B9 F) &, 2,712,119 532,795

Finance charges on obligations under BMEMSE qu‘zrgﬂéﬁﬁi'z

finance leases 31,016 31,193
2,743,135 563,988

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

8. BRBiIAIEF

K%lﬂﬁﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬁu/ﬁﬁ%' &%, (GEA) KA

(crediting): THIBREEH :
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRA(BIEEEEHH) -
emoluments):*
Salaries, wages, allowances, bonuses, e ITE - ERL T4
commissions and benefits in kind Ae kEYHE 520,875,163 382,451,562
Equity-settled share-based NEREEURD RERZ
payment expenses B 11,152,136 3,723,916
Pension scheme contributions RIREFH SR
(defined contribution scheme) (REMH ?KSJrg‘J) 19,246,949 15,040,566
551,274,248 401,216,044
Equity-settled share-based payment MM E AT AR REE
expense to registered practitioners J«Aﬁxfﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁmﬁ'ﬂi
(excluding those included in staff costs) GFABIRAERIN) 1,389,570 -
Minimum lease payments under LEHETUTRIER
operating leases in respect of: =ERERRK
Land and buildings T RIETF 146,783,868 109,166,221
Equipment B 306,896 333,350
Auditors’ remuneration ZE RN & 2,630,760 2,567,740
Depreciation e 48,987,080 34,559,879
Amortisation of intangible assets BB Y 12,758,082 3,064,918
(Gain)/loss on disposals and write-off of HEMEME - BE &
property, plant and equipment mEH (Wa) B8 (4,098,377) 3,929,950
Foreign exchange differences, net SNGE 2 FH )RR 404,162 398,450
Rental income from investment KEMEHRSWABEE
properties less direct outgoings of 3 $4618,093 /57T
HK$618,093 (2018: HK$120,566) (ZZ— )\ : 120,566 T) (6,455,432) (649,851)

Included in staff costs are employee benefit expenses of
HK$446,391,375 (2018: HK$341,276,031) and registered
practitioner expenses of HK$104,882,873 (2018: HK$59,940,013)
paid/payable to certain registered practitioners who are also
employees of the Group.

B T A BIEEB1EH X 446,391,375 /87T
(ZZ—\F : 341,276,031 & 7T) REANT &
NTAAEBEENE TEMEBLEAHK
104,882,873 7% 7t (=T — J\£F : 59,940,013
BT R E AR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 1 = P 5

9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 9. EEHM
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of RIEFEB A BIEFISE 3831 LA A (FE
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the BERNZERRAIIE2R D EBENEESH
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of BEEB T -

Directors) Regulation are as follows:

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme Share
fees in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total options Total
e 2R &I
Ezhe REVMAE  BERL EER it B @it
HKS$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 March 2019 BE-E-NE
ZAZT-ALEE
Executive directors HITEE
Tang Chi Fai g - 1,218,000 - 18,000 1,236,000 - 1,236,000
Lee Gabriel 38X - 1,651,000 1,940,000 18,000 3,609,000 1,984,836 5,593,836
Luk Kun Shing Ben BEHR(N-Z-N\F
(redesignated from executive NEZTH
director to non-executive BETEZHL
director on 20 August 2018) BiERTER) - 46,685 - 2,334 49,019 - 49,019
Yeung Chin Wan BEY(R-Z-N\F
(resigned on 20 August 2018) NAZTHEHE) - 202,783 - 7,339 210,122 - 210,122
- 3,118,468 1,940,000 45,673 5,104,141 1,984,836 7,088,977
Non-executive drectors FHTEE
Luk Kun Shing Ben EER(R-E-N\F
(redlesignated from executive NAZTBeE#T
director to non-executive EERTAEET
director on 20 August 2018) £z 73,315 - - 3,666 76,081 - 76,981
Wang David Guowei TER(R-E-N\F
(appointed on 20 August 2018) NAZTHEZRT) - - - - - - -
73,315 - - 3,666 76,981 - 76,981
Independent-non-executive diectors B 3172 %
Ma Ching Nam 55k 240,000 - - - 240,000 570,049 810,049
Look Andrew BER 220,000 - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT 120,000 - - - 120,000 - 120,000
580,000 - - - 580,000 570,049 1,150,049

1 4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IR E eI
9. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Continued) 9. EEFHFM@
Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors'  and benefts  Discretionary scheme Share
fees inkind bonuses  contributions Sub-total options Total
e R B
EFe  REWNE  BERL HEAX It B @t
HKS HKS HKS HK$ HK$ HKS HKS
BT BT BT BT BT BT BT
Year ended 31 March 2018 BE-E-\E
ZB=t-HL%E
Evecutive directors HTEE
Tang Chi Fai HHE - 1,218,000 - 18,150 1,236,150 - 1,236,150
Lee Gabriel 355 - 1,484,810 1,523,000 18,150 3,025,960 2,698,554 5,624,514
Yeung Chin Wan BEE S 790,906 S 18,150 809,055 24,690 833,745
Luk Kun Shing Ben BER - 214,655 - 10,833 225488 - 225,483

3,708,370 1,523,000 65283 5206653 2623244 7919807

Independent-non-executive directors BV 35172 %

Ma Ching Nam 558 240,000 - - - 240,000 - 240,000
Look Andrew ER 220,000 - - - 220,000 - 220,000
Lam Chi Hang Josekin AT (R-E—+4
(appointed on NATEAEZE)
14 September 2017) 65,714 - - - 65,714 - 65,714
Yu Ka Fai Alexis AEB(R-E2-+F
(resigned on 14 September 2017) AR HRBER) 54,762 - - - 54,762 - 54,762
580,476 - - - 580,476 - 580,476

BEBERRAREARAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

10. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST

14

EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, one (2018:
one) of the individuals are directors for the year ended 31
March 2019, the directors’ emoluments are disclosed in note 9.
The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the four (2018:
four) individuals for the year ended 31 March 2019, are as

10. RS HEMA

A&

BE_T-NF=A=t—HLFE &
MALR—R(ZE—-N\F: —%R)
ATRES  EXZFHRMEORE - &E
“E-NFZA=T-BLFE  EtM
F(ZE-N\F OB ALHHFMERED

follows: RIEAET
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits in =~ #% -~ B R EMWE DTz
kind 10,890,517 10,103,200
Performance related bonuses HRB AN RS 25,330,427 17,534,264
Equity-settled share-based payments PARE S A5 E DA (D BETE 2 5K 4,836,809 =
Pension scheme contributions (defined RRS AR (R ESZKEE)
contribution schemes) 72,000 64,950
41,129,753 27,702,414

The emoluments of the four (2018: four) individuals with the
highest emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2019 are

within the following bands:

H BRI RIA T EE

2019

BE_T-NF=A=+t—HILFE %
MERSHOE(ZT—\F: HE) ALH

2018
—ZE-N\EF

HK$5,500,001 — HK$6,000,000
HK$6,000,001 — HK$6,500,000
HK$7,000,001 — HK$7,500,000
HK$7,500,001 — HK$8,000,000
HK$8,500,001 — HK$9,000,000
HK$9,000,001 — HK$9,500,000

HK$11,000,001 — HK$11,500,000
HK$11,500,001 — HK$12,000,000

5,500,001 7T — 6,000,000/ 7T
6,000,001 77T — 6,500,000 7T
7,000,001 7T — 7,500,000/ 7T
7,500,001 7T — 8,000,000 7T
8,500,001 7T — 9,000,000 7T
9,000,001 7T — 9,500,000 7T

11,000,001 7T — 11,500,000 7T
11,500,001 77T — 12,000,000 7 7T

—_
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ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A 75 R R R
11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. REBBRANAEH
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(@) Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (a) MEEERRXAMTIIERE
represents:
2019 2018
—ZE-hF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Current — Hong Kong el — B
Provision for the year FREE 77,644,379 51,871,677
Over-provision in respect of AT FEREERE
prior years (7,032,855) (8,026,879)
70,611,524 48,844,798
Current — Outside Hong Kong BVER — FHAEFEIN
Provision for the year FNEE 3,716,626 5,129,431
74,328,150 53,974,229
Deferred tax IRIER IR (8,752,633) (1,956,876)
Tax charge for the year FARAFRES H 65,575,517 52,017,353
Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman BEHESHENEBELEESNEL
Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the Group is not EEH AEEEHEHENEBEER
subject to any income tax in the Cayman Islands and the B E BB FTER o
British Virgin Islands.
Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at the rate of FEREFBRNGE TIREERB ST
16.5% (2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits A16.5% ( —ZF— )\ : 16.5%) & F
for the year. Taxes on profits assessable outside Hong REHZR A o BEIBINM R B FERT
Kong have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing Y A TR TE TH3R AN B 48 L BT FE ] A RE
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates. EHETRRAE o

EERBEERASEERAT
FEHRE 2018/19 1 45



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR M T
11. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 1. ZEBEIRANFAEHR @
STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
(Continued)
(o) Reconciliation between tax charge and accounting profit (b)) WEBHREXFENHEAREEGHR
at the applicable tax rates: Fl 2 EEEERE DI A0 T
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E—)N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Profit before tax R A5 A v ) 450,080,481 330,153,644
Tax on profit before taxation, calculated — BRFi AT K 2 B 18 - 1 48RS
at the rates applicable to profits in BMERAMWEER 2
the tax jurisdictions concerned FEfFREE 72,784,002 57,569,439
Over-provision in respect of AT FEREERE
prior years (7,032,855) (8,026,879)
Tax effect of non-taxable income IFERTIE A 2 FiTE £ (5,396,722) (4,248,827)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses kAT 2 HETE 8,718,918 1,302,078
Tax losses not recognised REERWTIEE B = 25,910
Tax effect of utilisation of unused BRBTFERAERD
tax losses not recognised in prior years REBIRBEEE (4,024,870) -
Tax effect of unused tax losses not BEFEHRERED
recognised in prior years but recognised A ARFEEERH AREN A
during the year MIBEENRIETE (952,154) -
Statutory deduction ETE IR (520,000) (380,000)
Others Hith 1,999,198 775,632
Tax charge for the year FABIESZ 65,575,517 52,017,353
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE 12.
TO ORDINARY EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY

Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of
the Company of HK$361,105,819 (2018: HK$279,223,799)
and the weighted average share of 983,875,783 ordinary
shares (2018: 981,261,572 ordinary shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

B 165 S PR
%ﬁﬂ%iﬁ%éﬂii@ﬁﬁﬂi&
I
SREAXRF

BRENEF T E R AR F) LB E SRR
G 1R F11361,105,81958 7T (—F— )\
F 1 279,223,799 7T) R F N E 17 I
@A 8B 983,875,783 (—E— N\
F 081,261,572 EBR)EHEWNT -

Weighted average number of ordinary shares: LEARAINAE T8
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ET-)\F
Issued/deemed issued ordinary shares R EE N ET
at the beginning of the financial year SBIEC BITE R 983,429,948 980,827,000
Effect of share options exercised TEBRENTE 445,835 25,541
Effect of shares issued under scrip IRV AR B AT 2131 T
dividend scheme Eph2- = 409,031
Weighted average number of ordinary R=ZA=+—BmMEER
shares at 31 March I8 983,875,783 981,261,572
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE
TO ORDINARY EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity shareholders of the
Company of HK$361,105,189, and the weighted average
number of ordinary shares of 986,636,181 shares is calculated
as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted):

12. KA EEREEZRREEERE
)
ERBERF
SREFRMNDENAD T L BESRE

JEAE %7 361,105,189 78 7T K T 38 AR Nk
##986,636,181 FRIZA T HRETE -

Bl (E0F) It F 58

2019
—E-NF
Weighted average number of R=A=+—B&EaRMETHE
ordinary shares at 31 March 983,875,783
Effect of deemed issue of shares under REARABRENSIRECETRNOTE
the Company’s share option scheme 2,760,398
Weighted average number of ordinary R=A=+—BRMEFS L @R (#%) 88
shares (diluted) at 31 March 986,636,181

The diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March
2018 was the same as basic earnings per share as there were
no dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the year
ended 31 March 2018.

1 4 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. ¥ - BERSBEBBURKBEYE
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(a) Reconciliation of carrying amount: (@) FREIEHER:
Leasehold Furniture Operation Office Motor Investment
improvements  and fixtures equipment equipment  Computers vehicles Sub-total properties Total
HENEEE HAREE EERR ARG HEL RE gt RENE Eh
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS$ HK$
A7 A Bn B A #n Bn B A7
Cost or valuation; HASEE:
At1 April 2017 R=F-t§WA-A 76,463,191 6,766,194 70,731,184 2,621,562 5,900,959 2,313,935 164,797,025 - 164,797,025
Addtions AE 39,996,876 5,567,953 2,646,387 2,028,022 211,911 3,716,474 54,167,623 180,164,408 234,332,026
Business acquisitions #i5leE 3645974 2,206,503 6,821,858 155,280 197,692 1,575,636 14,602,943 - 14,602,943
Disposels e (3592853  (93630)  (659,076) (&79) - (8200 (553,57 - (555
Exchange adjusiment ERAE 329,358 157,557 - - - - 486,915 - 486,915
Fair value adjustment NFERE - - - - - - - 10285597 10,285,597
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\F=f=1-R 116,842,546 14,104,577 79,540,353 4,800,066 6,310,562 6919845  228517,049 190,400,000 418,917,949
At 1 April 2018 R=F-\§mA-A 116,842,546 14,104,577 79,540,353 4,800,066 6,310,562 6919845  228517,049 190,400,000 418,917,949
Addtions e 71,600,080 95,028,975 98,052,552 2,092,502 2,623,529 815105 276,212,743 40,183,000 316,395,743
Business acquisitions i - 3318419 - - - - 3,318,419 - 3,318,419
Disposals e (3628922) (396545  (1477131)  (196,029) (5195 (1658609 (45001412 - (45001419
Transfers E2 (16,803,674) 16,803,674 - o > 5 - - -
Exchange adjusiment Ex % (289,106) (178,697 - - - - (467,80) - 467,803)
Fair value adjustment NPER% - - - - = = - 1,417,000 1,417,000
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=R=t-R 173,720,924 91,111,496 176,115,774 6,696,545 8,858,896 6,076,261 462,579,896 232,000,000 694,579,896
Accumulated depreciation: arirE
At 1 April 2017 R=E-+£WA-A 46,176,189 2,967,669 40,521,782 1,704,642 3,063,762 184,448 94,618,512 - 94,618,512
Charge for the year ERE 18,657,521 2,493,117 10,834,290 644,104 956,092 974,755 34,559,879 - 34,559,879
Weten back on disposels NHERER (029,835) - (es34) 5 - (19285) (1606607 - (1,606607)
Exchange adjusiment EXAE 260,230 48,073 - - - - 308,303 - 308,303
At 31 March 2018 R-E-\F=f=1-R 64,164,105 5,508,859 50,872,125 2,348,746 4,019,874 966,378 127,880,087 - 127,880,087
At1 April 2018 R=F-\§mA-A 64,164,105 5,508,859 50,872,125 2,348,746 4,019,874 966,378 127,880,087 - 127,880,087
Charge for the year FRE 23922969 3,270,566 18,207,944 892,863 1,137,177 1,565,561 48,987,080 - 48,987,080
Written back on disposals REERER (3,250,694)  (2,711,765) (1,214,708) (64,455) (69,913) (1,359,175) (8,670,710) - (8,670,710)
Transfers 2B (2928579) 2,928,579 = = = B = = -
Exchange adjusiment i % (239,736) (62,896) - - - - (802,632) - (302,632)
At 31 March 2019 R-E-NE=A=1-R 81,668,065 8,933,343 67,865,361 3,177,154 5,087,138 1,162,764 167,893,825 - 167,893,825
Net book value: EETE:
At 31 March 2019 RZE-REZA=T 92,052,859 82,178,153 108,250,413 3,519,391 3,771,758 4913497 294,686,071 232,000,000 526,686,071

—H
2-\F=R=t-H 52678441 8595718 28,668,228 2,451,320 2,290,688 5083467 100,637,862 190400000 291,037,862

At 31 March 2018
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

13.

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s investment properties measured at the
end of the reporting period on a recurring basis,
categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy
as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement.
The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the
observability and significance of the inputs used in
the valuation technique as follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using
only Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

° Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using
Level 2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs
are inputs for which market data are not
available

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR M T
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y%  BMERREBURREYE
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) (4&)
(b) Fair value measurement of investment (b) BREMENLATFEFTE @)
properties (Continued)
()  Fair value hierarchy (Continued) iy 2“FEERE)

Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2019 categorised into
R-Z-NE=A=1+-H
STEAUTERN AL EE

Fair value at
31 March
2019 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
®
—B-NE
=A=t+-H
HALE F—-Ef E_ER B
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT B BT BT
Recurring fair value measurement LEMRTE
Investment properties: FEREWE 232,000,000 - - 232,000,000
Fair value measurements as at
31 March 2018 categorised into
R-E-N\E=A=1+—H
AEANTERNATETE
Fair value at
31 March
2018 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
i
—E-)N\F
ZA=+—H
MAFE F—ER EF_ER E=ER
HKS HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT
Recurring fair value measurement LEMRTE
Investment properties: SEREME 190,400,000 = - 190,400,000

BEBERRAREARAR 151
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

15

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

@

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level
2, or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group’s
policy is to recognise transfers between levels of
fair value hierarchy as at the end of the reporting
period in which they occur.

There were no investment properties held for own
use as at 31 March 2019. The valuations were
carried out by an independent firm of surveyors,
Asset Appraisal Limited, who have among their
staff fellows of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors
with recent experience in the location and category
of property being valued. The Group’s finance
director and the chief financial officer have
discussions with the surveyors on the valuation

13. 1% - BERRBURRENE
(4)

(b) REMENDFEFE @)

iy RAFERRGE

RBEE-ZT—LEFE=F—N
FZA=+—BULEFEE F—
MEFE-_HEYESEE - )
BEASELE =M  AEH
ZBEAENAFERHR 2 W%
EEBRHREHEAERE
% o

RZBE-NE=R=+—H"
MESIFERNREDNE -/
ERBLAEBMITEENES
RARET - HFETREE
REMEZEEG 8 MY LiifhiE
W E M ME R B L B E
KR - AKREZTEMBES
K BEEE RABMARE
FRHEHETHENRKRM

assumptions and valuation results when the R
valuation is performed at annual reporting date.

Valuation techniques Unobservable input Range
ER % FAEERAYE gE
Investment properties Market comparison approach Premium (discount) on quality -11% to +14%
B i &SR of the properties (2018: -12% to +1%)
MELEHE () -11%to +14%
(ZE-NF:
-12%Z +1%)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(b) Fair value measurement of investment
properties (Continued)

(ii)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurement

The fair value of properties is determined using
market comparison approach by reference to
recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square foot basis, adjusted for a premium
or a discount specific to the quality of the Group’s
properties compared to the recent sales. Higher
premium for higher quality properties will result in a
higher fair value measurement.

The movements during the year in the balance of

A H5 R P 5

13. ¥I% - BERREUARRENE
()

(b) REMENDFEFE )

(i) F=ERAFEFEEH

MEZRFEDERTS LR
EEE HES2EAHLERY
XBEBYHERERELEGFHE
ZIHEE  BERAKEY
XEEsFERBadE (8
HHERHULRMAE)FELH
E-mYELEREEETS
Be SEUEMBZIAF
BETRER

BZRMAFEFEZGEREF

these Level 3 fair value measurements are as Nz 8T :
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Investment properties BREYE
At 1 April REA—H 190,400,000 -
Additions NE 40,183,000 180,164,403
Fair value adjustment NFEFEE 1,417,000 10,235,597
At 31 March R=B=+—H 232,000,000 190,400,000

Fair value adjustment of investment properties is
recognised in the line item “Other net income and
gains” on the face of the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.

All the gains recognised in profit or loss for the year
arise from the properties held at the end of the
reporting period.

BREVENRAFERBRES
B RA E A Rt 58
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BEERBEEBRASEERAR
FEHRE 2018/19 1 53



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(c)

(d)

15

Assets held under finance leases

The Group has the option to purchase the leased motor
vehicles and operation equipment at a price deemed to
be a bargain purchase option for all the finance lease
arrangements.

At 31 March 2019, the net book values of motor vehicles
and operation equipment held under finance leases were
HK$1,378,312 (2018: HK$2,418,956) and
HK$52,867,874 (2018: HK$340,100) respectively.

Assets leased out under operating leases

The Group leases out investment properties under
operating leases. The leases typically run for an initial
period of 2-3 years, with an option to renew the lease
after that date at which time all terms are renegotiated.
Lease payments are usually increased every 2-3 years to
reflect market rentals. None of the leases includes
contingent rentals.

Total future minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are receivable as follows:

13. 1% - MERREURRKRENHE

(4)

(c)

(d)

REREHERECEE

A B TR AT AT BRI
WEAEEEEREEOREREA
ERERLERE -

RZE—AE=ZA=+—8  U@&
MEREZAEREERBENREF
BN RIAE1,378,3128 T (- T — \4F :
2,418,956/87T) ;252,867,874 L (—
T — \4E : 340,100/ 7T) °

RELEHELENEE

AEERBELEZHELELZEEREY
X -2SHO—RNTREME=
FoUREBERY  RZBERMEA
R EEHNER - HENKATEM
E=FLEA-KR UARBRTEHEE -
ZEHEMERFLAES -

RIBTRIHEHEEEER TR R
REEHEEMRERENT

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E-NF

HK$ HK$

&I BIT

Within 1 year 1FER 3,760,000 1,796,480
1-2 years 1226 3,630,000 =
2-5 years 2E5%F 2,420,000 =
9,810,000 1,796,480
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR M T
14. GOODWILL 14. 5 &
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
Notes HK$ HK$
B sE BT BT
At the beginning of year 4 95,223,189 36,657,111
Business acquisitions Egealigis 31 21,144,096 58,566,078
Disposal of subsidiaries L E BB A A 6 (9,988,483) -
Impairment losses BEEE 6 (7,279,594) -
At the end of year ER 99,099,208 95,223,189
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cost %N 108,724,209 97,568,596
Accumulated impairment losses Z2EHRERE (9,625,001) (2,345,407)
Net carrying amount BRI FE 99,099,208 95,223,189
Impairment testing of goodwill BERENR
The carrying amounts of goodwill allocated to each of the TEERHRSELEN((REELEMN])
cash-generating units (“CGUSs”) is as follows: BIRERREEN N ¢
2019 2018
—E-NEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Spine treatment services in Hong Kong BBAWEERE 24,545,805 24,545,805
Beauty services in the PRC — Sunflower B — Sunflower E& IR 12,862,225 12,862,225
Aesthetic dental services in E# — ConyaZ=ta iR%
Hong Kong — Conya 22,050,613 22,050,613
Therapy services in Hong Kong — McKenzie & — ZEEAE RS 18,735,722 -
Other insignificant goodwill H I NE KA EE 20,904,843 35,764,546

99,099,208 95,223,189

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7

14.

15

KRR FE

GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Spine treatment services in Hong Kong CGU

The recoverable amount of the spine treatment services in
Hong Kong CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
is 177% (2018: 17%) and the growth rate used to extrapolate
the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-
year period is 1% (2018: 1%).

Aesthetic dental services in Hong Kong — Conya CGU

The recoverable amount of the aesthetic dental services in
Hong Kong — Conya CGU has been determined based on a
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections from
financial budgets approved by senior management covering a
five-year period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow
projections is 15% (2018: 15%) and the growth rate used to
extrapolate the cash flows of the cash-generating units beyond
the five-year period is 1% (2018: 1%).

Beauty services in the PRC — Sunflower CGU

The recoverable amount of the beauty services in the PRC —
Sunflower CGU has been determined based on a value-in-use
calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets
approved by senior management covering a five-year period.
The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections is 16%
(2018: 16%) and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash
flows of the cash-generating units beyond the five-year period
is 1% (2018: 1%).

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (Continued)
Therapy services in Hong Kong — McKenzie

The recoverable amount of the therapy services in Hong Kong
— McKenzie CGU has been determined based on a value-in-
use calculation using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period. The discount rate applied to the cash flow projection is
12% and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows of
the cash-generating units beyond the five-year period is 3%.

Impairment losses

The Group assessed the recoverable amounts of the goodwill
at the end of the reporting period, impairment losses of
HK$7,279,594 relating to a number of insignificant businesses
attributable to aesthetic medical, beauty and wellness and sale
of skincare, healthcare and beauty products segment were
recognised in the line item “Other net income and gains”, as
these businesses were loss-making and management
assessed that the recoverable amounts of the CGUs that such
goodwill related to were HK$nil, determined based on value-in-
use calculations using cash flow projections from financial
budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year
period.

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of all
the CGUs. The following describes each key assumption on
which management has based its cash flow projections to
undertake impairment testing of goodwiill:

Discount rate — The discount rates used are before tax and
reflect specific risks relating to the relevant cash-generating
units.

Price inflation — The basis used to determine the price inflation
is the forecast price index during the budget year for Hong
Kong, Macau or the PRC where the operations are carried out.

The values assigned to the key assumptions are consistent
with external information sources.

A H5 R P 5

14. BE (®)

BHERERR &)
&8 — BREAERE

TFE — BERRAERGREELEMHA
WEeBRIAEBEEIRSREEREL
ENMBREMEEN I FHRANRER
EMBEE - EBRARESREREENIERER
B/12% MRSELBELFHRERNRS
MERMA 3% WIBREMER -

HERE

AEEETHERBRERROFETRD &
B REEI8 7,279,594 8 T HAR A X £ B8
B EARBEAREEEE  REEE
REMAPBHETE NEANEBRER -
R IEMMA Rk FEE] BEER  REA
RREEBELEE MEREBIGHEH
BENEET KRB SEATHET BT
HUAEAEBEEZERESREEEMEN
S EEMEENAFEERNIRESREM
EE -

MERSELBUNEREBENESE TR
REVER FPETHE  TXHABTEEH
EReRBNETHBEREBENRARERAD

TEBR
BRE — FAEREARBAIMRE AR
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REBREREE  RFSTEBEFE
NETERI (B EN -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

:I:
7T #& i‘% Izﬁ uf
15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15. B EE
Club
memberships
and school ~ Customer
debentures lists Licence  Trademark Others Total
i
RERES EFEE R L 2t @t
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS$
o o oo oo B B
Cost: A
At 1 April 2017 RZZ—+ENA—H 19,518,000 6,922,547 3,784,851 8,907,318 - 39,132,716
Business acquisitions (note 31) EEUEE (H331) - - - 15125698 38,607,000 53,732,698
Exchange adjustment R AR - - 328,146 - = 328,146
At 31 March 2018 R-Z—[EZAS+-B 19518000 692547 4112997 24033016 38607000 93,193,560
At 1 April 2018 RZE-\FWA—H 19,518,000 6,922,547 4112997 24,033,016 38,607,000 93,193,560
Additions NE 11,270,001 - - - - 11,270,001
Business acquisitions (note 81)  EFINEE (Fit31) - 4,300,000 = = - 4,300,000
Exchange adjustment R AR S = (266,022) - - (266,022)
At 31 March 2019 RoT-MEZAS+-8 00788001 11220547 3846975 24033016 33607000 108497539
Accumulated amortisation: St
At 1 April 2017 RZE—+FWA—H - 1,314,454 471,999 1,439,813 - 3,226,266
Charge for the year ERNTH - 560,809 813,146 1,690,963 - 3,004,918
Exchange adjustment ERAR - - 40,922 - = 40,922
At 31 March 2018 RZZ-\E=A=+-H = 1,875,263 1,326,067 3,130,776 - 6,332,106
At 1 April 2018 R=Z-\FHA—-A = 1,875,263 1,326,067 3,130,776 - 6,332,106
Charge for the year FRLH S 1,116,170 793,329 2,403,302 8,445,281 12,758,082
Exchange adjustment R AR - - (85,767) = = (85,767)
At 31 March 2019 R-Z-NE=R=1-H - 2,991,433 2,033,629 5,534,078 8445281 19,004,421
Net book value: BRI -
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=R=1+—H 30,788,001 8,231,114 1,813,346 18498938 30,161,719 89,493,118
At 31 March 2018 W=Z-\E=R=1+-H 19,518,000 5,047,284 2,786,930 20,902,240 38,607,000 86,861,454
The amortisation charge for the year is included in “other FAMEIEERFTAGEBRRTH [Hi
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. X e
The intangible assets with indefinite useful life are related to EmRAFAFTHNENEEDEEENE
club memberships and school debentures in Hong Kong. No Fre#EkeRESEM FRLERERR
impairment loss was recognised during the year (2018: HK$nil). BEEE(CZE—N\F - TET) -

1 5 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B H5 R M 7

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES 16. REELEMNER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-)\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Share of net assets DEEEFE 37,051,803 30,194,000
Loan to a joint venture ERTEERHE 14,500,000 14,500,000
51,551,803 44,694,000
Less: Loan to a joint venture classified B (TR FRIE - Re R EAM
as current asset under “Prepayments, RSB BT D8RS
deposits and other receivables” RBEENERTEERR (14,500,000) -

37,051,803 44,694,000

The loan to a joint venture was unsecured, interest-free and BERFELETEAERE 28 BER

had been repaid subsequently after year end. FHEARBREEE -

(@ Details of the Group’s interest in the joint ventures, which @ AEEREGL2LENER(NEEH
are accounted for using the equity method in the BHRFEAEREAR) FBOT

consolidated financial statements, are as follows:

Proportion of ownership interest

PRl
Place of Particulars of Group’s Held
incorporation issued and effective bythe Heldbya
Name of joint venture and business paid up capital interest Company subsidiary  Principal activity
FMRIR BETR biS-1:] HEA T
RELEER inReny ARELFEE ERES XNRME Fi  TEEE
Good Union Corporation HongKong  Registered capital 50% - 50%  Provision of repair
Limited (“GUC”) HK$100 and maintenance
services for beauty
equipment
sIeEERAA (EI2E])  &# FAMER 50% - 50% AEAREREEE
100/ 7T R R
Good Union Medical Limited HongKong  Registered capital 50% - 50%  Sales of medication
(“GUM") HK$100 products
Good Union Medical Limited &8 FMER 50% - 50% HEEMEmM
(TGUM)) 100787
Hero Design Studio Limited Hong Kong Registered capital 50% S 50%  Provision of interior
(‘HDS") HK$1,500,000 design services
FlERERABRERRR BB T EAR 50% - 50% RUEEARRS
(THeAED) 1,500,000
Reta Investment Holding Limited BVI Registered capital 50% S 50%  Investment holding
(‘RETA") USD50,000
Reta Investment Holding Limited XBRXES AR 50% - 50% REEK
([RETAJ) 50,0003 7T
GUC and GUM (together referred to as the “GU”), HDS and Bl& & NRGUM(#TEIGU]) - HDS K& RETA -
RETA, the joint ventures in which the Group participates, are NEBRERHEENE  AlTEAEMS
unlisted corporate entities whose quoted market price is not WMEMNIELETARIEE -
available.

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

16. INTEREST IN JOINT VENTURES (Continued) 16. REPENER @)
HEHEE I AEEELARNEA
ABAEGUIIBBRBBERAGA
HEmEEEEOHERENT -

(b)  Summarised financial information of the material joint (b)
ventures, GU, adjusted for any differences in accounting
policies, and a reconciliation to the carrying amount in

16

the consolidated financial statements, are disclosed

below:
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gross amounts of GU GU#RE
Current assets ENEE 45,309,820 35,618,061
Non-current assets ERHEE 2,395,284 1,350,128
Current liabilities MENEE (20,399,086) (11,899,839)
Non-current liabilities FEREBEE - (2,325,000)
Equity S 27,306,018 22,743,350
Included in the above assets and FFALMEERERE
liabilities:
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIREEEY 14,536,266 6,244,964
Current financial liabilities (excluding e raE (5 REMERN
trade and other payables and FRIE N BERIN)
provisions) (1,745,004) (5,560,306)
2019 2018
—E-NF —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Gross amounts of GU GU 4%
Revenue A 95,563,985 84,767,884
Profit from continuing operations REFELEEB R 7,122,668 10,143,138
Total comprehensive income FHERABEE 7,122,668 10,143,138
Dividend paid BT S (2,560,000) -
Included in the above profit: A EHUREF) -
Interest income FEWA 37,242 35,502
Interest expense R EF X (144,627) (28,684)
Income tax expense FIS B = -
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in GU B 7K £2 @] Fr 13 GU #E 25 11 8
Gross amounts of GU’s net assets GUEEFE®ER 27,306,018 22,743,350
Group’s effective interest REEERER 50% 50%
Group’s share of GU’s net assets REBEEEGUEEFE 13,653,009 11,371,675
Identifiable intangible assets AIHBEREE 5,847,728 5,847,728
Fair value adjustment on net assets IR EE 2 N ERHE
acquired 591,451 591,451
Goodwill EES 12,383,146 12,383,146
Carrying amount in the consolidated RiRE M mKRMEREE
financial statements 32,475,334 30,194,000

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BA TSR M T
17. INVENTORIES 17. &
(@) Inventories in the consolidated statement () FEMBRRERNFEERE
of financial position comprise:
2019 2018
—g-7FE —T)\F
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Skincare, healthcare and beauty products #E - 1R ERERE R 13,268,932 10,359,335
Medications, consumables and gey) - M REMEER
other supplies 38,811,831 21,085,160
52,080,763 31,444,495
(b) The analysis of the amount of inventories (b) BRABIAEFTABRNEFE
recognised as an expense and included in SEIFWMT :

profit or loss is as follows:

2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—)\F
HK$ HKS$
BT I
Carrying amount of inventories sold EHERERENTFERTE
and consumed 227,286,741 163,402,642

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

18.

16

A5 R P 5E

TRADE RECEIVABLES

18. E 5 BWFIA

2019 2018

—E-hEF —FE-N\F

HK$ HK$

BT BT

Trade receivables 2 5 EWGIB 104,668,285 68,670,393

All of the trade receivables are receivables from contracts with
customers within the scope of HKFRS 15. The comparative
figure of trade receivables are also the opening balance for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly on
credit card settlements and other institutional customers in
respect of provision of medical services. The credit period is
generally 1 to 120 days for the credit card settlements from the
respective financial institutions and other institutional
customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by senior management. The Group does not hold any
collateral or other credit enhancements over its trade receivable
palances. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.

As of the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of
trade receivables, based on the invoice date and net of loss
allowance is as follows:

A EZRERIAEY AEBMEREER
F1RBEANRE TP A KR EKGIR -
BIREABENLBREFTABE_F
—NF=ZA=1T—HIFENFNER -

REBEEFNESBRRETEBRNEAFR
HEEARSRIREERRIEHEMILERE -
BESSREE M EMEEREPESNER
REENERBE—RE1E120K - AEH
77 (Bl B AR 22 i) EL oK Uk [B] 9 FE UGN TE - T ia
HENREe R EREBEHEMN - A&EEY
EFHEBEFRWGBE®RFETMETER
SR EE b {5 FIg5R G - B 5 B UGKIA
TEHE ©

BERSHR REZAHRERRES
BIEHNE 5 RKSIRRNRRE DT

2019 2018

—E-hF —E-N\F

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Within 1 month 1EAR 95,616,865 54,068,920
1 to 3 months 1&31@A 7,323,003 8,551,075
Over 3 months 31E A E 1,728,417 6,050,398

104,668,285 68,670,393

Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out in note
S15:

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES

A H5 R P 5

19. ARFIER - RERHEMWEBRFIR

2019 2018
—E-NF —T—)\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Prepayments (note) FE k8 (B EE) 181,687,300 43,342,417
Deposits e 64,968,908 64,214,477
Other receivables H fth fE U FhT8 92,394,731 32,093,062
339,050,939 139,649,956

Portion classified as non-current DR AIERNEIRE o
— Rental and other deposits — e kEMmEre (35,847,456) (45,204,459)
— Prepayments (note) — BT FRIE (M FE) (104,513,425) (8,175,787)
Current portion BIHEAER 2 198,690,058 86,269,710

Note: In connection with certain other acquisitions during the year ended
31 March 2019, the Group prepaid HK$122,783,000 (2018: HK$nil)
to certain practitioners in respect of their future services to the
Group.

The amounts included in prepayments as at 31 March 2019 were
HK$116,791,425 (2018: HKSnil), of which HK$12,278,300 (2018:
HKS$nil) is expected to be charged to profit or loss within 12 months
from the end of the reporting period.

The above other receivables are unsecured, interest-free and
recoverable within one year, except for a receivable amounting
to HK$17,966,294 (2018: HK$nil), which is interest bearing at
5% per annum.

The above other receivables include an amount due from a
related party of HK$7,000,000 (2018: HK$nil) and a loan to a
joint venture of HK$14,500,000 (2018: HKS$nil). The details of
the loan to a joint venture are disclosed in note 16.

Mzt MEERE_T-NAF=A=+-HLFENE
THMKENS  ARECRETEEARR/A
SERHE RS MR FTEN 122,783,000/ 7T( =
Z-N\F T -

R-E—NAFE=ZA=+— Bt ABNFENGE
B116,791,425 B L (=T — NF : ) &
12,278,300 T (—F— \F : L) 1EH
R E AR ET =@ A RN B Ik -

T EMmERREASEERR 2R
—FERULE] - HERE U RS 5 FOIE 17,966,294
BIL(ZE—N\F : TE) WREFE5%
B e

bt H A FE R RR OB B HE TE AR BE B 5 OB
7,000,000 T (ZE—\F : TFT)ERN
F A B E14,500,0008 T (ZF— \F :
TETT) BEHERTEELENFBRH
AE16 3 -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

16

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

20. BAFEFABEENEHEE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Financial assets at fair value through  EZAFEABENEREE
profit or loss
Non-Current B
— Unlisted equity investments — ELTRAKE 37,356,812 -
Current B
— Unlisted fund investments — LEMESKE 176,383,259 329,449,514
— Listed debt investments — FTEBRE 423,447,598 166,380,238
599,830,857 495,829,752
637,187,669 495,829,752
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 20. RAFEFTAEZENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued) (4%)

The performance of the Group’s financial assets at fair value Bz NF=A=+—"B8I1tFE K
through profit or loss (excluding non-current unlisted equity EFERANTEFAEBROEREE(TBE
investments) for the year ended 31 March 2019 is as follows: JERBIIE FTHIRAIRE ) RIRWOT -
Percentage of
Percentage of total financial
shareholdings assetsatfair  Percentage of Dividend
or offering of Carrying Net fair value Camying  valuethrough total assets of income and
Descriptions (with bond interest rate and the debt at amount at Additions Disposals gain/(loss) amountat  profit or loss at the Groupat  interestincome
maturity date if applicable) ISIN numbers 31 March 2019 1April 2018 during the year  during the year fortheyear ~ 31March2019 31 March2019 31 March 2019 for the year
R-E-1E
RZB-1F ZAET-BE RZB-1E
Zh=1-1 R=%-NE £ RZB-1E BAFE =ZASt-RR
HRESER BA-BH AVERE/ ZAZT-BN  HABENER A58 ERRERAR
b (BEREAENINE - MER) BRISRAE B3] HEE FRIFE FRLE (E8) 8 AR EEAENHA BEENRA FISHA
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
A AT o o A AT o s
Agricultural BK China/HK (3.08875%) X51897393200 0.04% = 1,670,844 S 413 1,570431 0.26% 0.07% 20381
Bank of China Hong Kong (2.77%; 8 MAR 2021) XS1785829414 0.80% 62,840,569 = o (28,981) 62,811,588 10.48% 268% 1,978,011
Bank of China Hong Kong (6.75%; 23 OCT 2049) XS1122780106 0.05% 23,871,813 - - (2,008,076) 21,863,787 3.64% 093% 1,5434%
Bank of China London (3.15%; 7 JUN 2023) X51832452103 0.40% = 15,709,694 S (28,307) 15,681,387 261% 0.67% 424,663
Barclays Plc (3.70%; 16 MAY 2024) US06738EBCB4 0.10% S 11,749,314 = (228,485) 11,520,829 1.92% 049% 443555
BOC Aviation Limited (3.41%; 2 MAY 2021) US00681MAG33 0.60% - 23,630,831 - 41,968 23,672,799 3.95% 101% 758,303
CDBL Funding Two (3.49%; 18 JUL 2021) XS1845139515 0.60% = 31427,6% S 33,253 31,460,949 5.24% 1.34% 1,148,185
China Gonstruction Bank (3.00%; 24 APR 2021) X$1880301228 NATER S 23,560,036 (23,601,662) 41,626 - - - -
CICC HK Finance 2016 Mtn (3.52%; 11 SEP 2021) XS1852578431 0.75% - 23,564,036 - 34,582 23,598,618 393% 1.00% 489,649
China Minsheng Bkg (3.11%; 9 MAR 2023) XS1789639884 0.20% 9414219 S S 9,497 9423116 1.57% 0.40% 330,863
Gam Star Fund Plc [EQOBYYLYN74 0.01% S 36,783,601 (23,173,036) (4,648,509) 8,962,056 1.49% 0.38% 1,174,365
Goldman Sachs Group Inc (3.48%; 16 MAY 2024) US38141GXD14 0.23% - 27,556,683 - (624.210) 27,082,373 451% 1.15% 129,408
HSBC Holdings Plc (6.25%; 23 MAR 2049) US404280BN80 0.16% 6,421,121 23,943,288 S (483,863 29,880,546 4.98% 1.27% 1,889,849
ICBC Asia Limited (4.50%; 10 OCT 2023) XS0976879279 NATER S 7922613 (7,845,700) (76,913) - - - 176,528
ICBC (6.00%; 10 DEC 2049) USY396564A40 0.10% 24,076,851 - - (214,950) 23,861,901 3.98% 1.03% 1,410,107
ICBC London (3.05%; 14 JUN 2021) X51830984628 1.24% = 48,865,176 S (49,185) 48,815,991 8.14% 2.08% 1,256,761
ICBCIL Finance Company Limited (3.45%; 15 MAY 2023) X51810003928 1.33% S 62,952,004 o (397,890 62,554,114 10.44% 2.66% 1,821,541
Inventive Global Investment Limited (3.18%; 19 SEP 2021) XS1879568894 0.20% - 7,853,076 - 11,246 7,864,322 1.31% 0.33% 80,025
Li & Fung Limited (5.00%; 8 NOV 2049) XS0851808435 NATER 23,561,682 = 23,543,100) (18,582) = = = 215,768
PIMCO Funds GIS Plc (HKD) [EQOBYXVW909 0.01% 178,485,021 - (117,310925) (947,954) 60,226,142 10.04% 251% 3,383,749
PIMCO Funds GIS Plc (EUR) IE00B8DOPHA1 NATER 47,005,720 - (43,652,838) (3352,882) - - - 455,510
Red Arc Term Liquidty Fund [E00BYZ7Y673 0.29% 103,958,773 S S 3,236,288 107,195,061 17.87% 457% S
Societe Generale (6.75%; 6 APR 2049) USF8586CBQ45 0.24% = 23,854,503 o (1,820,206) 21,834,297 3.64% 093% 1,562,676
Standard Chartered Bank Limited (4.10%; 25 MAY 2018) XS1416312120 NATER 16,193,983 - (16,751,418 557,435 - - - 93,993
Towngas Finance Limited (4.75%; 28 JAN 2049) X81022151416 NATER S 24,037,841 (23919,142) (118,699) = o S 622,369
Westwood Group Holding Limited (4.88%; 19 APR 2021) XS1807198145 NATER S 4,707,174 (4,788,251) 81,077 - - - -
Yuexiu Reit Min Company Limited (4.75%; 27 APR 2021) XS1800164904 NATER > 7,820,630 (7971,752) 151222 - - - -
495,829,752 407,308,840 (292,557,824 (10,749,911) 599,830,857 100.00% 26.56% 21,410,354
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND

16

TIME DEPOSITS

(@) Cash and cash equivalents and time

deposits comprise:

21. RERREEEYUREREFR

(a)

ReRESSEVUARERE
MBE

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Cash at bank and in hand RITFERRFRER 366,969,663 295,481,085
Time deposits TEHRTF K 2,001,612 397,872,256
368,971,275 693,353,341
Less: Pledged time deposits for banking & : ZhiE /TR EEAER RO H
facilities as security for credit card FHEERNEERES
instalments programme TR (2,001,612) (2,000,740)
Time deposits with original maturity FREABRBE=(AN
over 3 months eV - (395,871,516)
Cash and cash equivalents HERIALEEY 366,969,663 295,481,085

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying period from one day to one year depending on
the Group’s immediate cash requirements, and earn
interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and time deposits are deposited with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Included in cash and cash equivalents, HK$13,504,197
(2018: HK$16,917,120) are denominated in Renminbi
and deposited with the banks in the PRC. These
deposits are not freely convertible and the remittance of
funds out of the PRC is subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21.
TIME DEPOSITS (continued)

(b)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from

financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
from financing activities, including both cash and non-
cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are liabilities for which cash flows were, or future cash
flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated cash
flow statement as cash flows from financing activities.

A H5 R P 5

RERBREESEYURERERX

(&)

(b) BMEEBRELEBNYIR

TERAVNAEENRBERKABER
BNEEEENES  BERENIF
Ren2s - - RERETDHARE

El/\

REREIXRKNBZREERN

AEBNGEAREREXRTEIER
;K Q Hﬁﬂéﬁ/ﬁ@bmﬁﬁ//wi ©

Bank
borrowings
and Finance
overdrafts leases Total
RITER
REX MERE st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2018 R-B-N\ENA—A 558,853,516 2,126,492 560,980,008
Changes from financing cash flows: REEHRERZEH :
Proceeds from new bank borrowings ¥R {TIE TS EIE 100,180,223 - 100,180,223
Repayment of bank borrowings EBEFTER (161,320,059) - (161,320,059)
Proceeds from sale and leaseback ERMERTHEEHIE
arrangement - 46,000,000 46,000,000
Capital element of finance lease ENREHEEHENER
rentals paid #Ha = (1,354,651) (1,354,651)
Interest element of finance lease BENREHERENFE
rentals paid iy - (31,016) (31,016)
Interest paid on bank borrowings and BT IRITIE R E LA B
overdraft 2,712,119 = 2,712,119
Total changes from financing cash flows & EENR ¢ k2 #E4EEE (63,851,955) 44,614,333  (19,237,622)
Other changes: Hn 5 :
Finance charges on obligations MEHEAEZRERY
under finance leases = 31,016 31,016
Interest on bank borrowings MERZ 2,712,119 - 2,712,119
Total other changes Hip# e 2,712,119 31,016 2,743,135
At 31 March 2019 R-ZBE-NE=B=+—H 497,713,680 46,771,841 544,485,521
BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SR M T
21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND 21. RERBFSEEYUREHER
TIME DEPOSITS (continued) (&)
(b) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from (b) BEEFHFIEEEENEHE@)
financing activities (Continued)
Bank Finance
borrowings leases Total
RITER MERE st
HKS HKS HK$
BT BT BT
At 1 April 2017 RZE—tHEWNA—H = 924,438 924,438
Changes from financing cash flows: F&EERER 2S5 :
Proceeds from new bank borrowings ~ #T3EER1TIE FETS B 560,841,888 - 560,841,888
Repayment of bank borrowings BEBITER (3,471,510) = (3,471,510)
Capital element of finance lease ENREHEHENER
rentals paid B = (1,313,786) (1,313,786)
Interest element of finance lease BENREHERENFIE
rentals paid B2 = (31,193) (31,199
Interest paid on bank borrowings ERRITERFE (632,795) = (632,795)

Total changes from financing cash flows  F&EER &R #8445 556,837,583 (1,344,979) 555,492,604

Other changes: Hih# g
New finance leases FERmEEE - 2,515,840 2,515,840
Finance charges on obligations BEHEAEZRERY

under finance leases - 31,198 31,198
Acquisition of businesses WK% 1,483,138 - 1,483,138
Interest expenses FMERL 532,795 = 532,795
Total other changes HivEshEss 2,015,938 2,547,033 4,562,966
At 31 March 2018 RZB—-NFE=ZH=+—H 558,853,516 2,126,492 560,980,008

(c) Material non-cash transactions (c) EXFRERS
Additions to property, plant and equipment of HK$nil HE T NF=A=+—BILFE
(2018: HK$2,515,840) for the year ended 31 March 2019 RNEME BEERRBTEL(ZE
were acquired through finance leases. — )\ : 25158408 70) WA BRE
HEBA -

During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Company REBEZE_Z—N\F=ZA=+—HLF
had issued 2,530,448 shares under scrip dividend B AARIBEUARKEF2IZTT
scheme (Note 28(c)(ii)). 2,530,448 AR 1 (B33 28(c)(ii)) °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

=+ o
BA TSR M T
22. TRADE PAYABLES 22, E5ENARIE
An ageing analysis of the trade payables, based on the invoice B O REMNRENERSITURRZREEL)
date, is as follows: J{I N
2019 2018
—B-(E —ET)N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Within 1 month 1B AR 12,631,726 8,081,532
1 to 2 months 12 2{@A 1,384,677 615,848
2 to 3 months 2E31EA 2,930,877 79,926
Over 3 months SME A E 4,932,044 661,161
21,879,324 9,438,467
The trade payables are non-interest bearing and generally have LB EEMNRIBIE  NHE—KAE60X
payment terms within 60 days. BARA o
23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. HittEFRIERETER
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT
Other payables H At T FRIE 56,167,679 34,163,719
Accruals FEETE R 86,846,699 59,813,238
Provision for reinstatement costs FEERAEE 10,150,000 6,500,000
153,164,378 100,476,957
Portion classified as non-current D¥ERIEBNEAEE
— provision for reinstatement costs — EERAEE (9,110,000) (3,690,000)
Current portion BNHEAEE 2 144,054,378 96,786,957
Other payables are non-interest bearing and have an average EEMAZIERG S THNHHAE=E
payment term of three months. B o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

23. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 23. ¢

(Continued)

The provision for reinstatement costs represents management’s
best estimate of the Group’s liabilities of the costs of dismantling
and removing the leasehold improvements and restoring the
sites on which they are located.

HiENAREREGTER @)

EERAREEEERHAREEHERH
EBEBREENEREARREREYRE
EFREM RN AN R EZ REME -

The movements in the provision for reinstatement costs are as BERABEENEHOT -
follows:
2019 2018
—E-hF —N\F
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At the beginning of year F7) 6,500,000 5,950,000
Additional provision FEONES 4,060,000 890,000
Amounts utilised during the year FREASRE (410,000) (340,000)
At the end of year FR 10,150,000 6,500,000
Portion classified as current liabilities NERARBEBENITS (1,040,000) (2,810,000)
Non-current portion JEBNHEAER 9,110,000 3,690,000
24. BANK BORROWINGS 24. RITER
At 31 March 2019, the bank borrowings were repayable as RZE-NWF=ZA=+—80" BERTE
follows: REEFEANT
2019 2018
—E-hEF —N\&F
HK$ HKS$
BT BT
Bank borrowings repayable within 1 year —FRNBEAEENRITER
without repayable on demand clause I?ﬂ%ﬁzx*% = (52 356,114,245 442,441,888
Portion of bank borrowings due for R—FRNE EEENRITER
repayment within 1 year which contain B8 T EIRERERER
a repayable on demand clause 23,261,204 18,423,587
Portion of bank borrowings due for AR —F R EEEENRITER
repayment after 1 year which contain 2o BT EREREZIER
a repayable on demand clause 118,338,231 97,988,041
497,713,680 558,853,516
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24. BANK BORROWINGS (continued)

B RS R &R B 5
24. SRITER #)
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZEFE-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT I

Bank borrowings IRITIER
— secured — BEH
— unsecured — K

476,712,254 558,835,516
21,001,426 S

497,713,680 558,835,516

At 31 March 2019, investment properties of HK$163,000,000
(2018: HK$121,800,000) and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of HK$492,635,797 (2018:
HK$479,635,769) were pledged to various banks to secure the
bank borrowings of HK$120,598,009 (2018: HK$115,399,594)
and HK$356,114,245 (2018: HK$442,441,888) respectively
granted to the Group.

In addition, at 31 March 2018, bank borrowings of
HK$1,012,034 were secured by assets of a director of a
subsidiary.

Certain of the Group’s banking facilities are subject to the
fulfilment of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s or
relevant subsidiaries’ financial ratios, as are commonly found in
lending arrangements with financial institutions. If the Group
were to breach the covenants, the drawn down facilities would
become payable on demand, in addition to those bank
borrowings with repayable on demand clause.

At 31 March 2019 and 2018, none of the covenants relating to
drawn down facilities has been breached.

RZBE-NF=A=+—8 KEY%
163,000,000 7wt( = T — J\ F:
121,800,000 70 ) iz A F BT AB =W
S RYEEA492,635,797 B (T — \F :
479,635,769 L) BB F L MIRT o
RIVE A7 & B B IR 1T 5 30 120,598,009 78
T( = F — J\F 115,399,594 7T ) A0
356,114,245% 7( = T — N\ F:
442,441,888 7 7T ) BIHEIR ©

WA RZE—NF=ZA=+—8 " BT
B3 1,012,034 B Tt — BB RARIMES
B & EK IR o

AEEETRITREBRBGASENKK B
NAVERBBAEEVBLENRNEK 75
VRIFE - L EROF AN BN B EBR L
MERLHED - WARBERZZY - BRZ
FAWEIRBSRERGEFORITET > B
kHXEﬁwﬁﬁH IRImBENRERE -

R-E-NER-F—\E=A=+—8
BEE A RERRARENRY -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

25.

26.

17

DEFERRED REVENUE

The deferred revenue is mainly related to the provision of
medical, aesthetic medical and beauty and wellness services.
The service period is generally one year and all customers are
required to prepay the packages in full prior to utilisation of
services.

The comparative figure of deferred revenue is also the opening
balance for the year ended 31 March 2019.

The amount of revenue recognised for the year ended 31
March 2019 (2018: year ended 31 March 2018) that was
included in deferred revenue as at 1 April 2018 was
HK$452,391,483 (1 April 2017: HK$327,894,405).

All of the deferred revenue as at 31 March 2019 and 2018 is
expected to be recognised as revenue within one year from the
end of the reporting period.

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(@) Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial
position represents:

25.

26.

I FE WA

EEBAETEREEHER BEXTAR
RENFRERBER - REH—RB—F
AMAEPANMERRGAZBANER -

BLERANLEBRBFTABE_T—NF
ZAZ+-RUEEENFOER

RoF—N\FEA—BMEERARE R
HE-T-NF=A=+—BLFE(-T
—N\E BE-T—N\E=A=+—HIF
FE)ERABWAR 452,391,483 0 (=%
—+FPA—H : 327,894,405 7T) °

R-EBE—NFEFER-_ET—NF=ZA=+—H
MAMBRERATERENREHARE —F
NIERAWA o

RE PR R A Y PR 1§ %

(a) meaMBHRRRAMBIEAE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
HK$ HK$
BT P IT

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax FRBEBFNEHEE
for the year 77,644,379 51,871,677
Provisional tax paid B EEBIE (46,561,727) (36,584,851)
31,082,652 15,286,826
Provision for tax outside Hong Kong BBIEINA BB 3,853,693 2,618,368
Current tax payable FE BN ERFR IR 34,936,345 17,905,194
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

26. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

26. HREMBRRKRANEAEH @)

(b) Deferred Tax (Assets)/Liabilities (b) EERIE(EE) &E

Temporary
differences
between
depreciation Temporary
and the related  differences from
Unused depreciation  amortisation of
tax losses allowance intangible assets Total
TEEABNE
BEzBEN  EREEEHEN
ABAKEER ERHER ERHER @t
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
B B B BT
At 1 April 2017 R-E—+EWA—H = (1,190,388) 2,836,603 1,646,215
(Credited)/charged to RBE(GTA) /Tl
profit or loss (2,311,349 688,055 (333,582) (1,956,876)
Business acquisitions (note 31) S (FifzE31) = (221,799) 2,495,740 2,273,941
At 31 March 2018 and RZE-N\F=A=1—H
1 April 2018 EZE-NEMA—A (2,311,349) (724,132) 4,998,761 1,963,280
(Credited)/charged to RBa (T A) /T
profit or loss (9,928,263) 1,846,104 (670,474) (8,752,633)
Business acquisitions (note 31)  EF5UREE (Ff5E31) - - 709,500 709,500
At 31 March 2019 RZB-NE=RA=+—H (12,239,612) 1,121,972 5,037,787 (6,079,853)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

26.

17

INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
(Continued)

Reconciliation to the consolidated statement of
financial position

26. ZREMBRRERANFEH @)

e BB RRAVE IR

2019 2018
—E-NF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BIT
Deferred tax assets recognised in the RER B B EARR R FERA
consolidated statement of financial position — ¥EIEFLIBE E (12,239,612) (2,311,349)
Deferred tax liabilities recognised in the R A BN RFERK
consolidated statement of financial position — IEEFIIEE & 6,159,759 4,274,629
(6,079,853) 1,963,280
Deferred tax assets not recognised RERELEBIEEE

The Group has tax losses arising in Hong Kong and the PRC
of HK$3,127,584 (2018: HK$44,611,724) subject to
agreement by the local tax authorities. The tax losses are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable profits
of the companies from which the losses arose, except for tax
losses arising in the PRC of HK$nil (2018: HK$9,982,927),
which will be expired within 2-5 years.

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax losses
can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

27. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 27. EHAERIE

At 31 March 2019, the Group had obligations under finance

RZEBE-NF=RA=+—B  XEENE

leases repayable as follows: NEEREAERNT :
2019 2018
ZE-NE 2 )\F

Present value of Present value of
the minimum  Total minimum the minimum Total minimum
lease payments lease payments  lease payments  lease payments
RIERE REHE HEHE REHE
AHEE E fiF5RE fFEs
HKS HK$ HKS HK$
B B BT BT
Within 1 year 1FR 5,882,739 1,322,104 1,709,865 1,736,132
After 1 year but within 2 years 1ENER2ER 5,281,606 6,547,692 416,627 421,376
After 2 years but within 5 years 2E L HASER 16,927,043 19,643,076 S =
After 5 years 5% E 18,680,453 19,643,076 - -
40,889,102 45,833,844 416,627 421,376
46,771,841 53,155,948 2,126,492 2,157,508
Less: total future interest expenses B AR ERx B (6,384,107) (31,016)
Present value of lease obligations HERENRE 46,771,841 2,126,492
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 28. B - RERRKRE
DIVIDENDS
(@ Movements in components of equity (a) EZIH2EH
The reconciliation between the opening and closing REEKLOFREEIPNEY) R HEK
balances of each component of the Group’s consolidated HMEESENGEEERNEFHR - A7)
equity is set out in the consolidated statement of 1I;”;IJ$E>\i|3§7‘ ’<\¢ MEFREE N E
changes in equity. Details of the changes in the BEEBEYIET
Company’s individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out below:
Shares held
for Share
Award  Share-based
Share Share  Contribution Scheme compensation  Accumulated
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Total
(note 28(d)(i)) (note 28(d)(iv))  (note 28(d)(v)) (note 28(d)(vi))
HERAEE
SERET  URBIAH
R EE HERE BEZRH Wefk
BRA  (RaEos(d)i) (Hares()iv)  (MiEE28(d)v)  (Hizk28(d)(vi) Sy ] Foh
Notes HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
Balance at 1 April 2017 RZE—tENA-BH
373 9,808 705,685,389 7 (80,698,123 2,776,101 (177,217,556) 450,555,626
Changes in equity for 2018 - \ERERE
Issuance of shares BIR 28(c)() 26 9,425,238 - - - - 9,425,264
Recognition of equity-settled ~ BRNEREE LKA A
share-based compensation: HiEES -
Share award and share option ”1“&%})&9%%& 29,30 - - - - 3,723,916 - 3,723916
Vesting of shares under Share R {7 283t 21 B AR (7
Award Scheme 29 - - - 416,069 (416,069 - -
Dividends declared BEERS 280) = S - - - (49138621)  (249,136,621)
Loss and total comprehensive ~ ERFER 2 EMNFEE
income for the year - - - - - (15,976,284) (15,976,284)
At31March2018and 1 April  R=ZE—-N\E£=A=+—H
2018 k=%-/\¥mA-A 9,834 715,110,627 7 (80,282,054) 6,083,948  (442,330461) 198,591,901
Changes in equity for 2019; “E-NERERE
Issuance of shares BIRG 280/ 11 4,891,689 5 - (1,370,425 5 3,521,275
Recognition of equity-settied ANEREE RN B
share-based compensation: EfMe
Share award and share option {7 588 BB I 29,30 - - - - 6,315,327 - 6,315,327
Forfeiture of shares under Share 1R IEAR 17 428t 21 43
Award Scheme 29 - - - - (407,081) 407,081 -
Disposal of shares held for Shere  tH & R ER {3 2B Bl A
Award Scheme i 29 - - - 80,282,054 - 39,803,808 120,085,862
Dividends declared BERRE 28(b) = = = = - (290,210,660)  (290,210,660)
Recognition of equity-settled RETEREE FRRA
share-based payment for share % Z S B 0B 2
option issued as part of the RN BREE ARG
consideration to acquire an BERETN
unlisted equity investment 30 - - - - 6,958,000 - 6,958,000
Loss and total comprehensive ~ ERERREANELEE
income for the year - - - - - (6,053,614) (6,053,614)
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 9845 720,002,316 7 - 17579769  (698,383,846) 39,208,091

1 7 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DIVIDENDS (continued)

(b) Dividends

@i

Dividends payable by the Company to equity
shareholders:

(b) BE

@i

A H5 R P 5

28. B - RERRE @)

RRATRENEERROKRE

2019 2018
—2-NF —B-N\5F
HK$ HK$
B BT

Interim dividend and special dividend BEIREZFHERE R
declared and paid of 15.00 HK cents %8 B A% 15.00 711l

per ordinary share (2018: 12.50 (Z2—N\F : BREBR
HK cents per ordinary share) 12.50%1)
Final dividend and special dividend RiEHRRERIRE R AR E

proposed after the end of the reporting K45 Rl B &I L @ AR
period of 20.00 HK cents per ordinary ~ 20.0078 1l (ZZ— \ 4 :
share (2018: 14.50 HK cents per SRR 14.50 781L)
ordinary share)

147,564,742 122,609,938

196,978,990 142,640,117

344,543,732 265,250,055

The final dividend and special dividend proposed
after the end of the reporting period has not been
recognised as a liability at the end of the reporting
period.

Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the previous
financial year, approved and paid during the
year:

(ii)

R E MR REERE 2 R
P B R Bl BB, 1) R o
BAERARAE -

- RFEREERSTFAR
AEERRORE  REAFE
#ERIRAY

2019 2018
—E-hF —E-NF
HK$ HK$
BT BT

Final dividend and special dividend = —BfIEE R EIRR S &
in respect of the previous financial 1 RIA% B A HLE K&

year, approved and paid during IR A B AR i@ AR 14.50 &1L
the year, of 14.50 HK cents per (ZZ—N\F : k&
ordinary share (2018: 12.90 HK EIFAR 12.90 7 1L)

cents per ordinary share)

142,640,117 126,526,683

BEBERRAREARAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 7

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

17

KRR FE

28. B - RERRE @)

March 2018 included 31,106,786 shares held in trust by
the trustee under the Share Award Scheme. All of the
shares had been disposed of by the trustee during the

year ended 31 March 2019.

DIVIDENDS (continued)
(c) Share capital () B&
2019 2018
—E-NF —TN\F
Number of Number of
shares HK$ shares HKS$
K& A BT e BT
Authorised EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.00001 each BRAE0.00001 #TAI L@ 38,000,000,000 380,000 38,000,000,000 380,000
Ordinary shares, issued EER CERORMR
and fully paid
At 1 April REA—H 983,429,948 9,834 980,827,000 9,808
Exercise of share options () TR BERRIE () 1,090,000 1 72,500 1
Issuance of shares upon scrip dividend of  EH EB R 45 RIS AR B
interim and special dividends i) 17,2 B3 (i) - - 2,530,448 25
At 31 March W=ZR=+— 984,519,948 9,845 983,429,948 9,834
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive LR E AR RERT R SRR
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled B RARRBRRAE L8N
to one vote per share at general meetings of the —EREE - AT ARE A AR
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with regard to Ijﬁﬁﬁﬁq—ﬁﬂw%ﬂ
the Company’s residual assets.
The Company’s issued and fully paid shares as at 31 ARRRZFE-NF=ZA=+—H

MBEEITRARKGBEITARE
B E AN ETE A RETAR
E’J31 106 786 %D - ZFEAERE

—NE=ZA=T—HLFER

ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ C

()  During the year ended 31 March 2019, the (i)
Company issued 792,500 shares (2018: 67,500
shares), 165,000 shares (2018: 5,000 shares),
120,000 shares (2018: nil) and 12,500 shares
(2018: nil) upon exercise of share options by the
relevant grantees at exercise prices of HK$3.03,
HK$3.50, HK$4.00 and HK$5.00 respectively
under the Share Option Scheme. These new
shares ranked pari passu in all respects with other

shares in issue.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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BIEFE - ZK’A A)AR B B AR hE
s B FE MR BRI A 1T {5 B8 IR AE
B 4% 77 # {8 3.03/8 JT ~ 3.5078
JC ~ 4.007 Tt % 5.007% 7T o 5l
17792500 (—ZF— N
F : 67,500/% B% 5 ) + 165,000
R (= Z — /\4F : 5,000 8%
BZ 1D ) ~ 120,0008% B 5 ( = &
—\4F : $8) % 12,500 (=
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (continued)

(c) Share capital (Continued)

(i)

On 31 January 2018, the Company issued and
allotted 2,530,448 shares at an issue price of
HK$3.637 per share in respect of the interim and
special dividends for the six months ended 30
September 2017 under the scrip dividend scheme.
The 2,530,448 shares so issued ranked pari passu
in all respects with the then existing issued shares
except for the entitlement to the said interim and
special dividends.

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves

U]

(ii)

(iii)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares of the
Company and proceeds received from the
issuance of the shares of the Company. Under the
Cayman Companies Law, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the
shareholders of the Company provided that
immediately following the date on which the
dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company would be in a position to pay off its debts
as they fall due in the ordinary course of the
business.

Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents the consolidated
share capital of UGIL and a subsidiary acquired
under common control.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of operations outside Hong
Kong. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policies set out in note 3.1.

A H5 R P 5

28. B - RERRE @)

() BRZ&(#)

(i)

RZE—NF—A=+—8"
AARRIBE AR BT EI%E
E-T—tEFALAZ=ZFTHLERN
BRAZHHRERIKREEITE
1% 3.637 7% T % 17 & B2 #
2,530,448 % % 19 o Ffr 3 17 &9
2,530,448 A% f&% 1 £ Fr B 75 T £
ERBEAEEBRTRMNEERSE
A7 - M b P HR B A A R
Hh o

d) RENEERBH

(i

(ii)

(iii)

A7 i (B 5 AR R =) 9 B 47 T (B
BT AR B AN Fr R PR 15
RIBZHENERE - RIEFSEF
BSREE ARBRMDEEBER
AHEDIKRTARBBRR  HE
BErE Y kRSB HE - AL
AIAGRNEERENAEER
BIER D RIMZ BT

RO

FeOF TR UGIL B — K U B T
KM B AR (X L RHES) &

BE 5

BEREEESMERREES
S9N IR 15 B 75 R B A M
o KRR IRITEE 3.1 LA
SRt BRI -
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FEHRE 2018/19 1 79



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

28. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

18

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Contribution reserve

The contribution reserve represents the difference
between the share of equity of Union Health
Services Holding Limited and the par value of share
capital for the issuance of new shares arising from
the reorganisation completed prior to the initial
public offering of the Group.

Shares held for Share Award Scheme reserve

The shares held for Share Award Scheme reserve
represents the purchase costs of shares held for
Share Award Scheme as disclosed in note 29.

Share-based compensation reserve

The share-based compensation reserve represents
the fair value of the actual or estimated number of
unexercised share options and share awards
granted to employees, registered practitioners or
other third parties of the Group recognised in
accordance with the accounting policy adopted for
share-based payment in note 3.1.

(e) Distributability of reserves

As at 31 March 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution to equity shareholders of the Company
was HK$39,198,246 (2018: HK$198,582,067).

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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28. B - RERRE @)

(d) REAHERBEHN @)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

HE

it & % % 8 % 1k Union Health
Services Holding Limited &9 % 4
HAEBEH N AFAEERTK
R E A FTSl B BT AR AR
ANEEZ B ZESE -

ARORBITERBOZTAEN
R A3

RO EZBEFERENFAD
BintE M ST 29 PR BE R B R X
SRS NESEE=0)Erl=0]51
ZL(O

BARRAD 32 A OB 2 5k 4

VAR A7 S2 A5 B9 B <& ot 48 18 IR 3B
MzE3AFTE RIARN AERZ
< 3R B 4 ) & 5 R PR RE AR
BTASHEEE  EfMEExK
HiH =T ER S EFTRTT
EREBESA MR EBH D
FE-

(e) ftEEY I E

AN —
N
)\_

T-NFZA=+—8  ALF

AED R FARAESREOEE S
39,198,246 7L (ZZE—N\F :
198,582,067/87C) °



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME

On 26 September 2016, the Board approved the Company’s
Employees’ Share Award Scheme (the “Share Award
Scheme”). Pursuant to the rules of the Share Award Scheme,
the Company had appointed a trustee for the purpose of
administering the Share Award Scheme and holding the shares
purchased for the Share Award Scheme before the award and
vesting of the same. The Company paid to the trustee from
time to time for the purchase of shares held for the Share
Award Scheme from market.

The terms of the Share Award Scheme provide for the award
of shares in the Company to employees of the Group as part
of their compensation package. Subject to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme, the Board shall determine at the time of
grant the vesting date for the relevant awarded shares.

Dividends payable to the awarded shares were applied to
acquire further shares and pay the related purchase expenses
and expenses incurred by the trustee.

For awardees who cease employment with the Group before
vesting, the unvested shares are forfeited and held by the
trustee of the Share Award Scheme who may award such
shares to other awardees taking into consideration the
recommendations of the Board.

RIS ¥R MR

29. iR EEHE

EZEgR_ZT—AFALAZF/REHAER
nA)E B R B2 BT 8 ([ B in B2t &l D) -
Rk D ZEERY ARFERE—
FZFEANE R SR 8 R OB 28
BN SR E A A Bty R R &) M BB B &
Bt o ARBARNTISEE Bk R
R8I R A AR M MZFEANK -

Betn R SRR FIHAI R T AR ERER
ARBBRDIESREFHN—F D - RIB
B EREZARR EEGANKTH
IREMBERRDORERD -

e B BEBRMOBR B BEE—FEA
Bein R SRR B R X A R FEA 51 B
ZFX e

REBATBEXERARENEERDE -

BERNSE LY Ak R
XRARHE XRAUREREFSNHE
BERBEZERN BE T EMEERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

+ EUN
UpGE El
29. SHARE AWARD SCHEME (continued) 20. R EEETE (@)
Movements in the number of awarded shares in the Company T A AR EEBIRMER RMEETHEAN
and their related average fair values are as follows: Sl EEBHUT -
2019 2018
—E-hE ZE)N\E
Number of Average Number of Average
awarded fair value awarded fair value
shares per share shares per share
ELBROBE SRYHLTE ERBROZE SRYHATE
HK$ HKS$
B BT
At 1 April RIUB—H 238,016 2.56 407,008 2.56
Vested 5B - = (168,992) 2.56
Forfeited BRI (159,016) 2.56 - -
At 31 March R=R=+—H 79,000 2.56 238,016 2.56
During the year ended 31 March 2018, the Share Award BE_Z—N\FZA=Z+—BLFE K
Scheme transferred 168,992 shares of the Company to the HBRBFERNE TREROGBEREZ
awardees upon vesting of certain awarded shares. The total 168,992 (R AN A A% T EBERRD - &
cost of the vested shares was HK$416,069. BB ERA416,0608 T °
The remaining vesting period of the awarded shares in the RZE-NEF=ZR=+—BERRAETE
Company outstanding as at 31 March 2019 is 1 year (2018: 2 INEEIRDFBREBRIHA1F(ZZE—N
years). F 26
Movements in the number of shares in the Company held KATIRER O EE T EITIE DS E &
under the Share Award Scheme and their costs are as follows: HpA - EBHIT -
2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\F
Number of Number of
shares held Cost shares held Cost
FisRAEE KA FROEE AR
HK$ HKS
BT BT
At 1 April REA—H 31,106,786 80,282,054 31,275,778 80,698,123
Vested during the year ENRH - - (168,992) (416,069)
Disposal of shares held for Share HERER A RT3
Award Scheme BEAKL (31,106,786) (80,282,054) - -
At 31 March R=A=1+—-H - - 31,106,786 80,282,054
All of the shares held for Share Award Scheme had been B RRGD REFEIFENROEREZE
disposed of during the year ended 31 March 2019. 2 NAFZA=t—BLEFELE-

1 8 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme which was adopted
on 26 September 2016 whereby the directors of the Company
are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the
Group, including directors of any company in the Group, to
take up options at consideration ranging from HK$3.03 to
HK$9.50 to subscribe for shares of the Company. Unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, the Share Option Scheme
will be valid and effective within 10 years commencing on the
date on which it became effective. Each option gives the holder
the right to subscribe for one ordinary share in the Company
and is settled gross in shares.

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

A H5 R P 5

30. BBRAESTE

ARARMRZTB—RFALAZTNBRAE
TS ARAREFERENBESR
SEEB(BRASEEMNARES) UK
B3.038 L E9.50/8 T MIBE A HE - AR
BARARND - BRIFERITREHKIERT - B
RIS REERERRTFERRLE
Mo BHBRERTHAARNIRBEAR
Al—RERK - X2BARMNEE -

(@) BRHFRRBARMFMT

as follows:
Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
THEHE HBEGYG BRESHEH
Options granted to directors:
BRTESHBRKRE .
— On 26 September 2016 7,350,000  Exercisable in ten tranches from 10 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2026
—RZE-RFAAZ+XAB DREZZTH# 104F
R_ZE—+F—-H—HZE
—ERF+ZA=+—H
SR
— On 26 September 2016 80,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020
—RZE—R"FALAZ=+H Al 55 7 A 2 A4t 44
RZZE—+F—-H—HZE
—ECEF+-A=+—H
BAfT 71
— On 18 September 2017 735,000  Exercisable in one tranch from 10 years
1 January 2027 to
17 September 2027
—RZE—+FNAT+NB Al D RRIEZ —4#t 104F
RZZE-_+&HE—H—AZE
—EHFAATER
BT

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants

are as follows: (Continued)

30. BB AETHE (@)
(@) REKERREHEOT @ (@)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
THEHE SBEHKH BRESHTH
— On 21 August 2018 300,000  Exercisable in two tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028
—RZZE-NFNAZ+—H AN ABRZELMIENR T —NF 104F
—AZHE-ZE-_N\F)N\A
—+BERETTE
— On 2 October 2018 735,000  Exercisable in one tranch from 1 year
3 January 2028 to
1 October 2028
—RZZE—N\F+H=H AN AREs R )N\F 14F
—AZRAE=ZE-_NF+A—H
HARTTE
Options granted to employees:
BT EESMNBIRE
— On 26 September 2016 460,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2017 to
31 December 2020
—RZE-RFEAAZ+RH A3 RRI%E 2 it 45
RZZE—t&H—H—AZE
—E_TFE+_HA=+—H
BT
— On 18 September 2017 1,860,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 4 years
1 January 2018 to
31 December 2021
—RZE—+FAA+NB A5 RRI%E 2z it 45
RZZE-—NE—H—HA=ZE
—E_—F+-A=+—H
HAFRIT T8
— On 5 December 2017 300,000  Exercisable in three tranches from 10 years

—R-_F—+tF+=-AAAH

1 84 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@) The terms and conditions of the grants are

as follows: (Continued)

Number of
instruments

TAHE

30. BB AETHE (@)

A H5 R P 5

(a) RHEBERRGHFWT @ (&)

Vesting conditions

BRI

Contractual life
of options

BRESHNTH

— On 11 April 2018

- RZF-/\FM@A+—H

— On 17 April 2018

—RZE-\FHEA++H

— On 24 May 2018

—RZE-\FHA-+WMA

— On 10 July 2018

—RZE—NFtA+H

— On 21 August 2018

—RZE-NFENRZ=+—H

200,000

60,000

1,000,000

100,000

500,000

Exercisable in four tranches from
2 January 2019 to
31 December 2022

AN RRAE AR _T—NEF
—AZRE-_E-_—-%+=A
=+—BHRETE

Exercisable in three tranches from
2 January 2019 to
31 December 2021

AN ABREZ IR —NF
—AZHREZZE-_—F+=A
=+—BHRETE

Exercisable in four tranches from
3 July 2018 to
23 May 2028

A ARZE MR T —\F
+tA=H&E-Z-N\FHA
Z+=HEMTE

Exercisable in five tranches from
2 January 2019 to
31 December 2023

A RRAZEZAN T —NF
—AZREZZ=_=F+=A
=+—BHRETE

Exercisable in four tranches from
2 January 2019 to
20 August 2028

AIDARZEZUHN _TE—NF—
A-Hz-_Z-_/\&ENA=-1+HH

BT

5 years

5%

4 years

44

10 years

104F

5 years

5%

10 years

104

EREEEREEARAHE 1 85

FEHRE 2018/19



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(@ The terms and conditions of the grants are
as follows: (Continued)

30. BB AETHE (@)

(@) WHEGERREGEDT @ (&)

Number of Contractual life
instruments  Vesting conditions of options
TEHE BEKRH BRESHEH
— On 7 September 2018 100,000  Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
6 September 2028
—RZE-N\FALALH AREZZOAMNR T —NF 10%F
—ﬂ ZHEZZZN\FIHA
7N B EARTTE
— On 2 October 2018 840,000 Exercisable in four tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
1 October 2028
—RZE-N\FTHA=H ARAZ AR =_T—NEF 104
_ﬂ HE 2= _)\ﬁz"f—ﬂ H
AT
— On 28 November 2018 1,620,000  Exercisable in seven tranches from 10 years
2 January 2019 to
27 November 2028
—RZE-N\F+—A=+N\H ADRRAZEZAHR_T—NF 104
—AZBEZZE-_)N\F+—H
Z+tEREMETE
Total share options granted to 16,240,000

directors and employees

RTEFREBMEBRER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise

(c)

prices of share options are as follows:

A H5 R P 5

30. BB AETHE (@)
(b) EBREZEERMNELEITEE

wmh
2019 2018
ZE-NF —TN\E
Weighted Weighted
Number of average Number of average
options  exercise price options exercise price

BRERE MEYHTEE BREHE METOOEE

Outstanding at the beginning of FEPRTE

the year
Granted during the year FRRE
Exercised during the year FERITE
Forfeited during the year FERHEH

Outstanding at the end of the year ~ ERKITIE
Exercisable at the end of the year ~ FRAI{TE

The options outstanding at 31 March 2019 had a
weighted average exercise price of $4.19 (2018: $3.09)
and a weighted average remaining contractual life of 7.32
years (2018: 6.53 years).

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services or assets received in return for
share options granted is measured by reference to the
fair value of share options granted. The estimate of the
fair value of the share options granted is measured based
on a binomial option pricing model, which takes into
account the suboptimal exercise factors and the post-
vesting exit rates. The contractual life of the share option
is used as an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the binomial lattice model.

10,712,500 3.09 7,890,000 3.03
5,455,000 6.10 2,895,000 3.27
(1,090,000) 3.23 (72,500) 3.06
(390,000) 3.62 = =
14,687,500 419 10,712,500 3.09
3,227,500 3.86 2,132,500 3.08

RZZBE-NF=ZA=+—BRITEE
PRy D F T EE R419T (=
ZT— )\ :3.097C) - NP1 Rk
BRFHRTIF(ZFT—/\F 653
F) e

(c) BREQXIFERRER

VATR 8 R {F A BN 3 P I 1S AR A =
BEZAFEZEMELBRENR
FERE - IRHBRENG AT
ERE-_RAAAETERA(ZERE
BTERRERBERAELR)GE -
BRENAHFHBELAEANR
2o —HAHBEACTH REHRESR
TERRAEE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

(d) Share options granted other than those

under Share Option Scheme

In addition to the share options granted in accordance
with the Share Option Scheme, during the year ended 31
March 2019, the Group granted share options by specific
mandate to GCP Properties Limited (“GCP”), which
entitle GCP to subscribe for 4,349,000 shares in the
Company at an exercise price of HK$5.53 per share with
a contractual life of three years, as part of the
consideration to acquire an unlisted equity investment.
The share options vested immediately following the
completion of the acquisition of the unlisted equity
investment. The Group measured the fair value of such
grant by reference to the fair value of the share options
granted instead of the fair value of the investment as it
could not be estimated reliably on the date of acquisition.

As at 31 March 2019, all of the share options granted to
GCP are outstanding and the remaining contractual life is
2.39 years.

A H5 R P 5

30. BB AETHE (@)

(d)

EREBREEREERE
s8I HEBRD)

PR AR 4R B AR M 5 U 5 L O BB AR A A
REBEE-_T—NFZAZ+—HILF
B AEBE BB R KERGCP
Properties Limited ([GCP ) # H i i%
# - BT GCPIR1T{EE SR 5.538 T
REEAA F)4,349,000 B A% 10 BORER -
AHFRAE=F  FRBWEIELTR
KBTI NE - BIRAEEETTR
WHEIEETMRARERTR - XEE
LEORBRENQTEMIFZEE
WATEFEARRLEHATE R
ERUE B EER RATE -

R-FE—AE=A=+—0 &F
GOP M A0 B T4 497 /3. 2.89
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS

19

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended

31. BB
(@ RBZE-—T—h&E=A=+-

31 March 2019 HiIEFENRIBHTE
The fair value of the net assets acquired through UL EE B EE B E SN P UL BE 0%
business acquisitions as at the date of acquisitions is as BEMNANEEWNT :
follows:
McKenzie
Healthcare
Limited Others Total
WERRFEEE
BRAA Hith st
HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT
Total identifiable net assets ~ AJ ;& B/ FEE B 45,616,231 17,652,710 63,268,941
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M £ (22,351,953) (7,061,084) (29,413,037)
Goodwill on acquisitions B EERmE 18,735,722 2,408,374 21,144,096
Consideration for subscription 28 AXHI KB
of new shares 42,000,000 13,000,000 55,000,000
Cash and cash equivalents ~ FTUIEIR & &
acquired REEED - 953,846 953,846
Contribution from non- EBRBELED
controlling interests arising ~ FE3ZEAREZRAY
from business acquisitions*  HEL* - 3,500,000 3,500,000
Net inflow of cash and FTAREEE TR
cash equivalents included in - IR &A=
cash flows used in FREEEBYR
investing activities HFEE = 4,453,846 4,453,846

The total contribution from non-controlling interests as stated
in the sale and purchase agreement in respect of a business
acquisition was HK$7.0 million, of which HK$3.5 million was
settled during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The Group measured the non-controlling interests at their
proportionate share of these subsidiaries’ net identifiable
assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019 (Continued)

Had the acquisitions taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2019, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the year would have been
HK$1,867.5 million and HK$382.9 million, respectively.
In aggregate, the Group generated net cash inflow
totalling HK$4.5 million from acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

The significant business acquisition is analysed in ().

@i

McKenzie Healthcare Limited

On 1 November 2018, Team Expert Investment
Limited (“Team Expert”), a wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group, entered into a business transfer
agreement with the sellers (“the Sellers”), which the
Group agreed to incorporate a new company,
McKenzie Healthcare Limited (“MHL”), with the
Sellers. MHL would provide therapy services in
Hong Kong which was originally operated and
owned by the Sellers.

According to the agreement, the Group subscribed
for 51% of equity interests in MHL at a cash
consideration of HK$42,000,000, while the Sellers
subscribed for the remaining 49% of equity
interests, which was satisfied by the transfer of the
therapy business. As a result, the above
transaction was regarded as a business acquisition
which the Group effectively acquired 51% of the
equity interests.

Upon completion of the acquisition on 1 November
2018, MHL became a partially owned subsidiary of
the Group.

A profit guarantee arrangement is included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the Sellers
agreed to guarantee the revenue generated by
McKenzie Healthcare Limited for the coming 2
years amounting to HK$38 million each year. The
Sellers shall compensate Team Expert for any
shortfall of the deemed profit attributable to Team
Expert each year calculated in accordance with the
business transfer agreement. Management
expected that the guarantee revenue could be met.

A H5 R P 5

31. EXKUWE @)

(a)

RBE=-Z-NEF=ZA=1+-—
HIEFENRBETE &)

WEBEBEREZE _TE—NLF=A
Z+—RHILFEVREE  FRALE
BUE AR AEBEFE S B A1,867. 5
BEATNIRIBEEETT HEZ
ZE-NF=A=+—HIEE K&
BEEWRENBARELERERAFE
AFt45EEBT

EREBUWIBR () DM
() ZEHEEARAT

RZE—NFE+—H—H &K
S B2 &M B R 7 Team Expert
Investment Limited ([ Team
Expert)EBE S ([EH )T %
BeEERE - Bl AEEER
BEEBEAHFMAIZT A LR
REEARAR ([EERE]) -
Ki%ﬂ%%ﬁf\/ufﬁﬁk
RABRBEHEERES -

1B ¥ 1 % 'ﬁﬁlwiimﬁ
42,000,000 JT R B8 & B 85
51% % # - ﬁ’ﬁaﬁwﬁ%ﬁ%T
A9% M HE - BIBEEABEK
EER o AL 0 PR A
HUEE  ERAREBERWE
51% %4 -

FURBEER T N\F+—
A—RBZERE  BEEKSAN
SEEEEMB AR

ZhEHERMNRERZRE R
Bz BARERERER
NEEERAARKMESE
ERWAEISEEBT BH
18 5k & 4F JE %15 Team Expert f&
EREAER N E R E=EmME
Team Expert * & (81 %75
EERHRTE - EEERYA
ERRFBUA
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@ Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019 (Continued)

(@i

McKenzie Healthcare Limited (Continued)

The acquisition enables the Group to expand the
scope of medical services and can be benefited
from the synergy mentioned below.

The goodwill of HK$18.7 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool and combining the
operations of the Group and MHL.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$121,003. These costs have been charged to
“other expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of McKenzie Healthcare Limited as at the date of

31. EXKUWE @)

BLEFENRESE @

() ZENEBEARQT A

WREAEDAREENBERS
MR E - 3 BN T AT A
1% R RUFE

WRELANHEIBTASET
DREREFPEAZRASESA
BEREEBKEH -

AEBEAMWEMLBKRANE
121,00378 7T ° SN AF
RizAiERR [EMmiE IR -

RKEEH ZBRRKEEAR
RAWAHREERABEBENR

acquisition is as follows: EEWT
Total
st
Note HK$
FiEE BT
Property, plant and equipment W - B R&E 25,731
Other receivables E e W EROR 42,000,000
Intangible assets on acquisition WHEFF IS mIZ & & 15 4,300,000
Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets & ERELER B A & (709,500)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value A ERT 2R R
FEERE 45,616,231
Non-controlling interests FEVE | M 2 (22,351,953)
Goodwill on acquisition WEEEA MR 14 18,735,722
Consideration for subscription of REBFRARE
new shares 42,000,000

Cash and cash equivalents acquired and
net inflow of cash and cash equivalents
included in cash flows used in
investing activities

FIRERE RREFEYR
AAREBEERDMAERESREN
ReMReFEYRAFHE

Since the acquisition, MHL contributed HK$15.5
million to the Group’s revenue and HK$0.2 million
to the Group’s consolidated profit for the year
ended 31 March 2019.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(@) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2019 (Continued)

@i

McKenzie Healthcare Limited (Continued)

The other receivables represented the cash to be
contributed by the Group as stated in the business
transfer agreement.

The intangible assets are amortised over their
estimated useful lives.

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018

The fair value of the net assets acquired as at the date of
acquisitions was as follows:

A H5 R P 5

31. ¥XWiE @)
(@ RBZE-T—h&E=A=+-

HIEFENWESE®)
() HREBSERADM)

Hi BB BEERHE RS
Pt ARBEHENRS -

BVEERAEGAIERSF
HAVE N -

b) RBZE=-T-—NE=A=+-—
BiEFENBRERE

R B - ks EEEn A TE
W -

Conya Group
Limited and

My HealthEasy  Hair styling
Healthcare  Dental Group  and beauty
Limited Limited business Others Total
Conya Group
Limited 2
My Health Easy
Headthcare  Dental Group ~ SEEZ &R
Limited Limited ~ REREH Hfth @it
Total identifiable net assets/(iabilities) FTUEE AT RIEE /(B E)
acquired FEGE 37,760,527 13,815,463 (16,949,228) 1,092,212 35,718,974
Non-controling interests IR IER - (5526,185) 8,652,699 (4,044,675)  (918,161)
Goodwil on acquisitions YRS 846,473 22,050,613 22016529 13,652,463 58,566,078
Cash consideration HeRE 38,607,000 30,339,891 13,720,000 10,700,000 93,366,891

Cash and cash equivalents acquired FTUkEERIE S RIR S S EY)

Net outflow of cash and cash REZHMARESRER
equivalents included in cash flows ~ BEHEE KBS EEY
used in investing activities e 37243207 27,475,238

(1,363,793) (2,864,653)

(3,610,690) (6,705,440) (14,544,576)

10,109,310 3,994,560 78,822,315
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

19

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

Had the combinations taken place at the beginning of the
year ended 31 March 2018, the revenue of the Group
and the profit of the Group for the prior year would had
been HK$1,366.4 million and HK$276.5 million,
respectively.

In aggregate, the Group generated net cash outflow
totalling HK$78.8 million from acquisition of subsidiaries
during the year ended 31 March 2018.

The significant business acquisitions are analysed in (i) to

().

@i

My Healthcare Limited

On 1 July 2017, Hong Kong Pain and Wellness
Solution Limited (“Pain and Wellness”), a 51%
owned subsidiary of the Company, entered into a
sale and purchase agreement with the seller (“the
Seller”), who was then the sole shareholder of My
Healthcare Limited. The Seller is a specialist in
neurosurgery (brain and nerve surgeon) and My
Healthcare Limited was operating a clinic in Hong
Kong. Under the terms of the agreement, Pain and
Wellness agreed to acquire 100% of the issued
share capital of My Healthcare Limited.

The transaction was completed on 17 July 2017
with total cash consideration of HK$38.6 million
paid by the Group and 25% of equity interest in
Pain and Wellness with fair value of HK$16.4 million
contributed by the non-controlling shareholder of
Pain and Wellness. Upon completion of the
acquisition, My Healthcare Limited became a
wholly-owned subsidiary of Pain and Wellness and
a partially owned subsidiary of the Group. The
Seller became an employee of the Group and a
25% non-controlling shareholder of Pain and
Wellness.

A profit guarantee arrangement was included in the
agreement. Under the arrangement, the Seller
agreed to guarantee the net profits generated by
My Healthcare Limited for the coming eight years
amounting to HK$95.7 million in total. The Seller
shall compensate Pain and Wellness for any
shortfall noted each year.
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31. EXKUWE @)

b) RBEE=ZE—NF=ZHA=+-—
AIEFEANWERE @)

HeEHREE_ZE—N\F=ZA=+—
BIEFEEE BIAEBR E—FEIK
AKog R o R A1,366.4 8 88 T K&
276.5BBBIT o

HE-_E—NF=A=1+—"HI1#F
B AEEQUWEHBAREELERS
mHEFEAET 788 EEAETT ©

EAREBUWEER () 2 (i) 27 °

() My Healthcare Limited

RZZE—+F+A—H  &xR7F
8 51% &I HI /8 A 51 Hong Kong
Pain and Wellness Solution
Limited ([ Pain and Wellness ) £2
B B 7% My Healthcare Limited M
—BENEFTEFDIIVEE
WiE BAAKIEIERE
(BB R r MBI BE A ) - ﬁﬁMy
Healthcare Limited IEA & BB
—KZ AT o IRBEZ R IR

Paln and Wellness [7] & I & My
Healthcare Limited E%*{THXZIK 9
100% A% HE °

REGER_E—tF+LA++EH
R BRI REA386EES
T B A £ B KPanand
Wellness FE 1% Hx A% 3 LA Pain and
Weliness 1) 25% % # (A FE A
16.4B8BIL) X RIKEES
B 5 K 1% My Healthcare
Limited A 4 Pain and Wellness #
2EMBRRRAEEISH S
RNBAR - EFKAAREER
& & K Pain and Wellness #) 25%

FEIERAR -
1 N B i AR & - 1R
BEETY BHRERE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended

31 March 2018 (Continued)

@i

My Healthcare Limited (Continued)

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$23,548. These costs had been charged to
“other expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss for the prior year.

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of My Healthcare Limited as at the date of

acquisition was as follows:

A H5 R P 5

31. ERXWE @)
b) RBE=-F-—NE=A=+-—

HikE

@i

FEMWEHSE @)

My Healthcare Limited (%)

AL B EASWEMBRBRKAK
23,548 7T c AKX AE 5T A
F—FEFRABRRN[EMmHF
e

My Healthcare Limited 7 4% && B
RO HNEERABBNRF
(ERCENE

Total
et
Notes HK$
Ff5E BT
Property, plant and equipment YE - BER&E 850,417
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERFIE - Ze &k 104,458
Hfth fE UM 0B
Cash and cash equivalents HehkIREeEED 1,363,793
Other payables and accruals HAt eI RIA R ERTE A (1,956,9006)
Obligations under finance lease — current RERESRE — BV (485,393
Current tax payable BEAFE ST B IR (536,973)
Obligations under finance lease — non-current & FAE &4 — FEANED (185,869)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value BRATEFENER (846,473)
BEFEEBRE
Non-controlling interests FEE AR M R =
Goodwill on acquisition Uit B By ) P 14 846,473
Part of the consideration classified as NEREREENBONRE 38,607,000
intangible assets
Satisfied by cash RS 4EE 38,607,000
Cash consideration WEREB (38,607,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriEmIR e MNIReEEY 1,363,793
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents KEEHMARSRET
included in cash flows used in PREHESRAESE
investing activities By FEE (37,243,207)

Since the acquisition, My Healthcare Limited

contributed HK$9.8 million to the Group’s revenue

and HK$10.6 million to the Group’s consolidated

profit for the year ended 31 March 2018.

BWEBLUR B2 —N\F
=A=+—81L%FEMy
Healthcare Limited 2 Bl /& 7&K £=
BWARGE=FERO8EH S
BITR10.6 BEBTT
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

19

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

My Healthcare Limited (Continued)

The intangible assets are amortised over the
estimated years of services the Group expects to
benefit from the Seller’s services (“service period”).

In addition to the above, the 25% equity interest in
Pain and Wellness contributed by the non-
controlling shareholder of Pain and Wellness with
fair value of HK$16.4 million is considered a share-
based payment and the charge to profit or loss will
be spread over the service period.

Conya Group Limited and Health Easy Dental
Group Limited (“Conya”)

On 27 December 2017, the Group entered into an
agreement with the then sole shareholder of
Conya. Conya is engaged in the provision of dental
services via multiple dental centers in Hong Kong.
Under the terms of the agreement, the Group
agreed to acquire 60% shareholding in Conya
Group Limited and 60% shareholding in Health
Easy Dental Group Limited.

The transaction was completed on 27 December
2017 with total consideration of HK$30.3 million.

The goodwill of HK$22.1 million arising from the
acquisition was attributable to the synergy from the
share of customer pool and combining the
operations of the Group and Conya.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$150,000. These costs had been charged to
“other expenses” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss for the prior year.
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(i) Conya Group Limited &
Health Easy Dental Group
Limited ([ Conya)

RZE—+F+=ZA=++H -
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E]SI 13 © Conya B BEEZ R
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(ii)

Conya Group Limited and Health Easy Dental
Group Limited (“Conya”) (Continued)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities

A H5 R P 5

31. EXKUWE @)

b) REZE=Z2E—-—NEF=A=+-—
HIEFEFENWESE#)

(i) Conya Group Limited &
Health Easy Dental Group
Limited ([ Conya ) (#&)

Conya A UgEE A B Al BRI B E

of Conya as at the date of acquisition was as rEBEHAFEDT :
follows:
Total
w5t
Notes HK$
FI5E BIT
Property, plant and equipment VI - BB MERE 4,020,814
Inventories rE 23,462
Trade receivables B IR 884,925
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FERZIE - Zek 5,578,893
Hofh e ERIR
Intangible assets on acquisition W EREE 2,463,048
Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets EILEAENMRLGIEAEG (406,403)
Tax recoverable AT BB TR 1,167,365
Cash and cash equivalents HekBEeSEY 2,864,653
Trade payables B SRS RIA (446,550)
Other payables and accruals Htt R E R ERTE A (1,753,045)
Obligations under finance leases BhE S A (581,699)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BAFEFEMNT R
BEFERR 13,815,463
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR R (5,526,185)
Goodwill on acquisition U BRI RgE 14 22,050,613
Satisfied by cash AR & 4518 30,339,891
Cash consideration HERE (30,339,891)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FriERR ¢ RIS EEY 2,864,653
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included % & & B P77 E
in cash flows used in investing activities BREOESNMREEED
iR (27,475,238)

Since the acquisition, the Conya contributed
HK$7.5 million to the Group’s revenue and HK$0.8
million to the Group’s consolidated profit for the
year ended 31 March 2018.

BWEBLUR BE2_F—\F
= A=+—H1L5E Conyam 5l
BAEBRARNEBES &
FMEE7SEEE TNROSES
PBITT °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR M5

B 7

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued)

19

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended
31 March 2018 (Continued)

(iii)

Hair styling and beauty business

On 15 August 2017 and 6 September 2017, the
Group entered into sale and purchase agreements
with three individuals, who were the then
shareholders of five entities which operated in hair
styling business and providing beauty services
under the brand name Mulan (“Hair styling and
beauty business”). Under the terms of the
agreements, the Group agreed to acquire 50% to
100% shareholding in the five entities.

The transaction was completed on 15 August 2017
and 6 September 2017 with total consideration of
HK$13.7 million.

The goodwill of HK$22.0 million arising from the
acquisitions was attributable to the synergy from
the share of customer pool and combining the
operations of the Group and hair styling and beauty
business.

The Group incurred acquisition-related costs of
HK$148,822 on 15 August 2017 and 6 September
2017. These costs had been charged to “other
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss for the prior year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

31. BUSINESS ACQUISITIONS (continued) 31. ¥BWEE @)

(b) Summary of acquisitions for the year ended

b) RBE=-F-—NE=A=+-—

31 March 2018 (Continued) HiEFENWREBEE &)
(iiiy Hair styling and beauty business (Continued) (i) BAEBERNRERFER (A)

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
of hair styling and beauty business as at the date of

BEENREREBRWER
WA AR EERBENAYF

acquisition was as follows: (ERUNNE
Total
#ast
Notes HK$
Bt aE BIT
Property, plant and equipment M - B R 3,501,058
Intangible assets mEE 441,169
Inventories FE 1,617,982
Trade receivables B Z EWRIR 2,908,791
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERNHIE - me Kk 4,807,059
HAb U FRIE
Intangible assets on acquisition W) R & 12,662,650
Deferred tax liabilities on intangible assets B EENRENARE (2,089,337)
Tax recoverable AU ERIE 136,187
Cash and cash equivalents ReERFASEEY 3,610,690
Trade payables B SRR (385,198)
Other payables and accruals HAb ERTFIB R BB A (14,117,665)
Deferred revenue EEWA (30,042,614)
Total identifiable net liabilities at fair value BRAFEREHFEA (16,949,228)
BEFEERE
Non-controlling interests eI R 8,652,699
Goodwill on acquisition iR Py 2 14 22,016,529
Satisfied by cash LAIR & 4518 13,720,000
Cash consideration NERE (13,720,000)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired FrisBE a93R & & 3,610,690
ReEEY
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents included & ;EEFFAR SR E
in cash flows used in investing activities ReENIRE R
REFZEYRLFRE (10,109,310)

Since the acquisition, the hair styling and beauty
business incurred HK$20.6 million to the Group’s
revenue and incurred loss of HK$8.9 million to the
Group’s consolidated profit for the year ended 31

March 2018.

BUELR  BE2=F—\F
—A=+—BLFEHEEAR
REBREB D AEAEBRA
MAREB A RANEE206H
EBTMRL8IEEETT
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32.

33.

20

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 32.

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not
provided for in the consolidated financial statements are as
follows:

HREE

R|ERKR - WENERE M BFHRER AR
BENIARENT

2019 2018
—E-nE —F)\F
HK$ HKS
BT BT
Bank guarantee given to a credit A= R IR AR 1T R (R
card institution 2,000,000 2,000,000

As at 31 March 2019, the maximum liability of the Group under
the bank guarantee given to a credit card institution was
HK$2,000,000 (2018: HK$2,000,000).

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 33.

The Group leases certain of its beauty service centres, medical
clinics, office premises, warehouses and equipment under
operating lease arrangements. Leases for these properties are
negotiated for terms generally ranging from 1 to 5 years.

The Group had total future minimum lease payments under
non-cancellable operating leases falling due as follows:

RZBE-AF=ZA=+—8 AEEM[E
AA#EBREHENRTERETNRSAE
#%2,000,0007% 7T (= — /% : 2,000,000
BT °

REHERE

AEERBREEELHFHBEREETER
WP BEZH - MAYE - BERR
B HEMFENREREB—RNF1256
£ o

REE AT REE A LA TR IA T 2
HR AR FE R &K E ERIB A7
T

2019 2018

—ZE—-hEF —E-N\F

HK$ HK$

BT BIT

Within one year —FR 146,765,316 103,917,736
After 1 year but within 5 years —FUEERFR 377,110,972 228,947,230
After 5 years HFEMNE - 153,640
523,876,288 333,018,606
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BF 7 g MY AT
34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4. BEBHAIRS
(@ In addition to the transactions and balances detailed @ BUBHmEREMITSAFLHNRZR
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group had the RN REBFANBEEHEIA N5
following material transactions with related parties during BEARS :
the year:
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZEFE-N\F
Notes HK$ HK$
ihg=s BT BT
Companies beneficially owned HEEREER
by Tang Chi Fai BEENALT
Rental expenses fAemY (i 1,884,000 1,809,000
Companies beneficially owned B EREER
by the spouse of Tang Chi Fai BEEWNLDTE
Rental expenses Hemx 0] 264,000 288,000
Insurance brokerage service fee R D RFEE (iv) 1,068,660 938,519
Joint ventures EELE
Sales of skincare and beauty HEEBNMEREMR
products (ii) 63,851 25,967
Purchases of skincare and BEEENEAERK
beauty products and medical BEEEM
consumables (ii) 28,987,020 25,873,440
Purchases of property, plant and BEWME  BEMK
equipment (iii) 10,795,771 2,833,391
Equipment maintenance RIBHRERTE
service fee (v) 3,555,730 2,307,562

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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34. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

20

@)

(Continued)
Notes:

(i) The rental expenses were charged from the related parties on
an actual cost basis.

(ii) Sales and purchases were made with the joint ventures
according to the mutually agreed pricing.

(iii) ltems of property, plant and equipment were purchased from
joint ventures according to mutually agreed terms.

(iv) Insurance brokerage service fee was charged from the related
parties according to mutually agreed terms.

(V) Equipment maintenance service fee was charged from the
joint ventures according to mutually agreed terms.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

All members of key management personnel are directors
of the Company, and their compensations are disclosed
in note 9.

There was no continuing connected transaction entered
by the Group during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018 which is required to be disclosed under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The related party
transactions with entities beneficially owned by Tang Chi
Fai or his spouse disclosed in note 34(a) are exempted
from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold
under Rule 14A.76(1).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk and debt price and
investment fund risks. The directors review and agree policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counter party will default on
its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss to the
Group.

The Group was involved in the provision of medical, aesthetic
medical and beauty and wellness services and the sale of
skincare, healthcare and beauty products and receivable
balances are mainly from financial institutions in respect of
credit card receivables and other institutional customers arising
from medical services. Receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis by senior management and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant. In addition, the
Group’s bank balances are deposited with creditworthy banks
with no recent history of default.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets arises from
the default of the counterparties, with a maximum exposure
equal to the carrying amounts of these financial assets.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a
provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss
experience does not indicate significantly different loss patterns
for different customer segments, the loss allowance based on
past due status is not further distinguished between the
Group’s different customer bases.

No allowance in respect of expected credit loss have been
recognised as the management assessed the risk of default
based on historical experience and forward looking element is
not significant.

RIS ¥R MR
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(=}

AEESRTAMELANIERRAEER
Rk - REBE SRR FEER REBE
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FERREHFIEREAOATENE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
The following table provides information about the Group’s

exposure to credit risk for trade receivables as at 31 March
2019:

35.

tREREEREMIANAF
=RE )

EERR @)
TR -_E—NE=A=+—84A%=

EHEEREERRBONER

Gross carrying

amount

FREAE

HK$

BT

Current (not past due) BIHA (R ) 95,900,053
Less than 3 months past due wHF DR 3 1E A 7,039,814
3 to 6 months past due B3 E61EA 72,687
7 to 12 months past due w7 =12(@A 156,527
More than 1 year past due BHA1F L E 1,499,204
104,668,285

Comparative information under HKAS 39

Prior to 1 April 2018, an impairment loss was recognised only
when there was objective evidence of impairment. At 31 March
2018, no trade receivables were determined to be impaired.
The ageing analysis of trade receivables that were not
considered to be impaired was as follows:

BB GRS 30 WAL BEH

RZZ—\FHUA—HA  REBEER
ERERBBEERARERT THE R-_F
—NF=ZA=1t—H HEEESTRE
M E 5 EWHRIE - THERERNE SR
RIBRRREDITAT

2018

—E-NF

HK$

BIT

Neither past due nor impaired FEE I ARBE 52,733,726
1-30 days past due mHE1 =30 H 14,130,582
31-60 days past due #HEI31 =60 H 502,916
61-90 days past due wHEI61 =90 H 534,554
More than 90 days past due #HIO0 B A 768,615
68,670,393

20 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Credit risk (Continued)
Comparative information under HKAS 39 (Continued)

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired mainly
related to a number of receivables due from financial
institutions in respect of credit card settlement for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired related to a
number of financial institutions that had a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management
believed that no impairment allowance was necessary in
respect of these balances as there had been no significant
change in credit quality and the balances were still considered
fully recoverable. The Group did not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuation in cash flows. Management reviews and monitors
its working capital requirements regularly.

A H5 R P 5

35 SRIEREERETMIAENAYF

B @)

EERR @)
EHYHERE0RHLEEH (&)

REHPTFARBENRUFAETELELIARE
WeRBENEAREEFEARR MAR
REE SR A = K RO ER
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35.

20

A5 R P 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities, based on
the contractual undiscounted cash flows, are as follows:

As at 31 March 2019

35 TREREEREMTANAY

=RE ),

AEENTRABEEARSORMBARESR
EMZMBRET

R-E-NF=ZA=+—H

Morethan ~ More than
Within 1 year but 2years Total
1 year or lessthan butlessthan ~ More than undiscounted Carry
on demand 2years 5years 5years  cash flows amounts
BR-ERZ —ENE MELL )
REXEE  ERER BRER IENE REREAE REE
HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
BT BT BT BT BT BT
Trade payables BREMTE 21,879,324 - - - 21879324 21,879,324
Other payables and accruals EtERTERETER 144,054,378 1,720,000 7,390,000 - 153,164,378 153,164,378
Obligations under finance leases REHEARE 7,322,104 6,547,692 19,643,076 19,643,076 53,155,948 46,771,341
Bank borrowings RITER 498,147,821 - - - 498,147,821 497,713,680
671403627 8,267,692 27,033,076 19,643,076 726,347,471 719,529,223
As at 31 March 2018 R-ZE-NF=A=+—H
More than More than
Within 1 year but 2 years Total
1 year or lessthan  but less than More than  undiscounted Carry
on demand 2 years 5 years 5 years cash flows amounts
BR—ENY —EE MEL L KRR

RERER BRIER BRER hENE ReREEE RAEfE

HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS

BT BT BT BT B BT

Trade payables BHENTA 9,438 467 = = - 0438467 0438467

Other payables and accruals HiENERESER 96786957 3,690,000 - - 100476,957 100,476,957

Obligations under finance leases BBHEAE 1,736,132 421,376 - - 2,157,508 2,126,492
Bank borrowings BITER 558,897,409 - - - 558,807,409 558,853,516

666,858,965 4,111,376 - - 670,970,341 670,895,432

The below table summarises the maturity analysis of bank
borrowings with a repayment on demand clause based on
agreed scheduled repayments set out in the facilities
agreements with banks. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. Taking into
account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not
consider that it is probable that the bank will exercise its
discretion to demand immediate repayment and believe that
these borrowings will be repaid in accordance with the
scheduled repayment dates.
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FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35.

A H5 R P 5

tREAREEREMIAN AT
8 (#)

PR — REERKBRR

repayment on demand based on scheduled EREZEBITE
repayments
Over 1year  Over 2 years Total Total
Within but within but within Over  undiscounted carrying
1 year 2 years 5 years Syears  cashflows amount
—FhE MEL £ RER
—£R  BmERN BLER RENE RENELE  LFEE
HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS HKS
BT BT AT BT BT BT
At 31 March 2019 RZE-NE=A=1-H 26193250 25369551 55626479  47,008049 154,217,329 141,599,435
At 31 March 2018 RZF-\F=A=1-H 20648622  20,173863 54542201 30,817,707 126,182,393 116,411,628
Interest rate risk == 3 b

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
borrowings. Bank borrowings issued at variable rates and at
fixed rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk and

fair value interest rate risk respectively.

The Group monitors the level of its variable rate borrowings
and fixed rate borrowings and manages the contractual terms
of the interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Group’s interest
rate profile as monitored by management is set out in (i) below.

AEENFNERR T ERBRITER %
T BN R e B E A R B 2 RITE KD R
SHAEEAXRReREMNERR R A FE
=R

AN ER 18 55 52U B M) R B R R B E R R AE R

MKFERERF S ERABOAMNIGER -

ZIKEIEEEEEJ'?%?E’J?'JTM/R%WQTK
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35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

20

Interest rate risk (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Interest rate profile

The following table details the interest rate profile of the
Group’s borrowings at the end of the reporting period.

3. cREREEREMIAMNAYF
=RE )

FZRE b2 (&)

(i

MRES

TR E BN RS K2 5
2 RIEER -

2019 2018
“E-hE —E-N\¥
Effective Effective
interest rate Amount interest rate Amount
ERFI= &8 BT 8
Note HK$ HKS
fizE BT BT
Fixed rate borrowings: EEF=ER
Bank borrowings FTER 24 - - 5.16% 97,747
Obligations under finance leases ~ BIETE&IE 27 3.00% 771,841 3.00% 2,126,492
771,841 2,224,239
Variable rate borrowings: FEIFEER -
Bank borrowings BITHER 24 0.6%-593% 497,713,680 0.28%-5.80% 558,755,769
Obligations under finance leases MEHEAE 27 3.30% 46,000,000 - -
543,713,680 558,755,769
544,485,521 560,980,008
Sensitivity analysis (i) BBREDNT
At 31 March 2019, it is estimated that a general increase/ R-ZE—NF=ZA=+—8 " FHtF

decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit after taxation and retained
profits by approximately HK$4,540,009 (2018:
HK$4,665,611). Other components of consolidated
equity would not be affected in response to a general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the annualised
impact on the Group’s interest expense that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period arising from floating
rate non-derivative instruments held by the Group as at
that date which expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Debt price and investment fund risks

The Group is exposed to debt price risk arising from individual
debt investments classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. The debt investments are valued at
quoted market prices. Investment fund risk is the risk that the
fair value or future cash flows of investment funds will fluctuate
due to changes in the prices of underlying securities. All of the
Group’s unquoted investments are held for strategic purpose.
Their performance is assessed regularly based on the
information available to the Group.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to every 5%
change in the fair values of the debt and unlisted fund
investments to which the Group has significant exposure at the
end of the reporting period, with all other variables held
constant and before any impact on tax. There is no impact on
the Group’s equity except on the retained profits.

The maximum risk resulting from these investments equals
their fair value.

A H5 R P 5

35 SRIEREERETMIAENAYF
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35.

21

A5 R P 5E

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Debt price and investment fund risks (Continued)

35 TREREEREMTANAY

=RE ),

BRERRREESER (&)

Carrying amount Change in profit

of investments before tax
BREW BRB AR R
BRHEE By B)
HK$ HK$
BT BT

As at 31 March 2019 RZE—NFE=ZA=+—H
Unlisted fund investments FELETESKE 176,383,259 8,819,163
Listed debt investments EHEERE 423,447,598 21,172,380
599,830,857 29,991,543

As at 31 March 2018 RZE—NF=ZA=+—H
Unlisted fund investments FLETESEKE 329,449,514 16,472,476
Listed debt investments EEKERE 166,380,238 8,319,012
495,829,752 24,791,488

Capital management EREE

The Group’s main objectives with respect to capital
management include maintaining a solid and stable financing
structure to support its ongoing business growth so that it can
continue to maximise shareholders’ return, and providing an
adequate return to the shareholders by pricing products and
services commensurate with the level of risk.

The Group regularly reviews and manages its capital structure
and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying assets.
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to the shareholders, return capital
to the shareholders or issue new shares. The Group is not
subject to any externally imposed capital requirements. No
changes were made to the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the year.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND 35.

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value measurement
Financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
financial instruments measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-level fair
value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 183, Fair value
measurement. The level into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference to the observability and
significance of the inputs used in the valuation technique as
follows:

° Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement date

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2
inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1,
and not using significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data are
not available.

o Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant
unobservable inputs

A H5 R P 5
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

21

35.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:

tREREEREMIANAF
=RE )

TRIFAEEERIANRTENEE
R

BAFEFENEE

Fair value measurement using

ERATFIERTATVENE

Quoted prices

Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
RIERMS EATEE EAFUBE
FragfEs BARE BARE
(B1ER) (B2ER) (%3ER) EoH
HK$ HK$ HK$ HKS
B B BT BT
As at 31 March 2019 R-ZB-h§=A=+-H
Financial assets at fair value through R ATEFABSNEREE
profit or loss 423,447,598 192,069,261 21,670,810 637,187,669
As at 31 March 2018 RZE-NE=A=+—-H
Financial assets at fair value through R ATEFFABSNEREE
profit or loss 166,380,238 329,449,514 - 495,829,752

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers
into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and financial

liabilities.

The fair values of the listed debt investments are based on

quoted market prices.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND

FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2
fair value measurements

The unlisted fund investments are not quoted in an active
market and may be subject to restrictions on redemptions. The
management considers the valuation techniques and inputs
used in valuing these investment funds as part of its due
diligence prior to investing to ensure they are reasonable and
appropriate and therefore the net assets value of these funds
may be used as an input into measuring their fair values.

In respect of the unlisted equity investment categorised into
Level 2, the valuation of such is estimated by reference to the
transaction price at arm’s length for a same class of equity
instrument.

Valuation technique and inputs used in Level 3
fair value measurements

The fair value of an unlisted equity instrument is determined by
referencing to the fair value of underlying properties held by the
investee using the residual approach by taking into account the
redevelopment potential of such properties. The fair value
measurement is positively related to the estimated profit margin
(10%) on redevelopment. As at 31 March 2019, it is estimated
that with all other variables held constant, a decrease/increase
in estimated profit margin by 1% would have decreased/
increased the Group’s profit for the year by HK$506,664 (2018:
HKSnil).

The movements during the year in the balance of the Level 3
measurements are as follows:

A H5 R P 5

35 SRIEREERETMIANAYF

B @)

F2EMAFEFEMANMGER
i 2 1y A BUE

FLEMESREERRT S L ERE - 7
REXRBEIRS - EEERHZSZRER
T HETT 1A B P76 AR A i (B R 1l S B A BK
BRASENKENNEREEN &5
UHEREAELAE AUZFESNE
EFEFERIEEEQFENBARE -

IOBERF2BMNIFELHBRAKREMS -
AEB2EZRERATANRATIR5ER
B fERTETTE(E

SEMAFEFEMANMGER
(ST PN ¢

FEEMBRAT AT EWIRE H 5 EkE
MENAFEERRBAFGEBREIET I
ARERYEETETRENAIEME - D
FEFERSEFHEENGEFE(10%)
EHE#E -R=ZE—-—NF=ZA=+—H" &
FIEEMBEREBETENERT » itk
FIRF A, 1EA01% # EB AR E B FEHF
W EN506,664B T (—E—N\F: E
HBIL) e

FRAE=EBETELREDUOT ¢

2019
—E-hEF
HK$
BT

Unlisted equity investment FELTRAIRE
At 1 April RMA—H -
Payment for acquisition W 1T 3R 21,670,810
At 31 March R=A=+—8H 21,670,810

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

35. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

35.

tREREEREMIANAF
=RE )

Financial assets and liabilities not measured at WHERAFETENEMEERE
fair value &
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial instruments IR EEAIR - A& B iR Ak 2N 3t 3 85 Ak AN 7]
carried at cost or amortised cost are not materially different RS TARDEHEAEATFETES K
from their fair values as at the end of the reporting period. =R o
36. COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF 36. 2~ EIBIIEMRIR R
FINANCIAL POSITION
2019 2018
—E-hEF —FE-N\F
Note HK$ HK$
B sE BT BT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBERE
Investments in subsidiaries R E R RIMIRE 8 8
Financial assets at fair value BN EFTAERZD
through profit or loss SREE 15,686,002 -
Loan to a joint venture BERTEERE - 14,500,000
15,686,010 14,500,008
CURRENT ASSETS REBEE
Loan to a joint venture ERTEERE 14,500,000 -
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG 1,682,841 183,729,399
Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 7,339,240 362,494
23,522,081 184,091,893
NET ASSETS EEFE 39,208,091 198,591,901
EQUITY R 28(a)
Share capital RE 7 9,845 9,834
Reserves f# 39,198,246 198,582,067
39,208,091 198,591,901

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on

26 June 2019.

Tang Chi Fai

BEE
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A H5 R P 5

37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. RMBRARINKRE
The following list contains only the particular of subsidiaries UNTREBEFHINTESERER ¥4 -
which principally affected the results, assets and liabilities of BENSBBEZMNBAREE -
the Group.
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ FEERENER
establishment/ paid-up REB DL
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
HARERL/ BRTRA/
MEAREH R/ E¥4% BRRA E# Mg TR
Able Lead Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Provision for healthcare services
(BRHERAT) : 18T REERRE
All Union International Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Investment holding
(ERERREERLR) : 187 RERR
Best Union (China) Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of medical, quasi-medical
(R (B BRAE) B 18T and traditional beauty services
and sale of skincare and beauty
products

RUBR  EEEREHAXA
BB RHEERREDER

Bilion Energy Limited Hong Kong HK$1 S 100%  Investment properties
(KEBRLE) Bk 187 REME
Conya Group Limited Hong Kong HK$11,000 = 60%  Provision of dental services
(RESEARAR) & 11,0007 RUTHRE
Dermagic Skin Treatment Centre Company Limited - Hong Kong HK$770 S 80%  Provision of traditional beauty
(BXOEEFLERLF) B TI0AT senvices and sale of skincare and
beauty products
REBGXARBIRHEERR
XPEm
UMH Treasury Services Alpha Limited Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
B 10871 REZRES
UMH Treasury Services Beta Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Holding of healthcare machines
B 10,0007 RAERES
Dr. Pro and Dr. Reborn Medical Aesthetics Macau MOP26,000 = 100%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Centre Limited BF 26,000 %7 beauty services
(BEXBEXATLERAR) RUBEXZRE
Grand Best Union Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Provision of administrative services
(BIEBARAR) B 1A RETHRS

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
FEHRE 2018/19 21 5



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. RTBARINIRE &)

(Continued)
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ AEEEEHER
establishment/ paid-up REFDH
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
Rz BRARA/
WEAREE R/ &858 BERE E# B TEEE
Grand Best Union Senvices Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 90%  Investment holding
EE 1007 RERR
Guangzhou Zhuansheng Aesthetic Medical Beauty — The PRC RMB10,000,000 - 90%  Provision of aesthetic medical
Clinic Company Limited i ARE beauty services
(ENBEXREXAFIDEERLR) 10,000,0007% REBEXIERE
Guangzhou Zhuansheng Enterprise Management  The PRC (note 1) RMB500,000 - 90%  Provision for management services
Company Limited R (1) ARE RUERRHS
(ENEEAEERERAR) 500,007
Health Easy Dental Group Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 60%  Provision of dental services
(RETHEEERAR) ; 1007 RETBRT
Hong Kong Medical Advanced Imaging Limited Hong Kong HK$80,000,000 = 48.5%  Provision of medicalimaging services
% 80,000,000/ 7T REBEYERS
Hong Kong Medical Endoscopy Centre Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 78%  Provision of medical services
Bl 1007 RERRRE
Hong Kong Oncology Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 60%  Provision of medical services
Bh 10,0007 REERRE
Hong Kong Pain And Wellness Solution Limited British Virgin Islands 1US$10,000 - 51%  Investment holding
RBRUEE 10,000% 7 RERR
Hong Kong Polyclinic Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 S 60%  Provision of medical services
i hiv REERRE
Jade Master International Limited British Virgin Islands US$10 S 100%  Investment holding
ZERNHS 0% RERR
Mckenzie Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 51%  Provision of therapy services
(RBREEERLR) B 10,0007 REEERE
Medic One Surgery Center Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Provision for management services
i 1371 REERRE
My Healthcare Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 51%  Provision of medical services
B 10057 REBERY

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19



37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A H5 R P 5

37. RMBRARHNIKRE &)

(Continued)
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ TEEEENER
establishment/ paid-up REFA
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
1AV BRIRA/
MEARER R/ E¥4% BERR E# B TEEE
New Elte Inc. Limited Hong Kong HK$10 S 100%  Provision of medical and traditional
(FBEEERAF) BiE 0BT beauty senvices and sale of
skincare and beauty products
REUZRREAXTRENL
HEEEREAER
New Union Intemational Capital Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Provision of management services
(MBEREAERAR) 5 187 REEBRH
New York Medical Group Hong Kong HK$1,000 = 51%  Provision of chiropractic services
RNBEEE B 10007 REABIRY
Professional Aesthetic Surgery Centre Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision for management services
(EXBERPHRLERARA) BA 18T RUETRRE
Professional Medical and Surgery Center Limited ~ Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Provision of management services
(EMBEERTLERAR) 7 1371 RUEETRRE
Project 535 Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 50%  Provision of hair and nail treatment
&R 10,0007 senvices
RERERETERRY
Swiss Line by Dermalab Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Sales of skincare and beauty
(ENEERAR) Bk 1,000,000/ 70 products
HERBREXRER
Team Expert Investment Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
HERNHS %7 REER
The One Dental Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Provision of dental services
B 10087 R TR
The One Dental Plus Limited Hong Kong HK$1 = 100%  Provision of dental services
B 1B FRUETRIRE
Union Dental Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
RERNHS 157 RERR
Union Dermatology Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 = 100%  Investment holding
RERES 1£7 REBR
Union Enchanting Limited British Virgin Islands USS$1 = 100%  Investment holding
(BaRrCARAA) ZERAHS 17 RERR
EEBEREREEERAR

FEHRE 2018/19 21 7



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A5 R P 5E

37. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 37. RMIBARINKRE @)
(Continued)
Effective percentage
of equity interest
Place of Issued held by the Group
incorporation/ share capital/ AEEERHER
establishment/ paid-up RERDH
Name of subsidiaries operation share capital Directly Indirectly  Principal activities
Y/ BRIRE/
WEARER R/ E$H% ARRE E# B TEEE
Union (Group) Investment Limited Hong Kong HK$29,608 - 100%  Provision of medical,

(Ba (B REBRLR) B 29,6087 7 quasi-medical and traditional
beauty services and sale of
skincare and beauty products

RHER EREREHXD
BBAREEERREAER
Union Harvest Corporation Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 = 100%  Provision of marketing services
(BRERAA) & i RETERERE
Union Heatth Services Holding Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 100% - Investment holding
AERNES %7 REBR
Union Honor International Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 S 100%  Provision of management services
(BEERCXERAR) B 10,0007 REERRY
UMH GP Network Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 100%  Provision of meaical services
(ERFEESEARAA) 5 1007 RHEERE
Union Medical Association Limited Hong Kong HKS$1 - 100%  Owiner of trademarks
Bl 187 AREAA
Union Medical Capital Management Limited British Virgin Islands USS1 S 100%  Investment holding
EERNHS 1£7 REBR
Union Neurology and Orthology Limited Hong Kong HK$100 S 51%  Provision of medical services
i 1007 REBERS
Union Preventive Healthcare Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 S 100%  Investment holding
EBRUES 17 RERR
Window-Discovery Tours Limited Hong Kong HK$800,000 = 97%  Provision of travel agency services
(BREBEERAT) ; 800,000/ 7T RERET N RB
Young Aesthetics Medical Limited Hong Kong HK$100 = 51%  Provision of aesthetic medical
(FEEEERAA) B 10077 senvices

Note 1: The subsidiary is a wholly-foreign owned enterprise in the PRC.
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38.

39.

40.

41.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE
CONTROLLING PARTY

At 31 March 2019, the directors consider the immediate parent
and ultimate controlling party of the Group to be Union Medical
Care Holding Limited, which is incorporated in the BVI on 6
July 2015. Union Medical Care Holding Limited does not
produce financial statements available for public use.

NON-ADJUSTING EVENTS AFTER
REPORTING PERIOD

In June 2019, Team Expert Investment Limited, an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the sellers, to acquire 60% of the issued share
capital in Prime Inspire Limited (“Prime Inspire”). Prime Inspire
together with its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
provision of marketing services. This acquisition enables the
Group to enhance its promotional and marketing activities.

The acquisition was completed on 17 June 2019. The Group is
in the process of assessing the fair value of assets and liabilities
of Prime Inspire as of the completion date.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Certain comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to
current year’s presentation.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
March 2019 and which have not been adopted in these
consolidated financial statements. These include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

38.

39.

40.

41.

RIS ¥R MR

BEERRRERE

RZZE—AFE=ZA=+—H EFRAN
SENEESARRERERAR AR
E-hETARNAEEBREAHSFMK
3 &) Union Medical Care Holding Limited ©
Union Medical Care Holding Limited It £ #
SR H ARG AN BHmE -

BEMRNFAREER

RZE—NFERA BEIFZ2EWEHB
A &) Team Expert Investment Limited E2 2 77
I B E W - AULES Prime Inspire Limited
([Prime Inspire]) B % 77 B& & #60% °
Prime Inspire 82 R E B A 5] E BH FIRH
MIZHERD - WIEBAREEIRAE
HEREHEE o

KWEEBEERZE—NFEA+EATK -
REE B I 2714 Prime Inspire A 52k B HIR)E
EXRAENATE-

EEBEF

EF BB TOEREUGAREENE
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

41.

22

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, 41. EHEBENARRBE_Z—NEF
NEW STANDARDS AND ZA=+—BLEFEEME
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET T -HEAHERENOREE
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 (4)
MARCH 2019 (continued)
Effective for
accounting
periods beginning
on or after
R B 2 2%
WETH—EEN
HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
EEVBHREEAE 165 HE —E-NF—H—H
HK(IFRIC) 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
BB (BRI B EE S ) it BE 235 - T ERE s THE M —E-NF-—H—H
Annual improvements to HKFRs 2015-2017 Cycle 1 January 2019
BB BIRE R FEN S (—E— A FE T —+FHH) —E-AF—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 28, Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures 1 January 2019
BB GFERIFE 28 EaVER] RFEL ARG EE R —E-NF—H—H

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what
the impact of these amendments and new standards is
expected to be in the period of initial application. So far the
Group has identified some aspects of the new standards which
may have a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements. Further details of the expected impacts are
discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining whether
to adopt any of these new requirements before their effective
date and which transitional approach to take, where there are
alternative approaches allowed under the new standards.

HKFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 3.1, currently the Group classifies leases
into finance leases and operating leases and accounts for the
lease arrangements differently, depending on the classification
of the lease. The Group enters into some leases as the lessor
and others as the lessee.

Union Medical Healthcare Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

41. POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

HKFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on the way
that lessors account for their rights and obligations under a
lease. However, once HKFRS 16 is adopted, lessees will no
longer distinguish between finance leases and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the lease the
lessee will recognise and measure a lease liability at the present
value of the minimum future lease payments and will recognise
a corresponding “right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of
this asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the lease
liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use asset, instead
of the current policy of recognising rental expenses incurred
under operating leases on a systematic basis over the lease
term. As a practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to
apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e. where
the lease term is 12 months or less) and to leases of low-value
assets, in which case the rental expenses would continue to
be recognised on a systematic basis over the lease term.

HKFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting as a
lessee of leases for properties, plant and equipment which are
currently classified as operating leases. The application of the
new accounting model is expected to lead to an increase in
both assets and liabilities and to impact on the timing of the
expense recognition in the statement of profit or loss over the
period of the lease.

HKFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019. As allowed by HKFRS 16, the Group plans to
use the practical expedient to grandfather the previous
assessment of which existing arrangements are, or contain,
leases. The Group will therefore apply the new definition of a
lease in HKFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered into on or
after the date of initial application.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A5 R P 5E

41.

22

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND
INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2019 (continued)

HKFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

The Group plans to elect to use the modified retrospective
approach for the adoption of HKFRS 16 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as an adjustment to the
opening balance of equity at 1 April 2019 and will not restate
the comparative information. As disclosed in note 33, at 31
March 2019 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amounted to
HK$523,876,288, the majority of which is payable between 1
and 5 years after the reporting date. Upon the initial adoption
of HKFRS 16, the opening balances of lease liabilities and the
corresponding right-of-use assets will be adjusted as at 1 April
2019.

Other than the recognition of lease liabilities and right-of-use
assets, the Group expects that the transition adjustments to be
made upon the initial adoption of HKFRS 16 will not be
material. However, the expected changes in accounting
policies as described above could have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statement for the year
ending 31 March 2020 onwards.
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“AGM”

[BERBFERE]

“Articles of Association”
[HEET2AA) ]

“Audit Committee”

[EZEZEE]

“Board”

50
“CG Code”
[{b2EER~FAl]

“Chinese Medicine
Practitioner(s)”

[ o &

“Company”

[ARRAE ]

“Director(s)”

[EF]

“EBITDA”
[ SR E KR 2 i

“Greater Bay Area”

[ABE]

DEFINITIONS

the annual general meeting of the Company proposed to be held on 21
August 2019
BERZE-NFNAZ+T—BEINAQRFRRRBERE

the Company’s articles of association
RRRIHBEEEEIZAAY

the audit committee of the Board
EEgERZEY

the board of Directors

BExg

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules, as amended from time to time

ETRAIPER 14 PR R R EA T A (R TEFERT)

person(s) who is (are) registered as registered Chinese medicine
practitioner(s) of the Chinese Medicine Council of Hong Kong under the
Register of Chinese Medicine Practitioners kept in accordance with the
Chinese Medicine Ordinance

RIBECP BRI EBEFOPEZMEMAZR AT LB HEEREEZES
AR B AL

Union Medical Healthcare Limited ( & /& 2 B £ Z £ B H R 2 7%, an
exempted Company incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ERBRERERARALAR " RASHESIMKUNEREBRAGF - &
A& An BB Z2 BT AR T

the director(s) of the Company
KRAIEE

earnings before interests, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

AREPARIE - BHIE - ERBHEHN

city cluster cross the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau region, consisting of
Hong Kong, Macau and nine cities in Guangdong Province, namely,
Dongguan, Foshan, Guangzhou, Huizhou, Jiangmen, Shenzhen, Zhaoging,
Zhongshan and Zhuhai

BR-FE-RFI(EEBR) RERTE - BFES RFIREREANE
vl (BIEREE ~ Bl ~ BN - 2N - OTPT ORI BB - Il RIRE)

EERBEERASEERAR
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DEFINITIONS
ESis

“Greater China”

(R ]

“Group”
[A&EE]

“g.f.a”
[ 4R IE A

“Healthcare Professionals”

[fEREEES |

*HKS’
7t ]

“Hong Kong”
[&#]

“IPO”
[BRAFREE]

“Listing Date”
[ Fm B

“Listing Rules”

[ EmR A

“Macau”
[EPF9

“Macau Doctor(s)”

RFIEEA |

22 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

the PRC, Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan
hE B ORPIRAE

the Company and its subsidiaries

AR REKBERF]

gross floor area
BEREEE

person(s) registered with the respective boards or councils before he/she is
allowed to practise in Hong Kong under the relevant laws of Hong Kong as
may be amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time.
The 13 healthcare professionals comprise Chinese medicine practitioners,
chiropractors, dental hygienists, dentists, medical laboratory technologists,
medical practitioners, midwives, nurses, pharmacists, occupational
therapists, optometrists, physiotherapists and radiographers
ERERBFIGENREL  MRNEM AR ESN T B ERENESTSE
HEZR - EHEESSRESTEELHALT - 13ERFEEEZEEBER
B AR TRMREE T8 B2(cRE B BEL - EL - &
B~ BREERTERD - BROLAD - WIRIS AN KR AR ST B Am

Hong Kong dollar, the lawful currency of Hong Kong

BREEEBET

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of
China
hEARKNBEEFRITHR

initial public offering of the shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
PRI RFT EARE R AFEE

11 March 2016, being the date on which the shares were first listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange
ZE-REF=ZAT—B RO EREBMIAER LT REEZH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

B prE s MR Al

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People’s Republic of China
R AR HEFBURFIRRITTE R

doctor(s) licensed by and registered with the department of health in Macau
CRPIRRITTER R B EESD)
ERPIERITTIR R B R R Al R B H B



“Medical Professionals”

[BEEEAE]

“Memorandum and Articles of

Association”
EEE: RPN S

“Model Code”

[T A

“Mr. Tang”

[ERFE4 |

“PRC”

[ Ed ]

“PRC Doctor(s) ”

[ B Rt B8 A |

“Prospectus”

[HRER]

“Registered Practitioner(s)”

[FEff e A

“Reporting Period”
[ ¥R & HA

DEFINITIONS

Healthoare Professionals excluding Registered Practitioners
REREREE  TEETME

the Company’s memorandum and article of association
RRARHEBER KNG LR

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set
out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules
AR 0PEC EMBITAESETESFIHNEETAD

Mr. Tang Chi Fai, the chairman, executive Director and the chief executive
officer of the Company
RRBER ATESFRITBERMEELE

the People’s Republic of China which, for the purpose of this annual report
and unless the context suggests otherwise, excludes Hong Kong, Macau
and Taiwan

hEARANE  HAFHNE MR XESEMEN - TEEFE RN

R&k

medical practitioner(s) with the qualification of a doctor (EEl) or assistant doctor
(BVZEBHIE EEAMN) under the PRC Law on Medical Practitioners (F7 A R £ H1E
#EBANE) and is practicing at a medical or healthcare institution
BBCPEARLMBBERAE) EEBA SN EBIREMESNELE
BB R AR

the prospectus dated 1 March 2016 issued by the Company
RARRZE—AF=A—AFENBRER

registered dentist within the meaning of the Dentists Registration Ordinance
(Cap. 156), registered medical practitioner within the meaning of the Medical
Registration Ordinance (Cap. 161), registered chiropractor within the
meaning of the Chiropractors Registration Ordinance (Cap. 428), listed or
registered Chinese medicine practitioner within the meaning of the Chinese
Medicine Ordinance (Cap. 549), Macau Doctors and PRC Doctors
Creamgs) (£166 %) it T8 - (BATMEA) (F161F)
FrigmaieEs (B8 fﬂﬁﬂ%ﬁw(%428%)%%‘5#}%‘1%%@ G- F-10S
BINE 549 %) FRIERIR DI & B4 R BE A E

financial year ended 31 March 2019
E_T-NF-A=-t+—HLEYERFE

BEERBEEBRASEERAR
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DEFINITIONS
&

“Sales Volume”
[fHERR ]
“Share(s)”

[ &5

“Shareholder(s)”
[P&ER ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ B 32 P

“Trained Therapists”

[ERZIFINEa A ]

“VHIS”
[BREEE R8I

wgy”
[%]

22 Union Medical Healthcare Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2018/19

being the total sales volume generated from contracted sales entered into,
and all products and services offered by the Group
BRIV MG NHENRRNEBRENMBERMRBAEENRHE

ordinary share(s) in the share capital of the Company with par value of
HK$0.00001 each
AR AR AR E AR E{E 0.00001 T /) & EAK

holder(s) of Share(s)
AP VB A

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMERHMBERAT

our employees who have completed mandatory internal training developed
by our Doctors to provide quasi-medical services and/or traditional beauty
services under our internal licensing programme

B TR FAPT B8 A il E #5814 AU BD SR FINAAR IR T PSR BB RF AT A2 P IR (L R B8
BIRS RSEREDRENES

Voluntary Health Insurance Scheme

8RR RT3

per cent.
Bkt
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Union Medical Healthcare Limited
L ER Ex =
Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability
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